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--------------------------------------------------------

15

ITEM NO.1:

16

CHAIR KANE:

FY 2007 BUDGET

(Gavel. )

(C.C. 06-31)

I'd like to call the Council's

17

Budget and Finance Committee meeting for

18

April 13, 2006 to order.

19

have in attendance for this morning's meeting

20

Members Carroll, Anderson, Molina, Pontanilla,

21

Tavares, Kane.

22

For the record, we

Members, this morning we are going to

23

continue with our operations review of the

24

respective departments.

25

Corporation Counsel first off and then following

We will be talking with
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1

them will be the Office of the Prosecuting

2

Attorney.
Members, before that, we have several

3
4

people signed up to testify,

5

take care of that business first.

6

signed up to testify, as well as everybody else

7

in the chamber,

8

pager, we ask that you turn it to the off or to

9

the silent mode so we can avoid any unnecessary

10

so we'd like to
Those of you

if you have a cell phone or a

distractions to this meeting.
Those of you signed up to testify, we'll

11

12

invite you up to the podium.

A couple of

13

things,

14

for the record and if you do represent an

15

organization, we'd like to know that as well.

16

We're going to provide you with a total of four

17

minutes.

18

notify you of that time and that will give you

19

another -

20

your remarks

if you can, please first state your name

At three minutes, we're going to

give you an opportunity to conclude
th another minute.

At four minutes, we're going to again

21
22

let you know where you're at,

and at that point

23

we need you to conclude your remarks.

24

side note, if you continue after that point, we

25

will,

And as a

as politely as possible, interrupt you to
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conclude your remarks.

Please remain at the

2

podium.

3

testimony by the Members, so once we've

4

acknowledged that we don't have questions, then

5

we'll have you step away, so we appreciate that.

There may be questions of your

6

. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY .

7

8

9

CHAIR KANE:

Members, we're going to go ahead with

10

that.

The first person signed up to testify is

11

Scott Weeker.

12

Silvia Naiberg.

Mr. Weeker will be followed by

And Members, we have received written

13
14

testimony of -- some of the submitters have not

15

provided enough to get distributed immediately,

16

so we'll make sure we get those copies to each

17

of you just in case there is a reference to

18

those written testimonies.

19

Good morning, sir.

20
21
22

MR. WEEKER:

Good morning.

My name is Scott Wee

r.

I'm the president of the Ambient Micro.
Thank you very much for the opportunity

23

to speak briefly in support of the Maui Economic

24

Development Board.

25

announce we recently were awarded an Air Force

Our company was happy to
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contract to develop a new form of alternative

2

energy.

3

and our company wouldn't be here today without

4

the direct and ongoing support of the Maui

5

Economic Development Board.

And that contract and that technology

And we're just one of many, many small

6
7

and large companies that benefit daily from

8

their business development activities.

9

just want to say thank you to them again and

So I

10

thank you to you and please urge you to continue

11

your funding support.

12

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Weeker.
Members, any questions for our testifier

13
14

Thank you.

this morning?

15

MR. WEEKER:

Thank you.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much.
Next to testify is Silvia Naiberg.

17
18
19

She'll be followed by Sharon Sharp.
MS. NAIBERG:

My name is Sil

a Na

rg.

I am the

20

Enlace Hispano Program Manager of Maui Economic

21

opportunity.

22

I wanted to thank you for continuing

23

support of our program.

The Hispanic population

24

in Maui County is growing faster than the

25

availability of Spanish speaking professionals,
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case managers, teachers and health care

2

providers.

3

has been taking on a big load.

Due to this shortage, Enlace Hispano

I am here to respectfully ask you to

4

5

grant the increase we requested for the budget

6

2006-2007.

7

to compensate for the time outside of the office

8

when we provide education presentations and do

9

outreach in Lahaina.

We really need another case manager

10

As you know, the Hispanic population

11

represents 10 to 15 percent of the County of

12

Maui population.

13

'06, Enlace Hispano's goal was to provide

14

services to 600 individuals.

15

2006, we have served 905 people.

16

percent of our goal three months early of the

17

end of the fiscal year.

18

staff members currently assist an average of

19

100 clients a month or about five clients a day.

20

Many request our services outsi

21

as well.

In the fiscal year 2005 and

As of March 31st,

Enlace

This is 150.8

spano's three

of the office

In December 2005, Enlace Hispano

22

23

coordinated the visit of the Mexican Consulate

24

to Maui.

25

to request information, ask questions and make

Over 200 people contacted our office
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1

appointments.

During their visit, 180 Mexican

2

passports and 150 Matricula Consu1ares -- this

3

is a Mexican government ID -- were issued.

4

date, we have 122 people on a wait list who are

5

requesting appointments for the Consulate's next

6

visit, tentatively scheduled for June 2006.
Currently, we are coordinating the visit

7

8

of the Guatemala Consulate.

9

Maui on April 22 and 23.

10

To

They will be on

The goal is to provide

services to up to 100 clients or applicants.
Enlace Hispano has worked extensively

11

12

with different community partners to raise

13

awareness and the dangers of tobacco.

14

last year, we have broadened our outreach to

15

include other forms of substance abuse.

16

currently working with Maui High School to

17

pro

18

to ESL, English as a second language, students.

19

s includes
MS. REVELS:

21

MS. NAIBERG:

23

We are

de presentations on drug and alcohol abuse

20

22

In the

Three minutes.
Our goal is to extend the presentations

to other high schools as well.
Enlace

spano facilitates the

24

English/Spanish language exchange class for

25

Spanish speaking community members and students
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1

taking Spanish at MCC, various high schools and

2

anyone else interested in practicing another

3

language.

4

share and learn about each other's cultures.

5

This class is on Thursday's at Maui Community

6

College from five to eight.

7

of this program, MCC is preparing to extend the

8

program for a year-round class instead of having

9

it by semester.

It is also a wonderful opportunity to

Due to the success

Enlace Hispano go to Lahaina once a week

10
11

to assist the speaking -

12

clients for the WIC program and also to provide

13

service to our clients that live in that area

14

and find it difficult to make the trip to our

15

main office in Wailuku.

16

MS. REVELS:

17

MS. NAIBERG:

Spanish speaking

Four minutes.
Okay.

So

let me say good-bye.

We

18

want to be able to help as much people we can,

19

and in this way prevent

20

other destructive behavior.

21

Once again,

e forming of gangs and

thank you for all your

22

support and for granting what we are requesting.

23

Thank you.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Naiberg.
Members,

any question?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

Ms. Naiberg, please.

Ms. Tavares?

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

MS. NAIBERG:

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

We have a

question.

4

8

Question.

Good morning.

Hello.
Is the additional position

already in the budget for MEO?
MS. NAIBERG:

What you mean in the budget?

10

made the request?

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

MS. NAIBERG:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

MS. NAIBERG:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

CHAIR KANE:

When we

Yes.

Yes.
It's already in there?

Yes.
Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Ms. Naiberg, another question for you.

17

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

You're popular this mo

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

ng.

Good morning, Silvia.

You mentioned about the -- going to the

20
21

one school, Maui High School, for ESL program or

22

is it all the high schools here on Maui?

23

MS. NAIBERG:

Well,

for now, we are doing just Maui

24

High School, but our goal, we wanted just to go

25

to other schools.

This is what we wanted to do
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2

and we don't have time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

So part of the new

3

program would be going to the different

4

schools

5

MS. NAIBERG:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

8
9

Uh-huh.
-- to ensure those ESL

students are aware regarding drug education?
MS. NAIBERG:

Exactly.

Exactly.

This is one of our

goals.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.

12

Any more questions?

13

Hearing none, thank you very much,

14

Ms. Naiberg.
And again, Members, she's provided

15
16

written testimony so we'll get that to you as

17

well for reference.
Next to testify is Sharon Sharp.

18
19
20

Ms. Sha
MS. SHARP:

will be followed by Ed Ginoza.
Good mo

ng, Council.

11m here on

21

behalf of Maui Economical Development Board,

22

specifically the Women in Technology Program.

23

I was

I work for a high tech company,

24

Oceanit up in Kihei, and 11m here just to

25

testify that -- I just picked up a full-time
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position there, actually, and I feel very

2

fortunate that the WIT program has given me the

3

opportunity to go to school, pick up a job in a

4

tech -- in a field that I had

5

enter.

ways hoped to

I also see them doing a lot of things

6
7

for, you know, quite a few of my co-workers and

8

colleagues, things like the Kamaaina Come Home

9

Program, and I think that they do provide a lot

10

of benefit to our community, and I hope to see

11

continued support.

12

Thank you.

13
14

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

If you can state your name

for the record, please?

15

MS. SHARP:

16

CHAIR KANE:

Sharon Sharp.
Thank you, Ms. Sharp.

17

Members, any questions for Ms. Sharp?

18

Hearing none, thank you for --

19

MS. SHARP:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21
22

Thank you.
your testimony t

s morning.

Ed Ginoza followed by William Kepler.
MR. E. GINOZA:

Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members

23

of the Budget Committee.

My name is Ed Ginoza

24

and I would like to testify on behalf of Maui

25

Economic Development Board in regards to Focus
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Maui Nui.
As most of you know,

2

I'm a former

3

teacher.

And during my tenure as a teacher, I

4

served on HSTA Strategic Planning Committee, and

5

one of our jobs was to write a strategic plan.

6

And what we discovered was that probably one of

7

the best ways to gather in

8

focus groups.

rmation was to use

And MEDB, during the past several years,

9

10

has undertaken a similar project to gather data

11

regarding Maui's future.

12

numerous focus groups across Maui County.

13

has heard the voices of Maui's citizens and

14

their concerns.

15

whose voices are not normally heard, a chance to

16

be heard and have a say in the direction that

17

they feel that Maui should be headed.

It has conducted
It

It has given community members,

The people in these focus groups cut

18

c and party lines.

It cuts across

19

across et

20

economic and social lines.

21

views of the people of Maui.

22

participated.

23

County and State officials valuable

24

into the direction that its citizens want Maui

25

to head.

Its views are the
I am glad that I

If used properly, it should give
sights

It sets priorities and concerns of its
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citizens.
However, it should be dynamic as our

2
3

needs change.

It should be monitored and

4

updated,

5

the organization that is best suited for the

6

task.

and MEDB is the organization that is

I strongly feel that it is extremely

7

8

important that the County Council continue to

9

fund MEDB in its quest to help the people of

10

Maui County and give direction to the elected

11

and appointed officials.
Thank you.

12
13

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Ginoza.

14

Members, any questions for Mr. Ginoza?

15

Hearing none,

16

testimony this morning.

17
18
19

thank you for your

William Kepler will be followed by
Teri Edmonds.
DR. KEPLER:

Good morning.

My name is Dr. William

20

Kepler.

21

Maui now for the last 36 years.

22

practicing here on Maui.

23

I've been a practicing pediatrician on
I'm still

I'm testifying this morning in support

24

of a particular line item in the Prosecutor's

25

budget which will be presented to you later
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today -- that's item number 6112

2

amount of $43,680.

3

payment for a physician to be on call for sexual

4

assault examinations.

5

- in the

And it has to do with

Around 1990, Maui County developed a

6

so-called Sexual Assault Response Team for

7

children, and at that point these teams were

8

developed allover the State of Hawaii.

9

this in partnership with the Children's Advocacy

We did

10

Center, which now has become the Children's

11

Justice Center, and it turned out at that point

12

it was very difficult to find doctors who would

13

be on call 24 hours a day and be willing to corne

14

in at awkward and inconvenient times, committing

15

themselves to stay skilled in performing this

16

extremely sensitive examination.

17

Only two counties, Oahu and Maui, were

18

successful in forming teams that were led by

19

physicians.

20

to rely on nurses to do these examinations.

21

The Big Island and Kauai still has

On Oahu, they were successful in making

22

a team that was comprised of several physicians,

23

but on Maui, unfortunately, after an initial

24

period of a month or so back there in 1991,

25

interest waned and our team rapidly dwindled to
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one person, me.
And since that time,

2

I have been the

3

only doctor who has been willing and able to

4

perform these examinations here on Maui.

5

became obvious that there was a need to have

6

these examinations performed in adults as well

7

as children, and so I extended my services to

8

include adults.

It

And when I say sexual assault

9

10

examinations, I'm talking about a very careful,

11

very sensitive exam, very sensitive history

12

usually on a young woman, occasionally on a

13

child, sometimes a boy or a man.

14

We do it in a wonderful child-frjendly

15

room, which has been provided in the hospital.

16

And it does involve a very careful exam of the

17

entire body,

18

genital area, but including the entire area.

19

use an instrument called a culpascope to magni

20

and photograph injuries.

21

real CSI as opposed to what we see on

22

television.

23

laboratory specimens.

24

examinations.

25

MS. REVELS:

of course with accent on the
We

Basically, this is the

We collect clothing.

We do

We look at microscopic

Three minutes.
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2

DR. KEPLER:

So you can see that this kind of exam

fills a very important need in the community.
I mentioned earlier I'm the only doctor

3
4

that does them here on Maui and if I'm not

5

available, the police have to dig me out of my

6

farm in Keanae or somewhere.

7

these exams are often done in the emergency

8

room.

Unfortunately,

So basically, I need help and I believe

9

10

the solution to the problem is this, we should

11

do here on Maui what Oahu has been doing for

12

many years.

13

to be on call for this task.

14

be five dollars an hour, which amounts to

15

approximately $840 a week.

16

amount should be enough for me to recruit other

17

physicians.

I've been trying to recruit

18

physicians.

I've tried for years, actually, to

19

do that.

20

think we can build a strong program if --

That is, we should pay a physician
That amount would

I believe that

So I believe that's the secret.

I

21

MS. REVELS:

Four minutes.

22

DR. KEPLER:

And if we can pay our physicians the

23

five dollars an hour to be on call.

24
25

Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Dr. Kepler.
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Members, questions for Dr. Kepler this

1

2

morning?
Hearing none -- I'm sorry.

3
4

5

Member

Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you so much for coming,

6
7

Dr. Kepler.

8

one year's on call fee of five dollars per hour?

9

DR. KEPLER:

So the $43,680 is to provide for

Yes.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

DR. KEPLER:

12

For how many physicians?

That -- well, it's five dollars an hour

for whatever physician happens to be on call.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

DR. KEPLER:

So it would be just -

At this point it would only be one at a

15

time, and at this point I have to recruit -- if

16

I need more help,

17

other doctors.

18

have three doctors that I think are interest

19

in this, and we re going to hopefully develop a

20

program here on Maui

21

committed to this.

22

assault assistants who I have tra

23

already have money to pay them.

I'll have to recruit to get

I

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

DR. KEPLER:

rec

ted.

th doctors t

I actually

tare

And we already have sex
ed anG we

So --

I'm sorry_
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So that would provide a

2

fund

an on call fund -- for, say, if you were

3

able to get this money, you could then recruit

4

maybe two or three more physicians so that at

5

anyone time whoever's on call would rotate?

6

DR. KEPLER:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

9

Right.

that?
DR. KEPLER:

That's right.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

DR. KEPLER:

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13
14

And they would get paid for

Including you?

Including me, thank you.
That's great.

Who sets the

250, 350 fee per exam?
DR. KEPLER:

At this point, I do.

I mean it's

15

actually done privately.

16

through the Police Department to do this exam,

17

and I have set that as what seemed to be a fair

18

fee.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I am paid right now

So the police pays that

e

every time you have to do an exam?

21

DR. KEPLER:

That's correct.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And on Oahu, who pays the

23

five dollars an hour for their physiCians to be

24

on call?

25

DR. KEPLER:

I believe it's done through the Sex
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Abuse Treatment Center, the SATC.

2

you exactly who has that contract.

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

DR. KEPLER:

Thank you.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you very

Any more questions for

Dr. Kepler, Members?
Hearing none, Doctor, thank you very

8
9

I'm sorry.

much and thank you for your work.

5

7

It's okay.

I can't tell

much.

10

Members, and just to note, that is on

11

Details 15-7 under Object Code Number 6112 is

12

the reference for his testimony.
Next to testify is Teri Edmonds and

13
14
15

she'll be followed by Cesar Gaxiola.
MS. EDMONDS:

Aloha, Council members.

16

having us here again today.

17

I'm the owner of "If

18

actually here testi

19

Nui.

20

Thank you for

I'm Teri Edmonds.

e Shoe Fits" and I'm
ng on behalf of Focus Maui

I am currently a member of their

21

Advisory Committee.

22

year, and took part in their original study of

23

the 1700 people that they got together, and I

24

think you're already familiar with it.

25

I have been for about a

Mr. Ginoza explained how it pulled
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1

members of the community together that don't

2

some of

3

36 percent of those people typically don't

4

participate in community activities, so that's

5

why I

6

think it reaches a broad base group of people.

an interesting statistic was

personally love Focus Maui Nui because I

As far as our meetings go,

7

I

think they

8

have progressive facilitators.

They're taking

9

part in the development of the general plan or

10

the kick-off that's coming up,

so again bringing

11

the voice of the people to that.
They have maintained integrity of the

12
13

original plan,

14

I

15

efficient meetings.

16

done.

17

don't make huge strides.

I

think,

also, being a member,

and I

like to see that.

like that they have

We get a lot of things

There is not a meeting I

go to where we

And they have a belief in

18

and I

really Ii

ligent
that as

19

community outreach,

20

well so we have a lot of projects coming up

21

where we're all volunteering and pulling

22

together grass roots communities.
The Wailuku Community Association is

23

ng at them too and, again that's a grass

24

100

25

roots association,

and we'll hopefully have a
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1

lot more bodies available to help.

2

it.

3

been a pleasure to work with them.

4

for considering it.

5

I think they're very professional and it's

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Edmonds.

testifier?

8

MS. EDMONDS:

Thank you.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Hearing none

10

13
14
15

- or seeing none, thank

you very much.
Mr. Gaxiola is our final person signed

11

12

So thank you

Members, any questions for our

6
7

So I like

up to testify.
MR. GAXIOLA:

Good morning, Council Chair Kane and

good morning, Council members.
My name is Cesar Gaxiola.

I work for

16

Maui Economic Opportunity, Operations

17

and I wasn't planning to testify this morning.

18

I just wanted to add a few comments in support

19

of MEO s Hispanic Li

20

Hispano program.

21

I

rector,

also known as

ace

Councilmember Charmaine asked about

22

if it was in the budget, the position for

23

Lahaina, at this current time, it's not.

24

request was for $175,000 and we were kept on the

25

same level, I believe at 110.
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1

And the reason for our request is we do

2

have a group of volunteers currently in Lahaina

3

doing some of the services the E

4

want to expand, but there's

5

do with the volunteers because of the

6

confidentiality issues and also some of the

7

information that we need to gain for our program

8

that we need to ask our participants, volunteers

9

cannot do that.

0

ace Hispano

y so much you can

Also, they are constrained in

10

times sometimes because they do work and they do

11

this as -- you know, when they have free time

12

and when they can.

13

And so our idea is to bring one position

14

into Lahaina and find a small space over there

15

and do services from the Lahaina side.

16

Currently, as Silvia mentioned, we do

17

have one person that goes every Tues

18

Lahaina and that's under a contract we do with

19

the State Department of Health, the WIC office.

20

y to

We also do receive a small grant from

21

the State Department of Health to do substance

22

abuse, and currently we do it with Maui High

23

School and we are in talks to Maui -- Maui

24

Baldwin High School to work with them.

25

Silvia mentioned, we only have three positions

But, as
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1

and there's only so much you can do with three

2

people, so if we can add that position to

3

Lahaina, then we're going to be able to expand

4

our services to the Lahaina community and also

5

to work with Lahainaluna High School.

6

a large percentage of Hispanics in that school

7

as well.
And so that's all I wanted to share.

8
9

10

Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

13
14

Thank you.
Members, any questions for Mr. Gaxiola?

11
12

There is

Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Cesar, thank you for

coming.
Right now I don't believe you have an

15
16

office over there, or are you using any

17

facility

18

about going into the Senior Center.

19

ever work out?

20

MR. GAXIOLA:

- I know for a while you were tal

No, not really.

ng

Did that

The Maui Adult Day

21

Care Center space they use in Lahaina, to tell

22

you the truth, is kind of in a bad condition,

23

and I really admire them for the service that

24

they do from there because their space -- their

25

office needs to be taken care.

And we couldn't
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1

do it because of the -- they have a bridge and

2

we were worried about the childrens (sic)

3

passing by and falling into the little canal on

4

the side, so we didn't go in there.
But currently, we do go into the Lahaina

5
6

Health Center right next to the Lahaina Civic

7

Center, and this is only Tuesday's from nine to

8

three.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And that's at the

10

Comprehensive Health Center that is owned by the

11

State?

12

MR. GAXIOLA:

I believe so, yeah.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Okay.

And would you

14

continue using that space if we can get the

15

position or would you be seeking another

16

location?

17

MR. GAXIOLA:

right now we're

18

them and we're going to

19

100

20

borrow an office on Lahainaluna Road,

21

it's Eono.

22
23
24
25

th

We're going to continue working

ng into possibly Hale Mahaolu lett

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

g us

I believe

Yes, that's where they would

also be relocating Maui Adult Day Care.
MR. GAXIOLA:

Yes, so that might be one possibility.

The second possibility might be working with
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1

Catholic Charities, and I think they're looking

2

into the Old Pioneer Mill.

3

like, three or four possibilities that we're

4

looking -- that we're negotiating right now to

5

see which one is the best, you know.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And so we have,

And would you re

7

paying rent for this also as a part of the

8

budget item that you're requesting?

9

MR. GAXIOLA:

Yes.

That's why from 110 to 175

10

includes the position, the rent and initially

11

the equipment like one computer and things like

12

that.

13

expensive would be probably, like, 350 or $400 a

14

month.

15

cannot afford more than that.

16

We told all the different parties we

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

Ceasar.

18

MR. GAXIOLA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you very much,

Thank you.
Any further questions for Mr. Gaxiola?
Hearing none, thank you very much for

20
21

And the rent, I believe the most

your testimony this a

22

MR. GAXIOLA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

ernoon.

Thank you.
Is there anybody else here in the

24

chamber that would like to testify that has not?

25

Seeing nobody approach, Members, without
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

27
BF 4/13/06
1

objections, we'll close testimony for today's

2

meeting.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS

4

. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

5
6

7

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you very much.

8

We've also received written testimony

9

and, again, I'll note that some of those will

10

get distributed as we get that copied and

11

distributed.

Thank you, Members.

At this time I'd like to hand the floor

12
13

over first to Mr. Ginoza, our Budget

14

for any opening remarks to our meeting this

15

morning and followed by Mr. Brian Moto, our

16

Corporation Counsel Director.

17
18

MR. GINOZA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

rector,

Good morning,

Members.
We are going to review t

19

Corporation

20

Counsel's operations report,

21

found

22

page 2-1, and we have Mr. Moto here to discuss

23

his operation budget.

24

MR. MOTO:

25

CHAIR KANE:

and that can be

the detail Proposed Budget at on

Good.
Good morning, Mr. Moto.
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1
2

MR. MOTO:

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Council

members.
an earlier meeting I went over and

3
4

discussed with you the matters invol

ng the

5

expansion position and EP counts, so I won't go

6

over those matters; however, I will speak to

7

other things related to our A Account and also

8

Band C Accounts.
Let me begin, Mr. Chairman, with our

9

10

A Account.

11

that on March 29, 2006, a letter was transmitted

12

by me and by the Prosecuting Attorney, Davelyn

13

Tengan.

14

proposed bill for an ordinance relating to the

15

salaries of Deputies Corporation Counsel and

16

Deputies Prosecuting Attorney, and the purpose

17

of this letter was to set forth our

18

recommendations regarding the salary plan for

19

deputies, both in Corporation Counsel and the

20

Prosecuting Attorney's Office.

21

And there, I should begin by noting

And in this letter, we transmitted a

This letter was written pursuant to the

22

Maui County Code, which requires that the

23

Prosecuting Attorney and I provide you

24

recommendations whenever the Salary Commission

25

takes action upon our respective salaries.
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The Salary Commission did take action

1

2

earlier this calendar year, in 2006.

In

3

February,

4

Mr. Matsuura, transmitted two letters in which

5

he described the decisions that they had made.

6

And the result was for our departments was that

7

the adjustments were made, increases were given

8

for the positions of Corp. Counsel and First

9

Deputy Corp. Counsel as well as Prosecuting

the chair of the Salary Commission,

10

Attorney,

and First Deputy Prosecuting Attorney.

11

And both the Prosecuting Attorney and my s

12

are set at $93,000.
As a consequence of this,

13

ary

the

14

Prosecuting Attorney and I came up with a draft

15

bill, and the memorandum that describes the bill

16

is basically sort of boilerplate because all I

17

did was to super copy the last memo I

18

you

19

the methodology doesn't change,

20

don't change.

21

fact that the Salary Commission took its action

22

in 2006.

23

wrote to

lks on the same subject, because re
t

ly

reascns

The only thing that is new is the

And if you look at the bill itself, it's

24

two pages.

It's very short.

And the changes

25

are made to a table that has the heading
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"Effective October 1, 2006."

This table -- you

2

know,

3

already in the County Code and we're proposing

4

that it be amended to reflect the Salary

5

Commission's actions.

it's in Ramseyer version so this table is

The methodology, as I said,

6

is still t

It's based on ten steps with the steps

7

same.

8

based upon the

9

years that the attorney has -- the attorneys

ars of experience for -- or the

10

have spent as attorneys since their admission to

11

the bar.
The lowest rung of the step is based

12
13

upon the pay given to attorneys subject to

14

collective bargaining and then adjusted, and

15

then us

16

reflect differences in employment rights.

17

the salary set for the Prosecuting Attorney and

18

Co

19

and the ten steps are kind of set forth in

20

between those bookend amounts,

21

low.

g the next higher salary range to

oration Counsel,

in effect, acts as

t

high and

cap,

e

And we've kept that methodology.
Quite frankly,

22

And

I had to exer

Prosecuting Attorney had to exer

se

and

se a

23

t

24

certain judgment call because one issue that

25

came up was when should this be made effective,
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1

this proposed adjustment.

2

adjustment to director salaries was made

3

effective January I, 2006, but in

4

bill, in order to keep the bill simple and easy

5

to understand and because the County Code

6

already had a table that anticipated a salary

7

adjustment in October I, 2006, we decided for

8

the sake of ease of administration and ease of

9

understanding that we would just stick with that

10

effective date and adjust the table that relates

11

to that date.

12
13
14

CHAIR KANE:
a

drafti~g

this

Members, any questions in this area for

fication?

And you just got handed cut the

information that he was referencing.
Ms. Anderson, question?

15
16

The Salary Commission

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

In regards to the

Salary Commission

17

effective date, did t

18

recommend an effective date?
For?

19

MR. MOTO:

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

MR. MOTO:

For this.

The Salary Commission does not set the

22

salaries for deputies,

23

first deputy director.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

CHAIR KANE:

just for the director and

Okay.

Thank you.

Further questions in this area, Members?
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Seeing none, Mr. Moto, proceed.

1

2

MR. MOTO:

Thank you.
I will now proceed with a summary of our

3

Stepping back a

4

Band C Accounts changes.

5

little bit, the bottom line is that actually the

6

sum total of our Band C Accounts actually drops

7

in the next fiscal year from the current fiscal

8

year.
And the reason is in the current fiscal

9

10

year, we were given monies related to the office

11

renovation and relocation that's ongoing and, as

12

I described earlier, we're scheduled in May to

13

do some major installation and delivery work on

14

the third floor and we will be relocating half

15

of our office down there.

16

schedule.

17

current fiscal year,

18

don't have those monies budgeted.

But that's being paid for out of the

Now,

19

That's still on

so for next fiscal year, we

there are some changes to some

20

individual line amounts in the Budget Details,

21

and I can go through them relatively quic

22

Some of them are fairly small.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

MR. MOTO:

25

y.

Proceed.
We're asking for a modest amount of money

for repair and maintenance, $700,

just because
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1

we will have more equipment to take care of

2

given that we'll now have separate operations on

3

the third and ninth floor.
We are asking also for an increase in

4
5

our cellular telephone expense monies.

And the

6

reason for this is, you know, our deputies

7

basically are on call a lot, and many times they

8

are not in the office.

9

in the field,

Many times they're out

out attending meetings or

10

traveling.

11

with them and in order for clients to get

12

answers from them and to be able to consult with

13

them,

14

that all deputies must

15

themse

16

whenever they're at a meeting or on the road.

19

issued an edict which basically said

s available and in communication

ir

own personal cell phones in order to accomplish
Sf

and I

don't believe that's right.

20

we need to provide them

21

reimburse them

22

cell phone use,

23

nd a way to make

Currently, many of them are using t

17
18

I

And in order for me to communicate

y

th cell phones or

r a portion of their personal
and that's the reason.

We are asking for an increase in our air
Part of this is related

24

transportation budget.

25

to the increased amount of travel and higher air
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1

fare costs that are associated with travel to

2

court in Honolulu and depositions on the

3

Mainland.
Also, we will -- we have new attorneys.

4

5

We have a new attorney who started this month.

6

We'll have a new attorney hopefully starting

7

early at the beginning of the next fiscal year.
There is an increase proposed in our per

8
9

diem account.

There are a couple things to say

10

about this amount.

When I looked at our current

11

fiscal year's reports, one of the things I

12

noticed was that,

13

our entire per diem account so early for Fiscal

14

Year 2006?"

nOh,

gee, how did we wipe out

And what I realized is that

15
16

historically

17

had been budgeting very little for per diem.

18

Part of it was that in the '90s, under Mayor

19

Lingle,

20

forego per diem when they took day trips,

21

example,

22

fact did happen, even though the County Code

23

says that really County employees are entitled

24

to these payments.

25

sort of depress the spending for per diem,

s

- since the '90s, the department

had asked all appointed of

to Honolulu and the like,

cials to
for

and that in

And so what that did was to

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Of c : ( 808) 524 - 2090
Fax: ( 808) 524 - 2596

and

35
BF 4/13/06
1

gradually over time the per diem budget just

2

kind of shrank.
I have

3

I have instructed our staff to

4

stick with the County Code and make the per diem

5

payments that people are due when they travel on

6

business trips.

7

cover that.
Again, part of this is also that we have

8
9

And I just need the monies to

more attorneys on staff and will have more

10

attorneys on staff, and I need to cover their

11

expenses as well.
Registration and subscription monies are

12
13

also anticipated to increase,

in my opinion

14

relatively modestly, mainly to provide

15

professional textbooks and resource materials

16

for our attorneys and to provide training

17

opportunities for the new attorneys.
Mr. Chairman, in terms of equipment,

18

we are asking

r a new

19

under our C account,

20

vehicle.

21

ten-year-old Chevy Corsica and it's just

22

reached the end of its useful life.

23

vehicle that our investigator can use.

24

it perhaps 90 percent of time.

25

does investigations and serves subpoenas and

The department currently uses a
it's

We need a
He uses

And because he
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1

other t

ngs, sometimes he needs to get to areas

2

that are offroad.
We also need monies for a photocopier

3
4

lease because the third floor will have to have

5

its own photocopier.

6

been actually sharing the photocopier with the

7

Mayor's Office, and our litigation team upstairs

8

will continue to do so, but the people on the

9

third floor now need to get their own

10
11

For all these years, we've

photocopy -- photocopier.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Moto.
Members, we'll open it up for questions.

12
13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Question.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama.

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Chairman,

first,

if you don't

16

mind,

17

claim settlements category, is t

18

you believe, sufficient to take care of your

19

department's ne

20

MR. MOTO:

2-4 in the Details, Mr. Moto, under our

Mr. Chairman,

t

$100,000,

in this specific area?
t

answer is yes, it has

21

proven to be sufficient, at least in the two

22

years,

23

amount has been in the budget.

24
25

I believe -- two or three years that this

This particular account is used not for
t

big litigation items.
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1

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

MR. MOTO:

Understood.

But just for things like fender-benders

3

and people making claims if a tree branch falls

4

on their car or something like that, a sewer

5

back-up.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

MR. MOTO:

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Right.

Yes.
My next question is on 2-6 for

Budget Director, Mr.

noza.

We see a lot of

10

requests for SUVs this year.

It must be the

11

popular thing to ask Council for in vehicles.
Is the Administration set to go and look

12
13

at fleet purchasing discounts or are you

14

allowing each department to go on their merry

15

way and get the vehicle when they want it and

16

how they want it?

17

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair?

18

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza.

19

MR. GINOZA:

I believe management had ki

20

th a price listing of all the vehi

of come up
es by the

21

different types and has given that opportunity

22

to the departments to select t

23

of vehicles

24

there was no discussion on a

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

different types

th kind of a standard pricing, but
eet purchase.

Well, we've seen multiple SUVs,
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so, you know,

2

into a manufacturer or dealer and says, you

3

know,

4

What is the best price you can give the County

5

of Maui?" instead of going in ten individual

6

times for one vehicle.

7

MR. GINOZA:

I just was curious whether you go

"We have ten SUVs we're willing to buy.

I would have to defer to the Purchasing

8

Department.

I don't know what they do in terms

9

of bulk purchasing.

10

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

share.

15

CHAIR KANE:

18

19

If they have information to

Thank you.

Ms. Villarosa, if you can,

please just identify yourself.

16

17

Mr. Hokama, additional comments from

Corporation Counsel for your response?

12
13

Mr. Chair?

MS.

TA VILLAROSA:

Traci Villarosa,

rst Deputy

Corp. Counsel.
I'm aware that because I advised t
nance, all of the vehicle

20

Department of

21

purchases are done through

22

Public Works.

23

they'll be for multiple vehicles.

24

if they just do one contract per year for all

25

the vehicles, but the individual departments

- actually through

So when I get contracts in,
I don't know
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1

don't go by themselves and purchase vehicles,

2

they're done through one person in Public Works.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you for sharing

that.

4

Mr. Ginoza,

5

just quickly for

6

clarification, you mentioned that you folks

7

provide a list for the departments to select

8

types of vehicles?

9

MR. GINOZA:

A list meaning if they want an SUV with

10

a hybrid character or different -- different

11

characteristics.

12

I mean different price for those types of

13

vehicles.

14

for example, they want an SUV, then it's

15

depending on what type of SUV that they're

16

requesting that the prices

17
18

VI

There is a different price

And as they submit the request, say,

-CHAIR HOKAMA:

11 in the category.

Can we get the opportunity to see

that list?

19

MR. GINOZA:

I can provide that to you.

20

CHAIR KANE:

We'll have that in writing, Mr. Hokama,

21

as a request.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

Mr. Chairman.

That would be appreciated,

24

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

If I could -- sorry.
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1
2
3
4

CHAIR KANE:

You're next, Ms. Tavares.

recognize you and you can follow up.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Chairman.

Okay.

I lost my thought,

Thank you.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

We'll

I'll

Sorry.

Sorry about that Mr. Hokama.
Not a problem.

And Members, again,

Not a problem.

just as a procedural

matter, we need to mix it up,

okay, Members,

so

10

I want to make sure that everybody has their

11

opportunity.

12

yesterday, which I took to heart that he ended

13

up at the end.

14

rotate it around so, Members,

15

restrict your line of questioning to maybe one

16

or two lines and then we can give other Members

17

opportunities to ask questions as well, so thank

18

you for that consideration.

21

So we're going to just kind of

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Well,

I apologize.

Just kind

of blurted out there.
The list you're talking about,

22
23

Mr. Ginoza,

24

for budgeting purposes,

25

if you can

Ms. Tavares, you have the floor.

19
20

I know Mr. Carroll made a comment

MR. GINOZA:

is the list that the departments use
right?

That is correct.
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1
2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Because you don't know

the price of the vehicle until it goes to bid.

3

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Questions, Ms. Johnson?
And I know this, again, is

7

more general rather than just speci

c to your

8

SUV request.

9

with regard to the long delay in actually

Because I've received information
- if

10

a department requests a vehicle, there is a long

11

protracted period of time, and because it is

12

done in that fashion,

13

realistic that by the time your department

14

actually -- or Mr. Moto's department needs the

15

vehicle,

is this something

you know, it could be a year.
I just would like some general

16
17

information -- and if it's more appropriate,

18

Mr. Chair, for,

19

be asked about the average length of time or

20

whatever procedure is used in securing a

21

vehicle, perhaps that could be made so that we

22

could get something back in writing.

23

CHAIR KANE:

let's say,

a general question to

Yeah, and thank you, Ms.

Johnson.

I

24

think that's a good suggestion that when we do

25

get into the general -- not to hold up the
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1

department --

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

-- or hold them hostage
I know.

-- to the general question, we'll -- why

6

don't we go ahead and look at that and get that

7

question posed in writing, and then we can get a

8

response back before deliberations for decision

9

making.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, because I would like to

11

understand that, because I know that Parks,

12

they've been waiting and waiting and waiting,

13

and there is

nd of a backlog in Public Works.

14

CHAIR KANE:

And it's an operational question

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

CHAIR KANE:

as well,

Yes.
so thank you.
Thank you.

We'll get that in writing.

We'll make

19

sure we get it to Mr. Ginoza and he 11 get it to

20

t

21

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair?

22

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson.

23

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair?

24

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, Mr. Ginoza.

25

MR. GINOZA:

Just a clarification on the vehicle

appropriate response person.
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1

price list, you know, to the extent that there

2

are special requests to add to the vehicles, you

3

know,

4

estimate -- I mean estimates,

5

specifically for those types of vehicles.

those are, you know,

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I try to obtain

Ms. Anderson?
Thank you, Chair.

I'm just wondering if

8
9

specifically tried to

would be the Budget Director, if

I guess it
if

t~ere's

a

10

way that -- since there are so many SUVs being

11

requested, if there is a way that someone could

12

do a cost benefit analysis to see if it would be

13

more financially advantageous over the long-term

14

of the vehicle to buy a hybrid because of the

15

high cost of gas.

16

14 cents.
So,

17
18
19

It's going to go up another

you know,

I'm sure you could

estimate how much gas and mileage each of these
icles will be using over the term of their

20

life, and I just t

21

conscientious of the spiraling cost of gas.

22

if we could buy a hybrid instead and save some

23

money, you know, in the long term, that might be

24

more bene

25

CHAIR KANE:

nk,

you know, we need to be
And

cial.

Well, we'll pose that question again in
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1

2
3

writing, Ms. Anderson.
MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chairman, may I make a general

comment?

4

CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead.

5

MR. GINOZA:

The discussion was made with respect to

6

hybrid vehicles but one of the concerns that was

7

posed was, you know,

8

really know what the reliability of the hybrid

9

vehicles are and whether we should just jump in

really the -- whether we

10

and just buy all hybrids or kind of just, you

11

know, buy some and then see what happens with

12

respect to reliability.

13

discussions that were made.

14
15
16

CHAIR KANE:

I know those were the

Plus upfront costs.

Hyb

ds are

approximately four thousand more.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, but I'm talking

17

over -- a cost benefit analysis over the

18

long-term and

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21
22

Yeah.
I don't know.

There may be

some reports out already on their reliability.
CHAIR KANE:

We'll ask for if they've done that and

23

if so, provide us with the information that

24

they've concluded from their analysis.

25

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
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Any further questions, Ms. Anderson, on

1

2

Corporation Counsel's Band C Account?
Members, any questions?

3
4

5

Mr. Hokama?

Chairman, maybe to add to that

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

general question
Please.

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

- staff is going to follow up.

8

I believe in earlier budget years, we had

9

discussions regarding what is the actual County

10

fleet,

and I believe the last Administration

11

tried to get an accurate handle on the

12

situation.

13

to this day,

14

well as the GASB-34 requirements on how we're

15

going to document and depreciate these assets.

16

Then I would assume we have a

I know they gave a good effort, but
you know,

I'm still unsatisfied, as

17

replacement policy in place and questions like

18

Ms. Anderson's longevity and additional costs,

19

because of the hybrids

20

after a certain enough time and t

21

I think that is all something that maybe needs

22

to be revisited and sent to this Council -

23

this Committee, Mr. Chairman,

24

we can understand the various departments'

25

vehicular requests.

replacement of batteries
t high cost,

to

so we can make

Because we've been hard on
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1

police, what is your replacement schedule for

2

the hundreds of vehicles they have,

3

it's only fair that we hold all the other

4

departments in the same standards.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

and I think

That will be incorporated.

I think the other discussions we had,

6
7

Members, very briefly was the lease versus

8

purchase since a vehicle is a depreciating

9

factor,

so we pay for what we use, not for the

10

entire thing that we end up getting zero for at

11

the end anyway,

12

can also be incorporated as far as discussion.

so that's another question that

Any questions for Mr. Moto on his Band

13
14

C Accounts?

Mr. Molina?

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Well,

I'm going to try and tie

16

it into expenses on Band C Accounts.

17

of related to something that I saw in the

18

program budget, which relates to a department,

19

if you 11 permit me.

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

24
25

Oh,

absolutely.

Yeah.

It's kind

Go ahe

Oh, okay.

Please.
Thank you.

First of all,

thank you, Mr. Moto,

for

being very resourceful with your funding and a
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1

very conservative approach.

I think a lot of

2

other departments can -- you know, should take

3

note of that.

4

SUVs and what not, and it's ironic we're doing

5

it with Corporation Counsel, but I'd like to

6

just change the pace a little bit.

And we spent a lot of time on

With regards to your pro bono work,

7

8

believe the Circuit Court encourages your

9

attorneys to do pro bono work.

I

Can you tell me

10

basically how much time your attorneys spend

11

doing pro bono work and does that -- do you

12

incur any costs in terms of materials with your

13

attorneys doing pro bono work for your

14

department?

15

MR. MOTO:

Yeah, very good question.
Right now, my deputies probably are

16
17

not -- do not spend a great deal of time

18

bono se

19

the Maui County Bar Association,

20

it may involve quite a bit of work.

21

know, my First Deputy is a former Bar president

22

for the Maui County Bar Association and Cindy

23

Young, Deputy Cindy Young, is the current Bar

24

Association President.

25

doesn't -- they did not spend a great deal is

ce exc

t

pro

for those who are active in
ch case
And, you

When I say that it
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1

I'm not aware of any doing pro bono services

2

formally outside of that -- outside of the work

3

hours.

4

We did go to the Maui County Board of

5

Ethics this year to get an opinion on the

6

appropriateness and ethical considerations of

7

County attorneys doing pro bono work.

8

did this because we had been approached by the

9

Volunteer Legal Services of Hawaii, among

And we

10

others, about the possibility of our attorneys

11

providing pro bono services.

12

The opinion we got back from the Board

13

of Ethics was that it's okay, but, but they

14

don't -- they advise that we not do it on County

15

time and don't use County resources.

16

Now,

that, as a practical matter, makes

17

it tough for our deputies to do a lot of pro

18

bono services because te

19

really not be doing during work hours, they

20

should not be using County computers or

21

telephones to do this,

22

tough if you're under those kinds of

23

restrictions to do much in the way of pro bono.

24

It really means that they have to do it on their

25

vacation time or after work on weekends.

cally they should

and, you know,

it's very
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1

My hope -- I still have been trying to

2

encourage some people to consider volunteering

3

in these law clinics for poor people who need

4

help in guiding them as to whether -- what

5

rights they might have in a legal situation.

6

Part of the problem is also the scheduling of

7

these volunteer opportunities because, for

8

example, I myself have difficulty volunteering

9

at the law clinic that the Volunteer Legal

10

Services of Hawaii offers occasionally because

11

it happens to be on a night when I can never

12

make it but -- I'm sorry for the long answer.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

No, that's very good.

Thank

14

you.

I know your department is stretched quite

15

a bit, too, with the amount of workload, so --

16

anyway, your work is much appreciated.
Thank you, Chairman.

17

18

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Any furt

19
20
21

Members?

r questions Band C Account,

Ms. Tavares?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So I wanted to ask

noza, is there a County-wide policy

22

Mr.

23

regarding cell phones and reimbursements for

24

cell phones?

25

if there isn't.

It seems like there should be one
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And I think it's a little ridiculous to

1

2

ask people to have two phones.

You have one

3

work phone and you have one personal phone.

4

And, you know, I think that we should have a

5

policy that does some sort of reimbursement or

6

cell phone allowance for employees, because if

7

not, if it's a County-issued cell phone,

8

invariably you're going to end up with personal

9

calls on that phone so it's -- you know, why

10

don't we just recognize what it's going to be?

11

I mean it was a little ridiculous that at one

12

time I was carrying a radio, a cell phone and a

13

pager and that's -- that's

diculous.

14

So I think that if there isn't a

15

County-wide policy, that one should be developed

16

rather quickly before we get into too much of

17

the requests for cell phones for work related or

18

whatever.

Thank you.

Is there a problem?

19
20

MR. GINOZA:

Oh, I'm sorry.

21

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza, do you have any comments?

22

MR. GINOZA:

I'm sorry.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

That was a long

And if you don't -- and if you don't

have comments, that's okay, too, Mr. Ginoza.
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1

MR. GINOZA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

MR. GINOZA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

Can we respond in writing to you?
Sure.

Thank you.
Thank you.

And we'll get that followed up.

Thank

you.
Any further questions Band C Account or

7

8

any of the program -- program or the Details

9

Budget for this department?
Yes, Ms. Tavares.

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

If you would allow,

12

Mr. Chair -- and stop me if it's out of the

13

realm.

14

attorney for the Planning Department enforcement

15

area.

16

were to occur at that end, how is that going to

17

impact your services overall,

18

question, Mr. Chair?

Yesterday, we heard about a dedicated

Is there something that would -- if this

19

CHAIR KANE:

Ye

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

MR. MOTO:

f

if I can ask that

it's related to operations.
Okay.

Thanks.

Good question.
Yes, Mr. Chair.

I have no plans at the

23

moment to dedicate an attorney to that

24

particular task, and the reason is because there

25

are many other competing requests or demands to
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1

have a dedicated attorney to do one thing or

2

another.

3

have ignored or are not aware of the issue of

4

enforcement.

This is not to say, however,

In fact,

5

that we

we had for probably the first
I think it was a month and a

6

time in years

7

half ago,

8

Department of Public Works and with Department

9

of Planning on the issue of enforcement and

our office sponsored a workshop with

10

zoning -- notices of violation.

11

eye-opener, quite frankly,

12

things,

13

tried to figure out how we could help each other

14

improve the situation.

15

and we heard lots of

some of them critical.

We h

And it was an

And we really

d the workshop because from our

16

perspective we thought it would be helpful to

17

talk about and upgrade the skills in terms of

18

investigations and what things could be done in

19

order to ensure that investigations wo

20

successful and more easily to prosecute against

21

a violator.

22

d be

My personal perception is that actu

ly

23

the -- while certainly improvements can be made

24

in the -- with regard to the zoning actions,

25

enforcements actions being -- that are under the
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1

jurisdiction of the Department of Planning and

2

its Zoning and Enforcement Division, it really

3

appeared that in terms of volume and in terms of

4

concern over processing, it was really -- it's

5

actually the DSA type of violations that, from

6

our office, need more focus and attention, and

7

these -- the DSA violations would be the

8

building permit type of violations.

9

have many more of them and many more difficult

10
11

They just

cases to deal with.
One thing I have done in terms of

12

management is we used to have one deputy

13

assigned to -- his assignment list said

14

enforcement actions until contested.

15

changed that in response to some of the things

16

we have heard from departments so that now I'm

17

encouraging the deputies that are assigned to a

18

particular department to work with that

19

department's enforcement branch and to field the

20

questions that they may pose, at least at the

21

initial stages of an investigation, because

22

there have been -- one of the complaints we

23

heard is that sometimes people were confused as

24

to which attorney they were supposed to talk to,

25

whether it was the attorney assigned to

I have
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1

enforcement actions or to the attorney that's

2

normally assigned to their department, et

3

cetera, et cetera.
I wanted to take advantage of the fact

4

5

that usually the deputies that are assigned to a

6

particular department, number one, have the

7

advantage of knowing the personnel.

8

them much more regula

9

much more familiar with the procedures -- or

They see

Secondly, t

y.

y're

10

tend to be, and they're also probably more

11

familiar with the basic laws that that

12

department has to deal with.
Now, we have still, however, stuck with

13
14

the procedure that where a notice of violation

15

gets to the point where it's going to be

16

contested -- in other words, where it's clear

17

t

18

going to fight the case.

19

transfer the matter to a litigator to take over

20

to represent the County in either -- in court or

21

in administrative hearings that may be -

22

that may occur

olator re

t either the

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR KANE:

ses to comply or is

In that instance, we

th regard to the

or

olation.

Ms. Tavares?
Thank you.

Thank you.
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Any further questions, Members, before

1

2

we move on?
Ms. Anderson.

3

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So Mr. Moto,

does that mean

5

that you wouldn't welcome an additional attorney

6

to focus on this issue?

7

MR. MOTO:

Actually, before you this -- for this

8

fiscal year budget is a new litigation position,

9

and the hope is my current litigators -- well,

10

quite frankly,

the assignments dealing with

11

enforcement actions are not a favored assignment

12

among litigators.

13

be.

I don't think they ever will

And part of it is that they have all

14
15

this other stuff to do and they -- you know, it

16

becomes a matter of well,

17

on first,

18

this new litigator, my hope is that at least it

19

will be easier to prosecute those cases where

20

there are serious violations or where the matter

21

has been outstanding for a long time so that we

22

can get some kind of closure and action on the

23

matter.

24
25

this,

"Which one do I work

that or the other t

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

ng?"

With

So I see that this position

is funded at the highest level,

so I'm assuming
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1
2

you're hoping to get an experienced litigator?
MR. MOTO:

Yes.

This brings up the memo of how do I

3

budget for these new expansion positions?

And

4

the reason why it's set at the highest level is

5

I can never tell when I recruit who is out there

6

and what kind of field we're going to have.

7

naturally I always try to look for someone who

8

is experienced, smart, talented.

9

to look for the best you can find,

And

You always try
and so I have

I already -- there is

10

to budget accordingly.

11

already a prospect, and it's only a prospect at

12

this point, who potentially is available for

13

this new position, and that person is already

14

senior -- so would be a person who would be at

15

the top level anyway.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So this position is not

17

going to relieve any of the workload in the

18

administrative section?

19

MR. MOTO:

Indirectly -- indirectly so, because you

20

see, up until fairly recently, a few years ago,

21

the admin attorney,

22

section attorneys,

23

with the enforcement actions from start to

24

finish.

25

didn't have the luxury of referring the case to

the advice and counseling
they used to have to deal

In other words,

they didn't -

they
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1

a litigator in the event that they had to fight

2

it.

3

taking it to court, if necessary.

4

They had -- they were responsible for

That was really tough and,

in my

5

opinion, it didn't work because,

first of all,

6

they were already overburdened and because many

7

of them did not have the experience of going to

8

court frequently and so they would often

9

hesitate and stumble to prosecute it if it meant

10

representing the County in front of an

11

administrative agency or filing complaints in a

12

court of law.

13

So,

in order to improve the ef

ciency

14

and relieve the admin section of that burden,

15

those duties were shifted to the litigation

16

section, but that means that now we have to beef

17

up the litigation section.

18

In terms of t

admin section, we just

19

hired a new person who is under trai

20

the new person is going to be assigned the

21

Department of Planning,

22

assignments, Mo10kai

23

do hope that at least in those areas,

24

be some relief.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

ng,

and

along with some other
anning Commission.

So I

there will

In which areas is that?
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1

MR. MOTO:

Anything -- oh, anything dealing in

2

particular with planning and economic

3

development issues, yes.
It should also frankly improve public

4

5

works and some of the commission work, because

6

some of the work that the new person is going to

7

be doing is work that was formerly done by other

8

deputies.

9

Because they're able to share the workload, now

10

they're able to devote more time to their other

11

clients.

12

You know, it has a domino effect.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So other than those areas

13

that you just mentioned, you feel that the admin

14

legal section is adequate?

15

MR. MOTO:

For now and given our present stage -- and

16

the reason why I say that is because our

17

department is going through quite a bit of

18

change.

19

expansion project has taken a great deal of time

20

and effort and it's going to really change,

21

think, the character of the department -- or has

22

the potential to do so,

23

issue and the space issues associated with it,

24

it's very time consuming, and we are trying to

25

kind of bring on board the new person.

You

ow, we're -- this relocation

I

so dealing with that
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I suspect that come next year or two

1

2

years from now, we will again be revisiting this

3

issue about staffing, especially in the advice

4

and counseling section.

5

hesitated to come forward to you to say,

6

need to add more bodies now," when I'm still in

7

the process of implementing some of the changes

8

that were started, you know,

9

year, and which you helped to fund.

It's just that I
"We

last year and this
I just

10

think that -- I think that the pace of change

11

has to be done in a way that we can handle and

12

manage.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

The reason I ask this,

14

Mr. Moto, is because the Council's Water

15

Resource Committee is having a very difficult

16

time getting assistance from your department.

17

We have many letters of request outstanding to

18

your department,

19

six months, nine months,

ars that we've received no response.

two

And it

20

makes it very difficult for us to do our work if

21

we don't get legal advice from the department,

22

and, you know, we get verbal promises but

23

nothing comes of it.

24
25

So,

I'm looking for some assurance that

that's going to change because it's making
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1

it's making it very hard for our committee to go

2

forward when we don't get response from our

3

legal counsel.

4

MR. MOTO:

Yes, I will follow up on that.
I will say that actually behind the

5

6

scenes, there's a lot of work that's being done

7

on water-related issues that don't necessarily

8

manifest themselves in your committee.

9

because -- for example, one of my litigators,

10

Jane Lovell, has been very involved in issues

11

before the State Water Commission, and I,

12

myself, have had to devote quite a bit of time

13

on water-related issues, not just before -

14

relating to the commission but outside of it as

15

well, so

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

MR. MOTO:

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON;

20

MR. MOTO:

22

Well, I can appreciate that

but --

18

21

And

Right.
-- those are --

So there are, like, three attorneys

currently working on water matters.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

But those issues are

23

more administrative needs and, you know, at the

24

Legislative Branch, we need as much assistance

25

as the Executive Branch.

And I'm just wondering
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1

do we need to hire special counsel for

2

committee so the Council can do the people's

3

business?

4

MR. MOTO:

o~r

There was -- I believe there was a

5

recommendation -- and I use that word carefully

6

because I don't know if it exactly took the form

7

of a recommendation -- that outside counsel be

8

considered with regard to the proposal to codify

9

the existing water supply rules and there are

10

as you know,

11

and --

12

there are many different rules

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah,

right,

that's

13

something we've been waiting two years for a

14

response to.

15
16
17

CHAIR KANE:

Excuse me, Ms. Anderson.

If you can let

Mr. Moto finish his comments, please.
MR. MOTO:

That counsel would have been retained by
Council to assist it in -- what I consi

r

18

t

19

to be a fairly important but time-consuming and

20

technically -- sometimes technically

21

work

job.

22

good i

a.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

fficult

I believe that that is still a

Ms. Anderson.
Well,

you know,

I would

appreciate maybe some assistance from you,
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1

Mr. Moto, in this because we've been promised

2

over and over again that -Sorry.

3

MR. MOTO:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We've been promised over and

5

over again that work was being done on this

6

particular issue that you just mentioned and, in

7

fact, we were promised that we would get

8

something by last August.

9

nothing.

We've received no written explanation.

10

Nothing.

It leaves us hanging.

11

very important issue for the Council to take on,

12

and if we can't get advice or counsel from you

13

folks,

14

counsel.

15

MR. MOTO:

And we've received

And this is a

then maybe we should hire special

I think it is worth considering on that

16

particular topic that I just talked about, which

17

is that legislative drafting and resea

18

project regardi

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON;

water rules.
But that doesn't solve the

20

problem with -- I mean we ve got -- we've

21

actually got four bills that we're waiting six

22

months for your department's review on so, you

23

know, maybe you could talk with the attorney on

24

staff that is advising us and see if his

25

workload is just too -

too full and maybe
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1

reassign it or get some recommendation from you

2

on how we can take care of this backlog, because

3

it leaves us really in limbo.

4

MR. MOTO:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

Yes.
Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
And as a follow-up for more general from

8

staff through Mr. Ginoza to Mr. Moto, I think

9

that's a question that needs to be posed on the

10

amount of work that's being dedicated to the

11

Executive Branch and the Legislative Branch and

12

see where we're at since Corporation Counsel is

13

tasked to serve both branches, and so we need to

14

understand that so that we can make policy

15

decisions on how we're going to get

16

in order to get the people's work done in a

17

legislative manner.

18
19

th~

service

Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Also, as a part of that

20

question, I believe we also had a discussion

21

when we were looking at charter amendments,

22

whether we should have attorneys that were

23

separate from administration, and I believe that

24

was one of the subjects that had been discussed

25
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And I can't remember what -- you know,

1

2

why that never moved forward or if there was not

3

enough support, but anyway, I

4

interesting to revisit that because of

5

workload.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

think it would be
t~e

Thank you very much.

7

Thank you, staff.

8

Members, any final questions for

9

10

Mr. Moto and his department?
If there are any questions, please make

11

sure those questions get forwarded.

12

we're going to be in decision-making within a

13

week or so, so we want to make sure we get final

14

questions before we're tasked with those

15

decisions.

16

Again,

Mr. Moto and -- First Deputy, I know

17

you're going to hang out with us, but Mr. Moto,

18

thank you very much for your time.

19

Members, we have the Prosecuti
We can either take a

Attorney's Of

21

break now and then come back and then just go

22

right through with Prosecuting Attorney, or we

23

can start and then probably interrupt our

24

movement on that.

25

ce

reo

20

What's the pleasure?

We'll take the break, Members?
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Okay.

1

We'll go ahead and break until

2

10:30, Members, so we have about 13 minutes.

3

Okay.

4

recess.

So 10:30, we'll reconvene.
(Gavel.)

5

RECESS:

10:16 a.m.

6

RECONVENE:

10:37 a.m.

7

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel. )

8

We're in

reconvened.

Okay.

Members, we're

Thank you for that morning break.

This morning we have with us the

9

10

Prosecuting Attorney's Office with our lead

11

Prosecutor, Ms. Davelyn Tengan, and First Deputy

12

Benjamin Acob.
Good morning, Ms. Tengan.

13
14

MS. TENGAN:

Good morning.

15

CHAIR KANE:

You have the floor and any opening

16
17
18
19

remarks.
MS. TENGAN:

Thank you very much, Mr. Ch

rman and

Members of the Council Committee.
Also with us today are -- on my extreme

20

right Narissa Hanley, who is my Administrative

21

Officer and is here in case we forget something,

22

she can help us with it.

23

I would just like to point out that, as

24

always, our budget is primarily that of

25

salaries.

In the Admin Section, it's almost
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1

70 percent of the total and in the General Pros,

2

it's a little more than 85 percent of the total.

3

The salient points of our budget this

4

year would be some increases in the area of

5

expenses, operating expenses and equipment.

6

I'll discuss the operating expenses and Mr. Acob

7

8

9

11 briefly discuss the equipment funding.
This year, as we did last year, we're
asking the Council for assistance in providing
The amount that

10

more County matching funds.

11

we're asking for this year are $264,504, which

12

represents an $18,404 increase from FY '06 and

13

that is in the Details at 15-7, and it's the

14

code number is 6316.

15

this is to provide matching funds for grants

16

which require matching County funds and to

17

supplement grant-funded programs whi

18

fully funded.

19

compensation for reduction in State fundi

20

the Victim Witness Assistants and t

21

State-mandated Career Criminal Prosecution

22

Program, the program attorney salary increases,

23

and HGEA bargaining unit salary increases, and

24

issues that arise due to a loss of federal

25

funding in what was pre

And this represents --

They incl

are not

such things as

ously known as the
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1

Local Law En

2

supplemented the Career Criminal Prosecution

3

Program.

4

rcement Block Grant which

Also, we are this year asking for a

5

rental for our One Main Plaza.

We are in

6

suite 530, which has four offices.

7

we have five investigators there and I'm moving

8

two attorneys from our appellate unit into that

9

office, so we're making very good use of the

I presently

10

space, but that amount is $54,600 and the

11

Details at 15-3 and the item number is 6235.

12

This year, we are also asking for

13

there is an increase in our repair and

14

maintenance services contracts of $6200 which

15

represents maintenance for Xerox and fax

16

machines that we have purchased.

17

the Details at 15-3, item number 6138.

And that is in

18

The next item -- our final item,

19

probably the most unusual for us, was my

20

into the budget a request for money for funding

21

on the item that Dr. Kepler testified for on the

22

sex assault -- for the sex assault on-call

23

doctor in the amount of $43,680, which is in the

24

Details at 15-7 and item number 6112.

25

tting

And I think that Dr. Kepler spoke, you
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

68
BF 4/13/06
1

know, very eloquently on the need for the item,

2

and the bottom line is really that we are a part

3

of a response team for members of the Maui

4

community who are the victims of sexual assault,

5

whether they be children, adult females,

6

males, young boys, whatever.

7

is -- it's very important to us and it

8

represents our -- you know, our wanting to

9

provide basic medical care.

adult

And this item

10

Now, Dr. Kepler and the services that

11

this physician would provide would be, OP the

12

one hand,

13

of prosecution, but it also -- and maybe more

14

importantly to the individual, provides for the

15

basic medical care, because many of these

16

children, adults who are the subject of sexual

17

assault,

18

the least of which is transmission of sexual

19

diseases.

20

physical i

21

often, it's just Dr. Kepler's

22

him that we hope to have in the future -- the

23

calmness, the caring and the counsel that

24

Dr. Kepler and his assistant provide for.

25

forensic examination for the purpose

they have very, very many concerns, not

Sometimes they require care for their
uries, if they have them.

And I

And very

- and people like

will let Mr. Acob address the
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1
2
3

issue of the equipment.
MR. ACOB:

Good morning, Mr. Chair and Council

members.
I will be speaking about the request for

4

5

vehicles, which consists of replacing two

6

vehicles that we have right now and also a new

7

vehicle purchase.
Just so you have a background of the

8
9

vehicles that we have, let me just go back about

10

a couple years ago.

11

vehicles were breaking down so many times that

12

we got together and asked ourselves, "There's

13

got to be a vehicle replacement policy somewhere

14

in the County or in the State or wherever we can

15

find it."

16

County of Maui, which is for sedans, station

17

wagons, vans, pickup trucks,

18

100,000 miles.

19

even more restrictive policy, which is six

20

years,

21

Federal, it's three years and 60,000 miles.

22

A couple years ago, our

And we did find a policy for the

seven years or

For State agencies, they do have

60,000 miles for sedans.

And for the

Well, a couple of our vehicles right

23

now -- or three of our vehicles, one is a 1991

24

Chevy Blazer that is being replaced, and the

25

other one is a 1995 Chevy Corsica, which, you
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1

know, during the latest heavy rain that we had

2

was flooded,

3

not even locate where the leak is located.

4

using his words to me,

5

now," so it's

6

right now.

7

intermittently cannot open the driver's side

8

door.

9

cannot.

and our maintenance person could
And

"It's full of mold right

- it presents a health concern

And then the 1991 Chevy Blazer, it

Sometimes you can open it.

Sometimes you

And so definitely it's also a safety

10

concern because the investigators that use them

11

may need to get into it quickly or may need to

12

get out of it quickly sometimes, and that's a

13

concern.
We do have also a 1995 Explorer which is

14
15

the -- of those three,

that's the best one,

16

although we can't sometimes open the rear door,

17

so it's useless to transport evidence that are

18

pretty long.

19

we have

20

used in a terroristic threatening case, you

21

could not use that vehicle to transport it.

22

of course, as you can see,

23

these vehicles, it's -- they're way past

24

their -- they should have been replaced many

25

years ago.

For example, I know that sometimes

dence that are long spears sometimes

just by the age of
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And of course these vehicles are

1

2

critical to carry out our mission.

The

3

investigators use them daily for -- to transport

4

evidence from the Police Department to court and

5

back to the Police Department, serve subpoenas,

6

interview witnesses, do follow-up investigation,

7

our victim witness counselors use them to

8

interview the victims, and the attorneys use

9

them to visit crime scenes and also interview
I myself attend a lot of meetings

10

witnesses.

11

and I do use those cars, so those vehicles are

12

critical to our mission.
Thank you very much.

13
14
15

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tengan, anything further before we

stop for Q&A?

16

MS. TENGAN:

No.

17

CHAIR KANE:

o

Members, we're in general fund
I'd like to walk you

18

under administration.

19

folks through the administration pro

20

Are there any questions in the A, B or C Account

21

of admi

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

am first.

stration, Members?
Question.

Yes, Mr. Hokama,

followed by Mr. Molina.

Under your footnotes, we

understand CBA to be collective bargaining
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1

agreement.

Can you explain what salary increase

2

and what executive order on your position for

3

law office manager and victim witness director?

4

MS. TENGAN:

What page?

5

CHAIR KANE:

15-2 of your Details.

6

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

MS. TENGAN:

If I may answer?

8

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tengan.

9

MS. TENGAN:

Yes.

Thank you, Chairman.

I believe with regard to the

10

victim witness director, did you ask about that

11

or just the law office manager?

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Both.

13

MS. TENGAN:

With regard to --

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

MS. TENGAN:

Okay.

By executive order.

With regard to the victim witness

16

director, I believe that there was an executive

17

order and her salary would be raised at

18

month commencing in January.

19

and I believe, although I could be mistaken,

20

that that also related to the law office

21

manager, who she is an exempt appoint employee.

22
23
24
25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

~93

a

th regard to

So I'm still not understanding

why was the increase by executive order.
MS. TENGAN:

I really am not sure what that

the reason would be for that, either.
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1
2
3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is this a new person in this

position?
HS. TENGAN:

No.

Both of these persons have been

4

there for years.

The law office manager has

5

been an employee of the department ever since

6

the first prosecutor was introduced into the

7

county.

8

she's probably the oldest employee

9

chronologically but in terms of service, and the

She served every prosecutor here, so
- not

our

10

victim witness director has probably been

11

office I believe probably more than eleven

12

years,

13

and get back to you on what the executive order.

14

And I'd be happy to do that as quickly as I

15

could after this.

so I would really have to research that

16

CHAIR KANE:

Hr. Hokama?

17

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

just -

19

HS. TENGAN:

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

22
23

24
25

That would be appreciated.

I

Thank you.
-- have not seen one of these

ever.
CHAIR KANE:

Staff will get that question out.
Thank you, Hr. Hokama.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I can wait, Chairman.

Hy

questions are in general -- general prosecution.
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2
3

Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Any questions in administration,

Mr. Molina?
Again, I'm just trying to cover -- we'll

4

5

be very deliberate in going through programs.

6

That way we don't have to go back-track and

7

flipping pages allover the place.

8
9

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Detail 15-7.
CHAIR KANE:

14

Okay.

We'll get there in a moment.

Thank you.
Any questions in admin, Mr. Pontanilla?

12
13

My question was related to

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yes, this is in regards to

15-3 line item 6110, computer services.

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

sorry.

What page again, Mr. Pontanilla?

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15-3.

Three, thank you.
This is for computer

20

services, the increase of $14,000.

21

explain?

22

MS. TENGAN:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

line item 6110.

25

MS. TENGAN:

I'm

If you can

That was 15-3?

Yes.

Yeah.

Detail sheet 15 3,

That represents the -- just where
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1

a maintenance fee of $14,000 that previously was

2

in the General Pros section of our budget in

3

FY '06.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

5

MS. TENGAN:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR KANE:

10

So just a move?

Yes.
Thank you.

Thank you.
Any more questions in this area?

8
9

Okay.

Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Help me recall, please, Ms. Tengan, the

11

12

main difference between an administrative

13

manager and a law office manager is what,

14

please?

15
16

MS. TENGAN:

Well, the law office manager is the

head -- well, assists the Prosecutor and the

17

rst Deputy in all functions and is also the

18

head clerical person, so is the supervisor of

19

all of the clerical workers.

20

The administrative officer is the

21

position that Ms. Hanley has now and which

22

Mr. Wayne Steel used to have,

23

handle a lot of all the personnel issues

24

relating to benefits, any issues with payroll,

25

assisting, you know,

and they really

the employees

all
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1

employees in whatever personnel issues they may

2

have.

3

the grant writing as well as grant management

4

functions, as well as every other functiun that,

5

you know, when the paint is peeling and the AC

6

is not working, that's the person that handles

7

all of those things.

8
9

And it is also the person who does all of

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We'll welcome your new addition

to your department.

10

MS. TENGAN:

And she's doing great.

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

MS. TENGAN:

Thank you.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you very much.

Ms. Tengan, you know,

14

just

th2t area

15

on 15-3 where Mr. Pontanilla asked, there's a

16

couple of points where -- now, in this area

17

you've actually had an overall decrease in your

18

request from last year, specifically t

19

in maintenance repair service contracts to zero.

20

Right above that, you have R&M Services

21

contracts.

22

change.

23

the question, you had the increase of 14 but

24

right under that, under contracted services, you

25

halved your fund there.

25,000

That's an increase of 7,000 and some

And then where Mr. Pontanilla asked you
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1

2

give us or an overriding explanation to this

3

area where you're having some increases in areas

4

and decreases in others?

5

MS. TENGAN:

Well--

6

CHAIR KANE:

Shifting the money around?

7

MS. TENGAN:

Yes.

Yes.

Sometimes expenses have been
Sometimes

8

taken from or been put into admin.

9

we're moving things into the General Pros area.

10

In some areas, there are simply just more

11

increases.
For example, in 6129, other services

12

It was for the

13

went from 1,000 to 16,000.

14

archiving of our documents in Honolulu, but

15

where,

16

maintenance, others, where there was a $25,000

17

expense in FY '06 down to zero, that was $25,000

18

that t

19

carpeting of our office, and which we had done

20

so, that was -- you know,

that was not an

21

expense that was renewed,

so it's that type of

22

thing.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Great.

24

MS. TENGAN:

Thank you.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Appreciate your explanation.

for example, in 6139, repairs and

Council gave us last year for

Thank you.
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And then finally,

1

just in the

- where

2

you explained the One Main Plaza amount on that

3

same page, there was a doubling of the

4

publication and subscriptions line from eight to

5

16,000.

6

MS. TENGAN:

Any comments there?
Yes.

Our bookkeeper has noted a cost

7

increase in our books and subscriptions, and

8

these are usually books like "Child

9

Maltreatment" which will give a lot of

10

educational information as well as photographs

11

that we need in order to compare what injuries

12

we are seeing in our cases with what is in the

13

books.

14

that is increasing, and my bookkeeper has

15

indicated to me that already our costs for this

16

year, FY '06, are already close to 16,000.

17

CHAIR KANE:

And the present cost -- it's just a cost

Okay.

k you very much.

Members, the general prosecution

18
19

program, Mr. Mol

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

a?
Yes.

ank you, Chairman.

My question relates to the contractual

21
22

services for the sexual assault physician on

23

call.

24

MS. TENGAN:

Yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Do you foresee this as a -- I
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guess, over the long-term as a yearly request

2

because I'm -- I'm just trying to take a guess.

3

Have sexual assaults increased over the last

4

several years?

5

MS. TENGAN:

Actually,

the reports are -- the

6

incidents of examinations have been decreasing

7

for some reason that we, you know, are not sure

8

of what it is.

9

really doubt myself that it's a decrease of the

10

incidents of sexual assaults, perhaps there are

11

issues with reporting.

There have always been

12

issues with reporting.

Sometimes when we're not

13

successful in a trial, other people see that and

14

they're not

15

So no,

We don't know if it's -- I

lling to go through that.
I don't

yes, there have been a

16

reduction in actual examinations and reports

17

corning up, but I don't -- and those of us who

18

work in the area of sexual assault,

19

the Children's Justice Center

20

police do not really believe that that factor or

21

that number reflects reality.

22

including

Dr. Kepler,

I

I do anticipate that this

do
11 probably

23

be a yearly request because we've been

24

struggling with this

25

part of a memorandum of understanding with the

those agencies that are
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Children's Justice Center, which includes

2

police, child welfare, Dr. Kepler,

3

judiciary, ourselves, Maui Police Department

4

have been struggling with how to pay for these

5

things.
Police take some of it.

6

the

Dr. Kepler's

7

salary, as Ms.

Johnson noted earlier, is,

I

8

guess,

9

$100 to the -- I'm sorry, not -- I'm sorry,

250 or 350, but from that he gives,

like,

10

Ms.

Johnson, Ms. Anderson, Councilmember

11

Anderson -

12

gives $100 to his assistant and the assistant is

13

the female who is actually the part of the team

14

that comforts, counsels all the sexual assault

15

victims with Dr. Kepler.

16

pay that part.

but from that salary, Dr. Kepler

So,

And we really did sit down,

17
18

Dr. Kepler indicated

19

is the head of

20

really thought,

21

this?"

22

just said,

23

Council members about it."

24
25

you know, police

-

as

or as Pat Singsank, who

e Children's Justice Center, we
"Where can we get the money for

And there was nobody to step up,

so I

"I'll try it and I ' l l talk to the

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you,

Okay.

Thank you.

Chairman.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Any questions in this area, Members?

2
3

6

No

questions?
Yes.

4

5

Thank you.

Right here, Ms. Johnson, did you

have a question, followed by Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, and I apologize if my

7

memory is not serving me correctly, but I

8

believe Judge Baxa had come earlier -- and

9

because we're looking at the operations side, I

10

wondered -- I think a law clerk or somebody to

11

assist -- when we were looking at the EP counts,

12

that was one of the areas that, you know,

13

although it wasn't in your budget, I had

14

requested what would the cost be.

15

taken a look at that?

16

MS. TENGAN:

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Have you

Yes.
And, you know, if you would

18

be able to provide that with us -- provide us

19

with that and then also if there's any cost

20

associated

21

administrative

th that,

22

MS. TENGAN:

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

24
25

that wo

d be an

Yes.
Or not administrative but I

guess in your operations.
MS. TENGAN:

We did take a look at that pursuant to
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Council request.

2

request and did send back our response.

3

what we determined -- we did find a job

4

description and determined that the cost would

5

be -- actually, I'm sorry.

6

that document.

9

And

I don't seem to have

It was in the area of 36 or $37,000 and

7

8

We did receive that written

I think this was an SR-20 or so.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And then with regard to your

10

actual operations or any of the other costs that

11

would be associated with that, would you be able

12

to say that any of these costs that you've

13

projected would increase or would it just be

14

strictly in the salary of that indi

15
16
17

MS. TENGAN:

dual?

No, it would be just salary and I guess

then the

the fringe benefits.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, I would be looking

18

would they need a computer, would they need,

19

know, a desk or equipment or any other things,

20

because when I'm looking at it,

21

to make sure that we -- if we do -- or if the

22

Members do look at that, what would it do to the

23

other areas.

24
25

MS. TENGAN:

I kind ot want

No furniture, no equipment.

space in the office.

you

We have

Since we have moved some
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people up to One Main Plaza, we have a room in

2

the back where I now have three desks and one --

3

that person could be situated there, which would

4

be actually very close to the appeals section,

5

so no furniture would be necessary.

6

would be necessary and so possibly it would be a

7

computer and maybe a laptop that we use would be

8

$14,000 and I think we have the software, so

9

that would not be an added cost and -

10
11
12

sorry.

$1,400, $1,400.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

A computer

I'm

I'm so sorry.

I was going to say, boy,

that's an expensive computer.

13

MS. TENGAN:

It sure is.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I'd like that.
So basically that would add

15

just to your equipment section then about

16

$1,400?

17

MS. TENGAN:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you.
Mr. Hokama?

20
21

Yes.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I was just trying to get a good

22

feel for this request on the child advocacy

23

program.

24

hour per doctor and he wants three doctors

25

besides himself on this?

Dr. Kepler is asking five dollars an
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MS. TENGAN:

No,

just it would be one doctor.

He's

2

just trying to -

3

potentially, but it would be only one doctor at

4

a time.

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

he has three people who are

Okay.

Thank you for that

clarification.
I wanted to ask you,

7

Prosecutor, is

8

you show on -- I think this is still General

9

Prosecution.

You zeroed out the Edward Byrne

10

Grant on page 15 12 and on 15 dash

11

take that back.
Yeah,

12

- wait.

I

you've added one Byrne Community

13

Prosecution of 15-12 at the top of the page.

14

the bottom of the page,

15

Byrne Grant -- Justice Grant.

16

thing just done differently or is this two

17

different things and one is being

18

MS. TENGAN:

At

you deleted an Edward
Is this the same

scontinued?

They're two different things.

The top

19

of the page,

the Byrne Community Prosecution

20

Grant is our community prosecution grant.

21

still have money available for that and if I can

22

find the appropriate person to continue that

23

program -- I did have to take that person out of

24

the community and put her back into the

25

courtroom because we had a shortage of people.
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Just there was nothing else I could do.
However, every year Congress goes

2
3

through trying to reduce funds in some areas to

4

put them into other areas.

5

they looked very closely at trying to reduce is

6

law enforcement related monies, and Edward Byrne

7

Grant is one of those that historically every

8

year the Congress tries to reduce and/or

9

eliminate.

And one of the areas

Actually, in the last couple of

10

years, although Congress was not successful in

11

completely eliminating it, the funds have been

12

gradually decreasing each year.
So at -- the Byrne Community Prosecution

13
14

Grant is -- itself or was in maybe the end of -

15

in FY '05 supposed to be a thing of the past and

16

then Congress was going to come up

17

other Edward

18

justice

19

type -- same type of funding and they called it

20

the JAG Grant.

21

funds for -- already for FY '07, which we

22

hopefully will still be able to use, and we're

23

looking at getting Justice Assistance Grant.

25

rne Justice Assistant Grant, a

- sort of another name

mistake,

r a different

And so we got our Community Pros

This actually, however,

24

th this

is -

it's a

though, this Justice Assistance Grant
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because it's just -- it's just a mistake because

2

we do actually have a grant of $89,000 from

3

that is a Justice Assistant Grant that part of

4

which we'll use for complying with federal law,

5

which requires us to make our services available

6

to persons of limited English proficiency.

7

we're working now on translating our documents

8

into various languages as well as put aside

9

agencies that have anything to do with any

So

1

10

federal funding have to comply with this and do

11

this.
So that's what we're using part of that

12

funding for,

14

will be for our use in juvenile crime prevention

15

but

16

can't say why that mistake was made.

17

and the other part of the

ng

13

- so this is a mistake and,

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza,

18

provi

19

writing, please?
11.

MR. GINOZA:

Yes f

21

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

I

Mr. Hokama?

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

Mr. Chairman.

25

if you can assist in

ng us a corrective -- a correction in

20

22

I'm sorry, I

Thank you for that request,

Can you just give us some brief
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comment -- we notice that the Hawaii Community

2

Foundation Grant will not be continued as well

3

as the Sex Offender Registry Program will not be

4

continued with funding -- grant funding.

5

you maybe share some comments what's going on

6

with those two programs, please?

7

MS. TENGAN:

Yes.

Can

The Sex Offender Registry Program

8

was monies that we got through a -- actually, it

9

was federal grant funding in the manner of

10

Edward Byrne Grant funding which came through

11

the Department of the Attorney General for the

12

State of Hawaii.

13

hea

14

offenders -- public registration -- public

15

notification of registered sex offenders, which

16

was the way the law read the year prior to the

17

last.

18

do not need to have that hearing, so that's why

19

that was eliminated because we didn't need the

20

money after all because the law changed and now

21

certain registered sex offenders information are

22

put on public access on the Internet,

23

why that fund is zeroed out.

It was to enable us to do

ngs to seek registration of sex

Last year the law was changed.

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Now, we

so that's

Thank you.

Excuse me.

And I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama,
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know you're jumping into the grant revenue and

2

we didn't provide Prosecuting Attorney --

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

I'm sorry.

any opening remarks in that area, so

5

that's why if we can just finish up in the

6

General Prosecution General Fund area and then

7

we can move onto grant revenue, where the

8

Prosecuting Attorney can give us opening

9

remarks, too, just defining any changes.

10
11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

CHAIR KANE:

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

CHAIR KANE:

16

I'll follow

your lead.

12

15

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you.
Thank you.

Appreciate it.

Members, any other -

Mr. Pontanilla, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah.

Just a

17

clarification in regards to vehicles.

18

Mr. Acob mentioned the type of vehicles t

19

were going to be replaced, and it seems like t

20

replacement will be SUVs and they're going to be

21

purchasing SUVs?

22

MR. ACOB:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

MR. ACOB:

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I know

That is correct, sir.
Okay.

Thank you.

Those are also hybrid vehicles.
Hybrid vehicles?
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MR. ACOB:

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

8

9

Okay.

Ms. Tavares?
Yeah.

Thank you.

Following up on the vehicles, you mean

5
6

Yes.

hybrid or you mean biodiesel?
MR. ACOB:

I believe it's hybrid.

That was the term

that was given to us by the Managing Director.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, because I think we need

10

to look into those hybrid vehicles a little bit

11

more.

12

industry reports that are coming out, not just

13

people writing

14

maintenance on these vehicles because of the

15

replacement for batteries and such.

16

There have been reports -- and it's

- regarding the

gh cost of

But I know that the Jeep Liberty that

17

you folks have in your budget does come in a

18

model that's a diesel model that can use

19

biodiesel

20

using biodiesel.

21

our County into that whole use of biodiesel, but

22

depending upon whether or not the fuel can be

23

supplied for biodiesel fleets.

24
25

If so you may want to check on
And hopefully, we would move

So maybe Mr. Ginoza,

you can check on

the availability of biodiesel fuel on Maui for
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such a vehicle, and, you know, I would applaud

2

the County moving in that direction to look at

3

the biodiesel fuel vehicles.
Thank you.

4

5

CHAIR KANE:

And I'll just do a brief follow up.

The

6

Jeep Liberty is

- and I'll go double-check

7

because I have friends at that dealership, but

8

Jeep Liberty, I

9

They do have the biodiesel component as Member

don't believe, has a hybrid.

10

Tavares talks about which, you know, we have

11

that facility here.

It must be my mistake.

12

MR. ACOB:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

So we'll

No problem.

No problem.

We just wanted

to clarify.
But the other point I wanted to make for

15
16

Member Tavares is we should also ask with our

17

mechanics in our garage to make sure that the

18

bio

19

concerns from some of the mechanics regarding

20

the maintenance on vehicles that are being run

21

with the biodiesel.

esel

because there have been some

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

So we need to -- we need to have some

24

analysis there as well before we commit

25

everything into the biodiesel.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Right.

It's been very good but we're getting

3

some reports that there's some mixed feelings

4

about it, and whether it is a personal

5

preference or whether it is actual factual data

6

we're getting, we need to get that figured out,

7

so we'll ask that question and get it back to

8

us.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Just a comment in regards

12

to vehicles themselves.

13

with one type of vehicle because, you know, we

14

do our own repair work, and if we have, you

15

know,

16

you're talking about training and possibly, I

17

guess, having the vehicles returned back to the

18

If we could probably go

too many different models and makes, then

eld would be a problem.

So if we can go

th

19

one type of vehicles or one make

20

and model but one company that supplies all the

21

vehicles.

22

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
I'm sorry.

23

Mr. Ginoza, you had a

comment that you wanted to rna
MR. GINOZA:

not one make

?

I just had a comment for Ms. Tavares.
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believe within the price structure that is

2

available to the departments, there is that

3

option of the biodiesel.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Further questions in the General Fund

5
6

A, B, C Accounts for General Prosecution,

7

Ms. Anderson?

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

Thank you, Chair.

Ms. Tengan, I just wanted some
In your opening comments -- this

10

clarification.

11

would be on 15-7, you made -- you made reference

12

to State cuts in the Witness -- in the Witness

13

Victim Pro

14

mean is this something that the State would

15

normally pay and now we're having to pick up the

16

ball?

17

MS. TENGAN:

am.

What kind of State cuts?

I

Well, usually the federal grant funds

18

that come from the VOCA funds and VAWA funds

19

that come from some of our programs are funneled

20

through t

21

and every year those

22

reduction, you know, along the lines of

23

5 percent or so, and so that's been happening,

24

you know, every year for the last several years.

25

So that's what we're talking about, is just the

Department of the Attorney General,
deral funds undergo a
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reductions in the federal grant funds that are

2

available, you know,

3

you know,

4

Byrne Grant decreases.

5

in the manner of -- but,

a little more subtle than the Edward

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

That's so disturbing

6

that our federal government is not putting the

7

priority on that, and so I think it's worthy

8

that we pick it up.

9

MS. TENGAN:

Thank you.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Further questions in this area, Members,

12

Ms. Tavares?

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah.

Along the same lines

14

on the State grants,

that we're seeing a

15

reduction each year in the State grants that

16

come to the County and is it along the same

17

lines as this 5 percent decrease kind of

18

business?

19

MS. TENGAN:

Yeah, but larger, much larger.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

MS. TENGAN:

22

funds,

sometimes these federal grants take two

23

forms.

Sometimes they just come through a big

24

chunk of money,

25

started this job maybe,

Larger?

Yes, because the Edward Byrne Grant

like $4 million.

That's when I

you know, three years
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ago, it was in the area of, like, $4 million

2

available to the whole State and various

3

agencies.

4

to less than $2 million because of Congress'

5

budget cuts and reallocations of focus,

6

yes.

7

It's -- you know, it's decreased now

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I guess,

So the one you just

8

described, the Byrne's Grant, that's a federal

9

program?
It's federal but --

10

MS. TENGAN:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

State?

13

MS. TENGAN:

Administered through the

Yes, administered through the State and

14

then sometimes there will be what's called a

15

local pass-through, and that local pass-through

16

has also been decreasing.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And are there any non-federal

18

funds that the State gives grants to that you

19

qualify for or has it all been money from the

20

federal government coming through the St&te?

21
22
23
24
25

MS. TENGAN:

Yes, they don't have -- not that I'm

aware, no, State funds.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

So the statements you

made were in reference to federal funding?
MS. TENGAN:

Yes, because even if we get any money
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any State funds we get will come through the

2

Attorney General's Office and that usually is

3

comes through some sort of federal funding with

4

the exception of the grant that Councilm2n

5

Hokama earlier noticed, the Hawaii Community

6

Grant Foundation, which I didn't complete

7

talking about.

8
9

That was actually -- I don't know where
they actually get -- I think that is a federal

10

source as well, but it was monies that was

11

coming out through the Hawaii Community

12

Foundation to basically fight drugs.

13

plan at that time -

14

$180,000 but that would have required us -- and

15

they wanted,

16

new prosecutor, and that money with the sala

17

and the fringe and everything, boy, that -- it

18

really takes up 180,000 in no time.

19

have funded,

20

prosecutor and then we would have had to decide

21

what to do with that prosecutor.

And so my

because they had money for

you know, basically for us to get a

It would

like, a year and a half or two of a

22

And eventually the decision, and the

23

reason that we decided not to go for it was,

24

because of that vacancy -- that series of

25

vacancies we had where if I couldn't even put
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people in our County-funded position,

2

couldn't, you know, allocate somebody to that

3

other position.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR KANE:

I

Thank you.

Thank you.

6

Any further questions?

7

Ms. Tengan, if you could please, why

8

don't you give us some ope

ng remarks in the

9

grant revenue section of your budget?

10

MR. GINOZA:

I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, may I?

11

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, Mr. Ginoza.

12

MR. GINOZA:

I wanted to point out -- and I didn't

13

know what the body's direction would be but, you

14

know,

15

for computer services that's related to

16

Prosecutors of 35,000.

17

wanted to discuss this at this point or to

18

discuss this

19
20
21

if you go to page 9-16,

there's entries

So I didn't know if you

the MIS budget, but the request

r the expenditure is from the Prosecutor so I
thought maybe we should discuss it
CHAIR KANE:

reo

The preference is, Members, it may be

22

more bene

cial for us to have the Department of

23

Management explain since it's all under their

24

department for them to provide the general

25

explanation.

And if there are any specific
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questions, then we can also have comment written

2

back from the Prosecutor or, in this case,

3

Planning, Department of Transportation, which

4

again, we've kind of passed for Planning as

5

well, so we'll just stick with it where it is

6

and then when we get to it, we'll cover it.

7

MR. GINOZA:

Thank you.

8

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tengan, grant -- grant revenues.

9

MS. TENGAN:

Thank you.

10

Well, as always, we continue to try to

11

seek additional funds where appropriate, and in

12

the last year,

13

regard to taking advantage of, as I say, the

14

community -- Hawaii Community Foundation Grant

15

in light of other staffing -- staffing issues.

16

Byrne Community Grant Prosecution and,

the challenge has been with

17

you know,

other of

shoots of that continues to

18

be our largest source of funding for some

19

programs; however, VOCA and VAWA fe

20

are really our largest source of funding in

21

terms of funding victim witness assistance

22

programs and our State-mandated Career Criminal

23

Unit, which consists of three high level or

24

senior attorneys and two clerical that assist

25

those attorneys.

ral funding
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Domestic Violence Investigations

2

Program, you will note a decrease in that, and

3

that is because we hired a new person in that

4

area who has a lower salary than the prior

5

attorney -

6

is the reason for that.

7

I mean prior investigator,

S0

that

We continue with our Food Stamp Fraud

8

Prosecution Program, and Local Law Enforcement

9

Block Grants Program, which you will see on
That's a grant

10

15-10, is no longer available.

11

program that was actually eliminated federally.

12

The Prosecutor's Training Program in the

13

amount of 50,000 somewhat ties into our asset

14

forfeiture -- oh,

15

The Prosecutor's Training Program is the amount

16

that we put in there to reflect an amount that

17

we feel might be necessary for training of our

18

attorneys.

19

new attorneys in the district court and t

20

are -- I'm trai

21

training,

22

afternoon myself in court,

23

introduce evidence, as well as mainland

24

programs,

25

which are paid for by other types of grants.

I'm sorry,

As of this time,

I take that back.

I have five brand
y

ng them by way of in-house

one of which I'm conducting this
teaching

some of which we pay for,

em how to

some of

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

99
BF 4/13/06
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1

2

prosecutors, I'll send him in May to a training

3

in Dallas on OUI, operating under the influence,

4

and that's being paid for by a grant that's

5

coming through the Police Department.

6

will pay hardly anything of that.

7

almost every type of cost associated with that.
But we do

8
9

So we

They pay

I do have a real priority

on training of attorneys and we do that, as I

10

say, in a number of ways both by mainland

11

trainings, with other prosecutors as well as in

12

office.

13

to the mainland, they come back and they give a

14

training for the entire office, so that's how we

15

try to make our -- you know, get more bang for

16

our buck.

17

And when I send somebody on a training

The Sex Offender Registry Program, as I

18

say, is no longer nee

19

zeroed out.

20

d.

That's why that is

The Special Needs Advocacy program is a

21

program federally funded by VOCA funds.

22

we're now in our -- still in our '03 funds.

23

will be applying for '04 funds,

24

for several of our victim witness counselors.

25

I think

but that pays

And I think I'll turn it over for
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2
3

questioning at this point.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Tengan, just two questions.

rst, you're using the term VOCA, is that an

4

acronym and just to be clear on what you're

5

stating?

I heard you said VOCA funds.

6

MS. TENGAN:

Yes.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Is that an acronym?

8

MS. TENGAN:

That is.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Can you be clear on that then for the

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19

Members?
MS. TENGAN:

Yes.

Do you want me to explain what

that is?
R KANE:

Please,

just briefly.

Just give us

what they mean.
MS. TENGAN:

I've always also used VAWA, which is the

Violence Against Women's Act, and VOCA is the
ctims of Crime Act.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you ve

much.

The other question, I thi

Mr. Hokama

20

had from a previous discussion -

and just for

21

clarity, all premium pay is zeroed out for all

22

the grant programs.

23

that's paid for any of the employees in this

24

area out of -

25

their workloads or they're just basically the

Is there any overtime

out of General Fund to cOver
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2
3

eight to four scena
MS. TENGAN:

o?

The attorneys -- there's very little

overtime paid to the persons in these areas.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

5

MS. TENGAN:

The overtime is basically the clerical.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

7
8
9

Thank you.

Questions, open, Members, Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

One of the questions I have

and I think you talked about, you know, where

10

you can get some kind of recovery of funGs under

11

different circumstances.

12

like when you get assets, like seizure of assets

13

or whatever, when somebody's involved in a

14

crime.

15

I guess it would be

One of the questions that has been

16

bugging me,

17

many times we, as government, incur all these

18

expenses,

19

I guess,

for a long time is that so

your expenses, travel time, everything

se, and I know that in your case the

ctims

20

are the ones that really should be gettipg the

21

settlement and the assistance and all of that,

22

but a lot of these people do have insurance

23

policies.

24

damage to property of others,

25

covered under general liability policies that

Some of them might be covered under
some of them are
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they purchase or even personal policies,

2

guess,

I

for liability.
Do we ever try to go after collection,

3
4

at least of our expenses, with relation to a

5

prosecution and go after the insurance company

6

to actually recover those costs to subrogate?

7

MS. TENGAN:

No, we don't go in for subrogation with

8

insurance companies.

The only cost that we have

9

really ever really gone after in a prosecution

10

has been extradition costs, and that's not very

11

often either, but -- but that's when it does

12

occur.

13

is no.

14

Generally, if -- no, no,

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah.

so the answer

And would there ever

15

be the possibility of getting any kind of a

16

settlement from any insurance that these

17

individuals might have irrespective of anything

18

that goes to the victims?

19

MS. TENGAN:

I would have to -- I haven't really
I'd really have to talk to

20

thought of that.

21

Mr. Moto.

22

haven't ever thought of that.

23

I -

one,

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I don't know

Well,

I really

you know, maybe that

24

would be something to just even -- if Mr. Moto

25

or yourself could just explore what the limits
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of coverage are and whether there is any

2

likelihood, because most of these,

3

simply you present a bill and then it's a

4

reimbursement.

5

people always have that kind of coverage.

I don't know,

it's just

though,

that

But because I used to work in insurance,

6
7

we would get bills for all kinds of things,

8

know,

9

think it's -- when you're creating an incident

that I would see.

And so for me,

you

I just

10

that is a cost,

and this is all taxpayer money,

11

I think that if there is any mechanism that we

12

can recover that cost through legitimate means,

13

then we should go after it.

14

presenting a bill to an insurance company,

15

doesn't take away from the victim,

16

really important that we try and explore it.

17

I have friends in insurance,

18

them the same question.

And if it's
that

I think it's

too, and I'll ask

19

MS. TENGAN:

Okay.

20

CHAIR KANE:

Further questions in the grant revenue

Thank you.

21

area?

22

interrupting your line of questioning,

23

wanted to give the Prosecutor a chance to

24

provide opening remarks.

25

And Mr. Hokama,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So

No,

I apologize for
I

thank you, Chairman.
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the Prosecutor has had very good remarks

2

regarding the grants.

3

all others have provided their questions, I just

4

have two general questions for the Prosecutor

5

and I'm happy to wait until that time, Chairman.

6

CHAIR KANE:

recognize Mr. Hokama?
Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.

9

10
11

Thank you very much.

Any other questions, Members, before I

7

8

Okay.

I .would just -- ask after

Go

ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Quickly to the

12

Prosecutor, I was trying to understand your

13

Deputy's response.

14

-- because this goes back to the vehicles,

15

evidentiary protocol.
It's stored at our Police Department

16
17

Can you share with us on the

dence Room and you or a deputy of yours would
evidence from t

18

then go and get t

19

facility and physically take it to the courtroom

20

for the specific case?

21

MS. TENGAN:

police

Usually the investigator will pick up

22

the evidence.

Our prosecutors are supposed to

23

go down to the Police Department to view the

24

evidence, but yes,

25

recover evidence at crime scenes and so forth.

starting back, yes, police
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They store it in their facility.

2

pretty intricate logging system and storing

3

system.

4

it to our office where we then lock it in our

5

1907 vault in the building here, which is

6

getting a little small, and then we take it

7

physically to court.

And then we pick up the evidence, bring

Our prosecutors and our investigators

8
9

They have a

together take it to court where it's then

10

entered into evidence, where it then becomes

11

part of the court's responsibility until it's

12

referred

13

after an appeal or so forth,

14

in time we ultimately return it to the Police

15

Department.

16

returned to us at the end of a case,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

and at which point

So the actual evidence and

17

documentation is stored at three

18

places during the whole case -- history of the

19

case?

20

MS. TENGAN:

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

Yes.
From the Police Department to

your department to the court?

23

MS. TENGAN:

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

differe~t

Yes.
And then back to the police,

that's the cycle?
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MS. TENGAN:

Yes.

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So the sheriffs and whatnot of

3

the courts are not involved at all with ensuring

4

the security of the evidence once it reaches the

5

court's jurisdiction and --

6

MS. TENGAN:

No.

The local sheriffs,

their really

7

only functions are to provide transport and to

8

provide p

9

and to and from,

10

soner security within the courthouse

special missions,

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

MS. TENGAN:

and occasionally they have
like, sometimes they might

Right.

-- you know,

go out pursuant to some

13

sort of operation, arrest a number of persons

14

and bench warrants or something like that, but

15

they have no responsibility with regard to the

16

transportation or the storage or the

17

preservation of evidence.

18

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I guess we'll have police

19

later, Chairman, so I guess we can ask the Chief

20

about how the department handles the evidentiary

21

transportation requirements.

22

explaining how your office

23

But thank you for

So whether it be a rifle in a firearms

24

case or drugs in a drug case,

that goes from our

25

Police Department to your specific secured
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2

holding area before the case reaches the court?
MS. TENGAN:

Yes, but in certain types of items, we

3

try to minimize our custodianship of those

4

items.

5

over $500, we try not to keep those around.

6

if drugs -- if it's possible, we try to get it

7

directly from the courthouse if we can -- I mean

8

from the Police Department to the courthouse.

9

For example, firearms, drugs and money

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

MS. TENGAN:

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And

Thank you for sharing that.

Thank you.
My other question is, if I recall
rfeiture

12

right, you do get a percentage of the

13

funds that our County participates in with your

14

office and the Police Department

15

federal agencies?

16

MS. TENGAN:

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

th the

Correct.
Is there an opportunity for you

ve us -- prepare for us maybe a response

18

to

19

regarding -- for the current year and maybe all

20

of last year how much forfeiture funds you got,

21

and what is your fund balance, and how you've

22

used it, and what is the parameters that you

23

work under in the use of those specific

24

forfeiture funds?

25

MS. TENGAN:

Okay.

Our present fund balance of State
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and Federal forfeiture funds is $139,272.

We

2

have two types of asset forfeiture; one is State

3

and one is Federal.

4

funds, we get 10 percent of the amount that is

5

the total.

6

$19,000, we're going to get, you know, $1,900.

7

With asset -- State asset forfeiture cases, we

8

get 25 percent of the amount.

With Federal forfeiture

So if police make a recovery of

And there is another method of getting

9

10

State asset forfeiture funds where we have to

11

apply to the Attorney General.

12

I want to -- maybe I say I want to give a

13

training in Maui for

14

have a training on trial practice, I might say,

15

nOh, I need, you know, $15,000 to put on the

16

seminar," and I could apply to the Attorney

17

Generals but then they can, you know, reject.

For example, if

1 prosecutors who want to

We do -- whenever we're going to spend

18
19

any asset forfeiture funds,

20

letter to this body to let you know that we're

21

going to be spending that amount.

22

that.

23

I believe we send a

We have to do

And I can -And the other part of your question, I

24

think, was how much we've received and/or spent

25

this year, I can get that for you.

I can tell
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you

ght now that our largest expenditure over

2

the last year is in the area of getting

3

ergonomic furniture for the secretaries, and

4

that, I believe, we are probably spendin£ about

5

$52,000.
That was something that has been in the

6
7

works since 2003, but was kind of on t

8

burner when we were having the possibility of

9

moving, you know, as an entire of

back

ce to One

10

Main and what was going to happen and so that

11

was on the back burner.

12

going forward with getting those ergonomic work

13

stations for our clerical workers.

14

attorneys.

15

old desks and chairs, but t

16

hopefully will have this ergonomic.

17

believe it comes to something like 52,000.

18

CHAIR KANE:

But presently we are

Not for the

We're going to stick with the same

Mr. Hokama,

secretaries
And I

just to assist you with the

19

question and the response,

is her verbal

20

response adequate except for the tally of what

21

was received or do you want to get the full

22

scope of the question -- and again,

23

asking in the interest of time and resource

24

availability, what would be adequate for your

25

needs on that question?

I'm just
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

More, I think, the -- just the

2

general -- the general tallies, but I think what

3

would be helpful is to find out two things,

4

Mr. Chairman.

5

and the State funds can be utilized for.

6

would agree,

7

regularly informed Council of her intent to

8

spend those forfeiture funds.

9

don't review that because -- and I'm assuming

The parameters that the Federal
And I

e Prosecuting Attorney has

Normally, we

10

Finance keeps it in a very specific account so

11

that there is no mixing and confusion of other

12

types of funds, including general funds.

13

And my last one is, is there any

14

reporting required of you so that if it's

15

federal funds, is that part of a single federal

16

audit for all federal expenditures, and does the

17

State require an annual or a regular reporting

18

of how you use t

19

whether or not an audit is required?

20

the forfeiture funds pay for the audit unless

21

the County uses its own resources to pay for

22

audits to show that we are in compliance with

23

the parameters of the expenditures?

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Very good.

State forfeiture funds, and
And can

We'll get that question out,

so thank you for setting the parameters of the
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Of c : ( 808) 524 - 2090 Fax: ( 808) 524 - 2596

111
BF 4/13/06
1
2
3

question.
MS. TENGAN:

Thank you.

And I will get that to you

as soon as I can.
I will note that regarding the

4

5

parameters, there are certain types of things

6

that we can use it for and not for others, but

7

generally the largest thing that we have to

8

guard against is supplanting, which is using,

9

you know, asset forfeiture funds for something

10
11

that is already in the budget.
VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

One last question please and again just

12
13

-- only because of what has recently occurred on

14

Oahu with HPD and,

15

that mayor may not be true -- and I know

16

they're going to go through their own process

17

but has there ever been consideration for an

18

anti-corruption unit or an anti-corruption staff

19

in your office whether to work

20

Department or ot

21

MS. TENGAN:

you know,

some of the things

th the Police

r agencies?

Not to my knowledge.

I've been

th the

22

office almost 15 years now and not to my

23

knowledge, although we do do that type ot work,

24

but it's not a specialized unit so

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

You know,

I realize every now and
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1

then you have a person that may go astray in a

2

department, Police Department.

3

been very rare and infrequent, but there's a lot

4

of stress and demands and even on Oahu we've

5

seen, unfortunately,

6

the standards.

7

for Maui we try and minimize the opportunities

8

for officers to slip.

9

that we have oversight or we are concerned about

For Maui, it's

those that have fallen from

I just want to make sure that

And maybe if they know

10

anti-corruption within our own departments,

11

in itself may be a good enough hammer to

12

minimize that incidence.

13

MS. TENGAN:

that

I could say that the last time we had an

14

issue regarding corruption of a public official,

15

that matter was taken to the Attorney General

16

and the

17

cooperation with our office,

18

mechanism.

19

question,

20

consideration to an anti corruption unit of our

21

own in our office.

22
23

so there is that

But as a direct answer to your
I don't

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

lieve we have given current

Thank you very much for

your response.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

24
25

torney General responded in

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
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Any further questions, Members, of the

1

2

department in any of the areas for final

3

requests?
Hearing none, if there are questions,

4

5

again get that over to the staff and we'll make

6

sure it gets out.
Ms. Tengan, Mr. Acob, thank you very

7

8

much.

9

MS. TENGAN:

Thank you.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Appreciate you and your resource

11

personnel being available to the Committee.
Members, we have the Office of Council

12
13

Service Director here in the chamber.

14

twenty to, so we'd like to at least get started

15

and use the maximum -- use the time that we

16

have.

17

It's

So if Mr. Fukuoka can come forward.
Members, you should have

your

18

possession, and if you need to get that in front

19

of you, we have an April 11th letter

20

that was provided,

21

provided some information.

22

we need that on top of anyt

23

let Mr. Fukuoka provide us information.

24
25

I think, by the

or memo
rector who

And I don't know if
ng else, but we'll

Ms. Tengan, you had any final remarks?
MS. TENGAN:

No, sir.
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1

2

CHAIR KANE:

MS. TENGAN:

4

CHAIR KANE:

6
7

You're all done.

Thank you very

much --

3

5

Okay.

Thank you.
for your presence this morning.

Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
dist

Chair, when was that memo

buted?

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

MS. SAKAMOTO:

11

CHAIR KANE:

I believe it was put on your chairs -Yesterday.

No, it was in their trays.
It was in the tray.

Thank you.

It was

12

put in your tray,

13

Tuesday, yeah.

14

Mr. Fukuoka if he's going to be referencing that

15

to see whether or not you do need it in front of

16

you, but I wanted to note that that's something

17

that was distributed relevant to the budget

18

requests from the office.
Go

19
20

MR. FUKUOKA:

I believe, on Monday or

Anyway, we'll check with

morning, Mr. Fukuoka.

Good mo

ng.

lim Ken Fu

21

Director, Of

22

going to be referring to that memo.

23

CHAIR KANE:

ka.

ce of Counsel Services.

lim

Yes, I'm

Members, we'll take a moment to make

24

sure that that's in front of you, so we'll just

25

take a very brief recess, Members.

It's twenty
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1

to.

We'll take a couple of minutes just to make

2

sure that you get that so we can all re

3

it,

4

the call of the Chair since it's just a few

5

minutes, okay?

okay?

So, now is twenty 'till.

RECESS:

11:40 a.m.

7

RECONVENE:

11:46 a.m.

8

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel. )

Members, we are reconvened.

Thank you.
We have with us, again,

10

our Director of

11

Counsel Services, Mr. Ken Fukuoka.

12

Good morning, Mr. Fukuoka.

13

Subject to

(Gavel.)

6

9

rence

MR. FUKUOKA:

Good morning.

I'd like to open our

14

segment here by expressing my appreciation to

15

the Members for their patience during this last

16

year, because,

17

bit of change in our office.

18

a little bit especially the computer functions,

19

and we've had retirements and some shifting,

20

rec

21

with adding or hiring somebody in the

22

Administrative Support Section, which will reach

23

you folks probably in a month or two.

24
25

ting.

as you know, we've had a little
We've reorganized

We're hopefully ending that with

Our budget does not propose any
expansion positions,

although I have to say that
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1

when I prepared the budget, I had no idea what

2

was going to be submitted -- you know,

3

increase in the overall budget that was

4

eventually going to be submitted.

5

be forthcoming about the needs that I see at

6

this point.

the

But I have to

I think we have to work -- our office

7

8

has to work on smoothing the delivery of

9

services whenever we have personnel changes.

10

That's one element that came to light -- I think

11

became obvious to me during this last year or

12

so.

13

more hours, more personnel, resources to

14

legislative oversight work,

15

that nature.

16

I think we have to find a way to dedicate

audits,

things of

And I need to find a way to anticipate

17

and address the need

18

becomes apparent.

19

Members, but the requests t t l make of the

20

Office of Council Services staff are the lowest

21

in priority, and so it becomes very apparent to

22

me when the staff is stressed because I don't

23

get the answers that I'm asking for.

24

not a complaint, that's just the way it ought to

25

be.

r information before it

It may not be obvious to the

And that's
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But I just say that because as we go

1

2

through the rest of this term and as we

3.

transition,

4

mind as we're implementing whatever it is that

5

ends up being the budget for our office.

these are the things that are in my

The budget does include some flexibility

6
7

in terms of part-time workers and temporary

8

workers.

9

of maybe trying to work some intern type

We are considering now the possibility

10

program, but we'll have to see how that comes

11

out.

12

leading to an expansion but I'm not really

13

wanting to propose anything like that

14

I think it's

Eventually this sort of work may end up

ir to tell you that,

ght now.

though.

Before I open myself up to questions,

15
16

want to point out the documentation that is

17

available here because some of this explains

18

some of the more complicated parts of our

19

budget.

I

s

20

In the program budget on page 5-6,

21

starts a section on major Fiscal Year 2007

22

budget items.

23

the bottom of the page is really repeated on the

24

next page, so you can ignore that one at the

25

bottom of the page on 5-6.

Now,

that first blurb there at
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But on 5-7, there is discussion there

1

2

about salaries, the video programming, the Akaku

3

appropriation amounts, which are a little hard

4

to follow when you look at the details, and the

5

matter of the audits -- the audit and

6

professional services appropriations,

7

a little bit of explanation there.
In addition to that, a couple of days

8

9

so there's

ago,

I sent in this memorandum which provides a

10

little bit of additional information on the face

11

of the memo, but maybe more importantly for our

12

purposes here is it goes through our internal

13

notes -- the notes that are prepared touching on

14

each of the items in the Details by some object

15

codes and so that's helpful in understanding

16

some of these items.
I guess that's it.

17

There is a draft

18

proposed bill that's attached that has to do

19

with the attorneys pay plan and it's similar to

20

the plan that t

21

say the Administration,

22

the counties are proposing.

23

with the mechanism that was started two or three

24

years back to try and keep the attorneys' pay

25

updated.

Administration

I shouldn't

the legal agencies of
It's consistent
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So with that, I'll try to answer

1

2

whatever questions you have.

If I cannot get

3

the answers to you right now,

I'll be glad to do

4

it in writing.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Fukuoka.
Members, before we open up, on that

6
7

handout, you'll note behind the draft ordinance

8

that there is an internal explanatory notes for

9

the Office of Council Services which highlights

10

the fluctuations in the dollar amounts that are

11

located in your Details.

12

take note of that prior to asking any questions

13

because the answer already may be apparent on

14

the memo that's been provided to you.

15

MR. FUKUOKA:

So I just ask you to

Mr. Chairman, could I please say one

16

more thing?

There is one confusing entry and

17

that's -- in the Details has to do with t

18

transcription program.

19

just noticed that.

I am exploring that.

I

I believe that has to do

20

th prior appropriations coming in, but it's

21

not going to make sense when you look at that

22

line, and I'll be -- I'll be doing something in

23

writing on that.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Can you be more specific as where

is that located, that discrepancy, please?
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1

MR. FUKUOKA:

Page 3-4.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Excuse me?

3

MR. FUKUOKA:

Page 3 4.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

MR. FUKUOKA:

One more time.

Thank you.
At the bottom, you see a negative

6

number in Fiscal Year 2005, and I believe that

7

negative is because there was an encumbrance

8

that lapsed.

9

that and I'll be doing that in writing.

But I have to get the details on

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12
13

Okay.
What?

I'm sorry.

Can he

repeat what he said?
CHAIR KANE:

There is a bracketed number, $43,050, on

14

the bottom of 3-4 Details, and so he'll be

15

responding in writing to that discrepancy.

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I don't

e1 t

re is a need

17

for a response in writing for that discrepancy.

18

It's past already.

19

CHAIR KANE:

It's over.

Mr. Fukuoka, are you prepared to just

20

give us a verbal response and provide us

21

correction in writing?

22

MR. FUKUOKA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

MR. FUKUOKA:

25

th a

That way we can just -

I believe be aware.
Yeah.

I believe it is -- the reason

why it's important to me anyway, it kind of
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1

makes me wonder if the rest of it is stated the

2

way I think it's supposed to be stated.

3

think what happened there is when you have an

4

encumbrance that carries forward from a prior

5

year and then lapses, it's taken as an offset

6

against the expenditures, so you can actually go

7

below zero if enough lapses.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Director?
Yes, Ms. Anderson.

12
13

I see.

Any questions, Members, for the

10
11

Okay.

But I

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Fukuoka, I'm referencing in the

14
15

Details 3-4,

6132 professional services and

16

figures in the budget don't really match.
In your handout, it shows go

17

g from

well, I guess

18

241,942 to 242,000 and it looks

19

they just rounded it out in '06 to 242,000.

20

Maybe that's what was actually s

21

Anyway, that wasn't my question.

22

that.

25

t

basically is for Akaku Services.
MR. FUKUOKA:

241.

I just noticed

My question was in '05 -- and this

23
24

t,

Yes.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So in '05, it was only

2

47,000,

so did we fund that somewhere else

3

different way or we weren't

4

MR. FUKUOKA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

7

a

Right.
We were spending more than

that, weren't we?
MR. FUKUOKA:

Right.

This is where we look at the

8

program budget.

This spiral bound or this

9

plastic bound thing.

And on page 5-7, we have

10

in the middle of the page, a blurb on

11

professional services, and that explains what

12

happened.
I think there, also,

13

you know, is this

14

phenomenon where you have an encumbrance that

15

was carried forward from the prior year and then

16

lapsed.

17

happens t

18

here --

And there's an accounting thing that
re,

so actually as it's stated

This one I happened to check out

19

th

20

Mr. Ginoza.

It took me a little while to

21

understand it,

22

adjust for the lapsing of the appropriations,

23

then it looks a little bit more rational.

24

know,

25

2005 turns out to be 122,000.

frankly,

but,

you know, when you

it goes from -- well, the actual in

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

You
scal

123
BF 4/13/06
1
2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But I mean I thought this

'05 column is what was actually expended.

3

MR. FUKUOKA:

Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

actually 122.

6

MR. FUKUOKA:

7

better?

8

accountant.

9

it.

But now you're saying it's

I'm not following you.

Yeah.

Do you think you can explain it

I have a tough time.

I'm an

I'm supposed to be able to explain

10

MR. GINOZA:

If I may?

11

CHAIR KANE:

Proceed.

12

MR. GINOZA:

I will try.

The mechanics of the actual

13

expenditure is that,

14

account encumbrances, so the so-called formula

15

to figure your actual expenditure is to look at

16

your actual expenditure plus your current year

17

encumbrance minus your prior year's encumbrance,

18

and that's what is deemed to be your actual

19

expenditure for the purposes of comparing to the

20

budget.

21

you know, it does take into

So where you do have an extraordinary

22

amount of lapses of the prior encumbrance, that

23

formula turns that number into a negative, which

24

means that there is monies available to be spent

25

in that particular expenditure account.
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1

2

that make sense?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Theoretically, I guess it

3

does, but as far as

4

follow that, then that means that all these

5
6

7

- I mean, you know, if I

gures in the '05 expended column aren't really
actual.
MR. GINOZA:

That's not actual cash expenditures.

8

Those are actual expenditures that's determined

9

based on the budget, which does include

10

encumbrances.

11

actual monies spent yet, right?

12

contracted obligations of the County.

13

Because encumbrances are not

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Those are

I see.

14

expended, it doesn't really -

15

reflect what we budgeted that year?

16

MR. GINOZA:

So it is

it doesn't really

That's -- that's trying to tell you what

17

was actually charged to that particular budget

18

item for that

19

you look at what the appropriation was, then you

20

should compare that number against the actual

21

expenditure.

22

outlay, but that's the expenditure that's

23

charged to that particular appropriation.

24
25

ar, so it's a comparison -- if

And that's not -- that's not cash

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So let me just repeat so I

have it clear in my mind, and let's just take
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So this

1

this one example and keep it simple.

2

47,000 expended

3

reflect the actual budget amount because there

4

are encumbrances that are not included in this

5

figure, maybe -- there may be encumbrances not

6

included in this figure?

7
8
9

10

MR. GINOZA:

scal Year ending '05 doesn't

When you speak of budget amounts, the

budget amount is the appropriation amount.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
MR. GINOZA:

Right.

So in the accounting system, debt
It's just an

11

appropriation is just there.

12

amount.

13

where the County has these commitments through

14

purchase orders or contracts, that's when the

15

actual expenditures start to take place, because

16

as you incur the obligation, it comes in as a

17

current encumbrance.

18

there's payments towards those encumbrances,

19

there is an actual payment in the system that

20

reduces then your encumbrance that you made.

But when the actual transaction occurs

And to the extent that

For example, if you contracted to do a

21
22

job for $10,000, that -- upon signing of the

23

contract, it goes into the encumbrance, meaning

24

that the County's obligated itself to make that

25

payment.

And as payments are made towards that
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1

contract,

for example, say there's a $3,000

2

payment, then in the payment account,

3

recorded and it's reduced from the encumbrance

4

account.

5

point would be your actual payment of 3,000 plus

6

your remaining balance of your encumbrance,

7

which is 7,000,

8

still 10,000.

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

$3,000 is

So your total expenditure at that

so your total expenditure is
Does that make sense?
Well,

that kind of

10

contradicts then,

11

reflects what's been expended and encumbered.

12

MR. GINOZA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

MR. GINOZA:

so then that means this 47,000

To add to that Is that correct?

That is not correct because you have to

15

add the other element of the beginning

16

encumbrance of that account.

17

beginning encumbrance that is say,

18

say 10,000 and the actual -- the actual

19

expenditure for that 10,000, say, is only 4,000,

20

that means that $6,000 of encumbrance is now

21

moved into the current year as a negative,

22

because it's a lapsed encumbrance.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well,

So if you had a
ten -- again,

you know, that's an

24

interesting explanation that I wish I had a long

25

time ago because I've always been just
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

127
BF 4/13/06
1

comparisoning (sic)

2

using the '05 column as a comparison

3

know,

4

we budgeted in '05, what we appropriate in '06

5

and what is being requested in '07, but if

6

that's not,

7

what was really appropriated,

8

not a comparison.

9

-- comparing, you know,
as,

what

an actual fair comparison of what

you know,

you

an accurate reflection of
then it's really

Well --

MR. GINOZA:

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

MR. GINOZA:

If I may,

It's not a fair comparison.
you know,

the use of that

12

number,

13

relate against what was budgeted, and that's how

14

you determine whether your budget was either in

15

excess of what was needed or whether it was not

16

enough.

17

budgeted number against your actual expenditure,

18

so -- but when you look at this report,

19

s

20

year 2005 versus if you look at the column

21

heading for 2006,

22

the appropriation for 2006,

23
24
25

that actual expenditure, is really to

So you normally would compare your

ng that this is t

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Mr.
CHAIR KANE:

it's

actual expenditure for

this is the actual budget or

Yeah,

so in terms --

I understand that,

noza.
Okay.
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1

MR. FUKUOKA:

Mr. Chairman, you know, if I may very

2

briefly, I guess your concern is whether that

3

column is worth anything now.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MR. FUKUOKA:

Yeah.

And the answer is yes, it's generally

6

worth something because you're not supposed to

7

be carrying this kind of encumbrance into the

8

next fiscal year usually, just in our case there

9

were two items where we had substantial

10

encumbrance carrying forward.

11

don't have that, and that's why normally it's

12

worth something to have that column

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

that --

15

MR. FUKUOKA:

Normally, you

pres~nted.

So this is an anomaly

Kind of because in these, you know,

16

they were large contracts that weren't paid off

17

in the

18
19

scal year in which they were made.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So again,

I'm appreciative

of that explanation because I've been r

ewing

20

s all along as if this was,

you know, a

21

straight comparison and it's not.

22

it maybe in the future would be helpful to have

23

another column under -- let's just say for the

24

sake of this discussion, under the '05 column to

25

maybe have a column that says "Budgeted" and

And I t
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1

then a column that says "Expended," so we

2

actually get a clear comparison of how we're

3

growing or not growing.
And yeah, I know,

4

I could use the

5

year-end quarterly report but then how many

6

reports do we have to look at to get a clear

7

comparison?

8
9

10
11
12

MR. GINOZA:

Member Anderson, we will kind of look at

that and consider that, but we do run other
columns in terms of presentations so -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you for that

explanation, Mr. Ginoza.

I appreciate it.

13

MR. GINOZA:

You're welcome.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Further questions, Members,

for Office

15

of Council Services?

16

us with a lot of written comments in the areas

17

of fluctuation,

18

body has been focusing on.

21

especially that I think this

Seeing none, Members

19
20

Mr. Fukuoka has provided

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I have questions if no one

else does.

22

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, Ms. Anderson.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So Mr. Fukuoka, we have

24

we have one position that's not filled yet?

25

said that you're hiring someone in
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1

administrative support?

2

MR. FUKUOKA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

MR. FUKUOKA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

MR. FUKUOKA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

9

Right.

Right.
And what's the position?

Council Services Clerk.
A clerk?

Yes.
And so we have no empty

positions in Legislative Analyst?
MR. FUKUOKA:

No, no.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

MR. FUKUOKA:

None?

We filled them.

That doesn't mean

12

that, you know,

13

filled for a year, you know, people

14

can quit.

15

midway through this year

16

budget year that we're talking about,

17

can happen.

18

stable.

19

that they're -- that we'll be
people

We are corning to the end of a term
I mean through this
so things

I'm hoping they're going to be

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

ght.

Would it be poss

Ie

20

for you to submit to us a list of all the

21

project assignment requests that have been made

22

in this term and all of those that have been

23

served?

24

I mean.

25

MR. FUKUOKA:

In

0

Sure.

er words,

I think, you know what

Sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

most helpful.
CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

CHAIR KANE:

That's it.

Thank you.

Anybody else with questions?
Ms. Tavares?

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

Mr. Fukuoka, do you think that under our

8
9

That would be

Further questions?

3

7

Thank you.

professional services for audits that there is

10

sufficient money to do Department of Water

11

Supply audit?

12

MR. FUKUOKA:

I think it depends on what it is that

13

is being studied or audited or reviewed.

14

always the challenge, and that's t

15

it's so difficult to get these things started.

16

That's

reason why

The challenge is to define a scope that
is meaning

18

concerns that people have and that is doable.

19

And it's important that it be doable -- just on

20

it's face doable,

21

attract people to actually do it.

22

1 and yet addresses

overall

17

cause otherwise you can't

You know, there are people who are

23

experts in certa

areas of operations.

24

Sometimes you get lucky and you run across one

25

of these people.

I think like the Zucker audit
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1

was one instance where you had somebody who

2

specializes in it and who was -

3

reputation, but it's not always the case.
Now,

4

has some

if you're looking at the Department

5

of Water Supply, you know,

there are issues,

I

6

suppose, of the dif

7

proceeding with capital improvements.

8

one set of issues.

9

deal with -- I mean having to do with maybe how

culties they have in
That's

There's issues having to

10

they deal with public relations.

11

trying to be critical here.

12

things that the department itself recognizes and

13

is trying to address, but I know that these are

14

concerns.
In both of t

15

I'm just not

I think these are

se areas,

the issue is,

16

"Well, how does one review it?"

17

easy to compare an operation against the

18

standard.

19

standard and that's why we need to devote staff

20

time.

21

to focus staff time on that sort of work

22

defi

23

otherwise it's difficult to do any oversight

24

work like this.

25

It's relatively

Many times it's hard to find that

We need to

nd -- I need to find a way

ng the standard and defining the scope,

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

One other
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1

question.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Sure.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

If I could ask our Chair, did
ces prior

4

he review the budget for Council Se

5

to its being submitted to the Mayor's Office for

6

printing?

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Mr. Hokama, are you prepared to respond?
The Director shared his intent

with me --

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.
Ms.

Tavares.

And I can tell

12

you that I support the proposal by the Clerk's

13

Office and the Council Services' Director.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

much better.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

I feel

Thank you.

17

Any further questions, Members?

18

o

19

y.

Seeing none, Mr. Fukuoka, thank

you very much.

20

MR. FUKUOKA:

Thank you.

21

CHAIR KANE:

And if there are any questions, we have

22

t

we have the freedom to go downstairs and

23

either ask you personally or put it in writing,

24

so we have a little more flexibility working

25

with you and the Clerk's Office.
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Members, the time now is a little after

1

2

12:10.

We will stand in recess until 1:45 and

3

the intent is to meet with the Department of

4

Police this afternoon, okay?
We are in recess.

5
6

RECESS:

12:11 p.m.

7

RECONVENE:

1:52 p.m.

8

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

9

10

(Gavel.)

All right, Members.

reconvened from our lunch recess.

We are

Thank you

very much.

11

For the record, in attendance for this

12

afternoon's session, we have the Vice-Chair of

13

the Committee, Member Hokama, as well as Members

14

Carroll, Johnson, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares,

15

Kane.
This afternoon, Members, we have with us

16

artment of Police, and joining us from

17

the

18

t

19

Thank you very much, Deputy.

20

presence here this afternoon.

department is our Deputy, Ke

aupio Akana.

We appreciate your

Members -- and for the Deputy's

21
22

information, again we'd like to try and be as

23

deliberate as possible since this is our final

24

pass.

25

we're into operations, so the Chair would like

We've done EPs, we've done CIP, and now
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1

to progress through the details in the program

2

program by program, and that way we can make

3

sure that we don't have to go flipping through

4

the pages and get lost there on the road.

5

we'll try to do as best as possible.

6

there's things that interrelate so we'll have to

7

do so, but we'll try our best to stay within the

8

program guidelines.

11

Sometimes

Mr. Hokama, question?

9

10

So

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just a, I guess, housekeeping

question --

12

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

-- Chairman.

Is your intent to

14

finish this department at least today or -- I

15

just need to make some adjustments for the

16

evening -- late afternoon, early evening, so I

17

just wanted to ask for your guidance in this

18

matter, please.

19

CHAIR KANE:

To be honest with you, Mr. Hokama, the

20

intent is to try and complete the department

21

today_

22

then I think it would be prudent on my part as

23

your Chair to ask your status regarding your

24

evening schedule,

25

holiday as well as the weekend so --

If we are unable to up to the 4:30 mark,

knowing that tomorrow is a
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And Monday evening, we will be looking

1

2

at a recommendation from your Chair for the

3

Executive Session for the water Department on

4

that one issue,

5

Chair is at, Mr. Hokama.

6

and finish,

7

question for availability from a majority of the

8

Members.

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

The intent is to try

and if cannot, then I'll pose the

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

so we're -- that's where the

Yes,

At or around 4:30?
sir.
Thank you.

I think we'll have a better sign at the

mid-afternoon break.

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

We'll kind of know where we're at.

16

know we have one,

17

areas under General Fund and a few others maybe

18

but, you know, we have a big department,

19

wefll see how we go and how sha

20

going to be in giving us the responses that

21

we're looking for.

22

Yeah.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

two,

three,

four -- four,

I

so

our Deputy is

But he'll do just fine.

No pressure.

Yeah, no pressure.

five

No pressure.

He's smiling, Chairman.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

137
BF 4/13/06
1

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, exactly.

2

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

He's smiling.

He exudes confidence and we appreciate

4

that.

But anyway, that's where we're at.

5

know by the mid-afternoon break and then provide

6

you some time to make adjustments to your

7

schedule, if necessary.

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

CHAIR KANE:

10

Great.

We'll

Thank you.
Any further questions of

housekeeping before we proceed?
Hearing none, Mr. Ginoza, anything in

11
12

particular before we give the mike over to the

13

Deputy?

14

MR. GINOZA:

Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair, Members.

15

Before we start the discussion on the

16

operational review of the Police Department, I'd

17

like to

18

request for a supplemental appropriation for

19

4.5 million plus for take-home vehicles that's

20

been referred to this Committee, and I just

21

wanted to let you know that this item has not

22

been included in the 2007 budget, nor has this

23

amount been included in the carry-over savings.

24
25

- I'd like to mention that there's a

And I'd also like to mention that, you
know, the proposed take-home vehicle program was
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1

really in lieu of any replacement vehicles

2

the 2007 budget, so I present that just for your

3

information.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And before I hand it over to the

5

Deputy, Members, the Chair appreciates the

6

comments by the Director.

7

received

8

time before we got the budget on March 15th to

9

review that request, so in light of the

If you recall, we

- to the point where we did not have

10

situation that Mr. Ginoza has just described

11

where the Fiscal Year '07 proposal does not

12

contain any replacement because they were hoping

13

that we would have a discussion dur

14

current Fiscal Year on the take-home program,

15

that's an area where we will get into discussion

16

and help us towards our final decision making in

17

the following week.
So Deputy, we hope

18

're p

g the

ared to

19

provide us with some guidance through the

20

discussion on that.

Thank you, Mr. Ginoza.

21
22

Thank you.

MR. GINOZA:

Thank you.

So I'd like to refer you to

23

page 14-1, which starts the Police operations

24

budget, so I'll turn this over to Deputy.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
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And the Chair recognizes Member Anderson

1

2

in attendance as well.

3

Ms. Anderson.

4

MR. AKANA:

Good afternoon,

Good afternoon,

everybody.

Deputy Chief

5

Akana here representing Chief Phillips, who is

6

away on a training exercise on the mainland.
Before I proceed,

7

I'd like to introduce

8

some of the people who have made me comfortable

9

coming here, which is Assistant Chief Richie

10

Nakashima, to my extreme right, Chief of Support

11

Services; Assistant Chief Sydney Kikuchi, who is

12

from the Uniformed Services, which of course we

13

call the Big Blue Army; and Assistant Chief Gary

14

Yabuta, who is in charge of Investigative

15

Services.
To the rear of you -

16

to the rear right

17

of you,

I'd like to introduce, if I may,

18

Chairman, because these people may be called

19

upon for certain expertises

20

clarifications as we delve into this budget,

21

Acting Lieutenant Jamie Becraft, who has been

22

charged with the recruitment issues in our

23

organization; Captain Larry Hudson, who is our

24

Technical Services Captain and who has been

25

charged with a lot of the oversight and some of

(sic)

and
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1

the research into our vehicle take-home vision;

2

and Mary Wagner from our IT section.

3

are aware of that initiative.

4

Amaral, who was brought out of the dungeon back

5

into the 800 megahertz rebanding/Nextel FCC

6

mandate, and his compatriot, Walt Pacheco, from

7

Radio Shop.

You folks

Captain Jeffrey

And first of all, of course as you know,

8
9

overcap -- and I'm going to be brief because I

10

know the -- I know how these things go, so the

11

questions are more important than the overview.

12

We've got about a $35 million budget of

13

which operations and equipment are quite a bit

14

smaller, as most budgets in our Council -- in

15

our County, the majority of those -- that 35 mil

16

goes to salaries.
If you look in our operations budget, we

17

18

have a 21 percent increase and some of the big

19

ticket items in that operations request, of

20

course, are the advertisement/recruitment

21

retention and, of course, our goals are based -

22

our priorities are based off of that $250,000

23

request.

24
25

I can give specificity later.
Then you're going to see repairs,

maintenance, Radio Shop, services contracts,
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1

some increases in that environment.

2
3

I'm not a paper flipper kind of guy so
you can back track me.
Also, in miscellaneous supplies and

4
5

professional services in the Radio Shop

6

environment, you're going to see some electronic

7

connectivity stuff that will address but

8

preferably not the tactics of that, if possible.

9

Some confidential informant fund

10

increases, some cell phone stuff, a wide area

11

network ala T-l line connections for some of our

12

IT initiative scenarios.

13

The other stuff, of course, flat budget

14

in t

15

things that are obvious increases for any type

16

of operations.

17

Ka Lima increase, of course, was a request from

18

Ka L

19

believe, towards Mr. Ginoza himself,

20

no problem.

21

diligently.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. AKANA:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

context of utilities, gas and some of t

And,

you know, a 3 percent

themselves, whi

was

rected, I
was

ey've been servicing us

Chief
That's it.
Real quickly, I note you said

budget in the area of fuels so we're

at
--
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1

MR. AKANA:

Well, I guess not -- you know, the normal
oh, the normal rate increases.

2

rate increases

3

I mean the normal expected increases, right, so

4

they're -- you know, they're

5

in -- calculated in the operations portion of

6

the budget.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Mr. Ginoza, any, again, general comment

8
9

Okay.

they are

relating to that?

We're looking at the

10

30 percent figure that's been represented

11

throughout the departmental operation budget

12

requests.

13

MR. GINOZA:

Yes, that's -- that refers to the

14

30 percent for the fueling increase and

15

15 percent for electricity, and generally about

16

5 percent

17

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much for that.

for us as we proce

through.

Chief, anything more --

20
21

MR. AKANA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

Okay.

Members, again just general infoLmation

18
19

r the other utilities.

No, that I s
before we start doing some Q&A for

you?

24

MR. AKANA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

I'm ready for the Q&A.
Right on.

Thank you.
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Members, let's start in the

1

2

administrative program.

We have A, B and

3

C Accounts provided for you on the first section

4

of Details from 14-1 and it looks like it goes

5

right up to 14-8.
Are there questions there?

6

And we'll

7

start from Mr. Molina and we'll work this way

8

and come back around and finish with

9

Mr. Pontanilla.

10
11

Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

Thank you, Chairman.

Good afternoon, Chief.

13

MR. AKANA:

Good afternoon.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Question, first,

relates to

15

the advertising proposal.

16

making a real aggressive push, I presume, for

17

recruiting.

18

information offhand as far as what the

19

breakdown, how you're -- where you're going to

20

allocate t

21

radio, and are you also utilizing this funding

22

toward the job fairs as part of the recruitment

23

drive?

24
25

MR. AKANA:

Yeah.

It seems like you're

I don't know if you have the

monies to,

you know

TV, print

And quick response for you,

Council member, you know, we're mimicking the
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1

efforts that we used in the '06 budget with

2

Becraft's efforts, so yes,

3

the Maui and Honolulu market, about 55,000;

4

newspaper advertising 7,000.

5

breakdown for the Council that we can give to

6

you.

radio advertising in

We have a

And what we made was some increases.

7

8

I'm going to say the category not the number.

9

We can give you the specificity of the numbers
Off-island job fairs, we attended BYU,

10

later.

11

U.H. West Oahu College, Chaminade, HPU, Justice

12

Club Expos at the Chaminade campus, Job Quest

13

fairs and other work force related fairs, TV

14

advertising, you folks saw it.

15

aggressive in that.

16

fiscal year when we went on -- we're t

17

County Police Department that went on

18

national show,

19

dynamic -- it was more than just exposing our

20

organization, it was a dynamic of free marketing

21

I mean

22

organization, so we have numbers there.

23

We were

And we'll go back another

"Cops,"

only

ah, but there was a

r our entire County, not just the

We want to reinvigorate our web page.

24

This thing needs to be dynamic and it needs to

25

be catchy

r t

s Gen-X, Gen Boom, Gen whatever
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1

generation.

I don't got another name for all

2

these generations.

I don't know about that.

One stop shops, critical.

3

We've had two

4

one stop shops, and,

you know, you're talking

5

about all of our internal affairs people.

6

You're talking about the administrative

7

environment, Greg Takahashi and his cle

8

people.

9

interview boards, DPS doing a great job working

cal

You're talking about 24 officers, six

10

us overtime Saturdays.

11

usually interview 50 or 60 people in one day.

12

Those are all overtime costs for,

13

only us, but DPS and the other environments.

14

You know,

We get through and we

you know, not

we need to reinvigorate all of

15

our advertising.

16

Kaohu Store for a hotdog and I look at the

17

same -- what is that now?

18

when the sun is bearing down on a poster?

19

know,

fading.

20

Okay.

It's -- Every time I go to

Yeah,
Now,

What is that word

fading fast on that stuff.
let me give you a quick

21

example, though, of where we're going

22

quickly.

23

test,

24

for us.

25

working.

2005,

You

th this

465 police applicants grab the

took the test,

240 passed.

Huge increase

Haven't had those numbers.

It's
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We polled this recruit class -- quickly

1

2

just for your perusal because common sense is

3

what mandates this number for us.

4

24 officers in our current recruit class,

5

15 heard about us on television and radio, two

6

word of mouth, one job fair,

7

Book Store.

8

local environment outside of the traditional

9

mode:

Of the

one at Border's

We've been taking our people in the

24-Hour

tness Centers, Border's Book

10

Store and not just the regular college campus

11

scenario.

One on the web site and two just

12

applied

you know,

13

have --

14

just applied so they must

So those are some of the things that we

15

know the dynamic is working.

16

could barely get

17

number real quickly.

18

150 people to take the test -- oh, 320 took the

19

test, 158 passed, so we have a breakdown of

20

specifi

21

250,000.

22

bit more money, but everybody has been

23

compassionate to the cops and we appreciate it

24

big time.

25

A few years ago we

shoot, let me get that
We could barely get

ty of where we want to go

th that

Frankly, we'll probably need a little

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.
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2

CHAIR KANE:

component, yeah, on Member Molina's questions.
Continue.

3
4

Members, 14-5, Details, advertising

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Chief, and as a follow-up on

5

that last remark, you're looking at continuing

6

an aggressive advertising campaign throughout

7

the next several years as well?

8
9

MR. AKANA:

Yeah.

Now, yeah, we get -

we get

intense pre the fast track, but what we need to

10

do is main our intensity throughout, yeah.

11

know how it gets but, yes, our goal is to

12

maintain our intensity throughout the year and

13

continuously, because frankly,

14

nationwide scenario as you folks all know.

15

not so much -

16

phenomena of the occupation that is fearful.

17

Sometimes I wonder if any salary

18

people to this job.

19

You

this is a
It's

it's the occupation and the

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Good.

You know,

11 bring

I appreciate

t

20

approach.

I think we've got to make

21

it -- the position of police officers here on

22

Maui as make it permanent, not use this --

23

having a job as a policeman in Maui County as a

24

stepping stone to, you know, greener pastures

25

elsewhere, yeah.
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Changing gears just a bit with regards

2

to the gas cost increase, I guess it's obvious

3

because the price of gas, is this increase also

4

tied into the take-home vehicle program as well

5

in anticipation of that?

6

MR. AKANA:

Okay.

Now, well, it would definitely be
I do

7

tied into the take-home vehicle program.

8

not think that Greg's calculations were tied in

9

specifically to the take-home program.

We have

10

other numbers and estimations for that because

11

that's going to be another change

12

going to be a lot of things changing with the

13

take-home program vehicle, it's not simply more

14

cars.

15

into that, and we have researched most of it,

16

but Ii

17

perfection, yeah.

there's

There's all kinds of dynamics that go

anything else, you know, there is no

So yes, that gas -- see,

18

dif

e gas
rent1y.

We

19

situation is going to chan

20

haven't assessed that in its totality frankly

21

yeah.

22

projected rotation of vehicles, of which right

23

now there is none in the budget.

24

(sic) .

25

The estimates now are for the current

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

All

Correctamundo

ght.

Thank you,
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Chief.
Thank you, Chairman.

2
3

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama?

4

5
6

7
8
9

Thank you.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So Chief, you will help us by

providing us with that replacement information?
MR. AKANA:

Absolutely, Chair -- Councilman Hokama.

For us philosophically -- may I?
For us philosophically, of course money

10

is money,

11

taxpayer's money and you folks are oversight.

12

But philosophically, the first question that

13

needs to be asked by the Mayor, by Chief Tom,

14

Keku, and our executive staff and our people is,

15

"Is this a good thing for the people?

16

no, and then we talk money."

17

good thing, then we find the money.

18

philosophy about this issue.

19

right?

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

You know, this is our

Yes or

Because if it is a
That's my

it's good to know the

20

department's approach, Deputy.

21

appreciate that approach, not necessarily that

22

works for us in our seats.

23

And while I can

But quickly, under administration, a

24

police inspector EM-7 is an assistant chief, yes

25

or no, please?
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2
3

MR. AKANA:

Yes,

they're assistant.

That is one and

the same, correct, classification.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And whenever we use assistant

4

chief, why is the job description police

5

inspector?

6
7

MR. AKANA:
No,

I believe we can blame Greg for that.

I'm kidding.

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

MR. AKANA:

10
11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just curious.

Is that how DPS has it,

Mr. Takahashi?
MR. TAKAHASHI:

13

MR. AKANA:

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

I'm just curious.

I really don't know the answer to that.

12

15

No.

Yes.

Yes.
It's an inspector, not an

assistant chief?
MR. TAKAHASHI:

Yeah.

As far as the name,

that's the

17

name of the class, police inspector, which is an

18

EM-7.

19

VICE-CHAIR

20
21

HOK~ffi:

Okay.

Thank you for clearing

that up.
As part of your administration, on 14-4,

22

I'm just trying to have this confirmed or

23

verified,

24

still within the administration of the

25

department or is that transferred to Risk

the Personnel Assistant II,

is that
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Management?

2

MR. TAKAHASHI:

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

No, it is part of administration.

administration?

5

MR. TAKAHASHI:

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

It is still part of the

Yes.
That position is filled,

Mr. Takahashi?

8

MR. TAKAHASHI:

Yes, it is.

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And is this person or this

10

position assisting you with your workman's comp

11

and --

12

MR. TAKAHASHI:

Yes, she is.

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

issues?

15

MR. TAKAHASHI:

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

-- other work-related safety

Yes.
Okay.

Let's see -- mentioned
th the

17

advertising and what you're going to do

18

new extra quarter million dollars, you

19

expl

20

us again -- refresh our mind, 14-5, ot

21

you have a category called "Confidential," and

22

you're as

23

that you've got for this year.

24

share, you know, in an open meeting, is there

25

something specific about this category, please?

ned, yes.

And just quickly, Chief, help
r costs,

ng for a flat 120,000 for next year
Whatever you can
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MR. AKANA:

Yeah, it is,

and actually that

2

category -- in traditional policing, that

3

category,

4

operations and

5
6

7

it's a special fund

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

r confidential

So would that be part of your

like, your task force or your stakeouts?
MR. AKANA:

Absolutely.

Well,

the primary use,

8

confidential informants buy narcotics.

9

arrest druggy.

10

up.

11

money is for.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

Everybody go home happy.

16

That's what that

That's good to know,

I'm done, Chairman.

Thank you very

much.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson,

17
18

Okay.

We lock them

Chief.

14
15

We arrest dealer.

We

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

any questions in this area?

Yes,

I just wanted to

19

double-check on 14-3, safety officer,

20

responsibility,

you know, because it got zeroed

21

out this year.

I can't remember if you

22

explained that to us or not.

23

MR. AKANA:

that

Councilwoman Johnson, we're going to

24

clarify that because we're not sure what

25

happened with that position.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

2

MR. AKANA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza?

4

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair, if I may?

5

Yeah.

Unless Lloyd, can you clarify?

This position was

transferred to Risk Management.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

MR. TAKAHASHI:

Okay.

No, no, the position was never

8

established.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We need to have one answer.

11

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

12

MR. GINOZA:

Yeah, so Greg said it's not established.

13

I believe he means the pOSition number has not

14

been created; is that correct?

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah.

And I guess in the

16

footnotes, that one -- you know, it does have a

17

one by it and it says, "Transferred position to

18

Department of

19

Division," but it was never really

nance, Risk Management

20

MR. TAKAHASHI:

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

lIed.

That's correct.
Okay.

And then the -- just

22

two lines above on Secretary III, there's a

23

2.7 percent decrease in salary.

24

somebody transferring out of that position and

25

then somebody new coming in?

Is that due to
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2
3

MR. TAKAHASHI:

Yeah, that's correct.

A person

retired last year and there's a new incumbent.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Okay.

you know,

Because

4

otherwise, usually,

I'd say you don't

5

want to be paying secretaries less, particularly

6

when they do so much paperwork.
And then on the expansion position, I

7

8

guess that would be the Administrative

9

Assistant I, is that what Mr. Hokama was asking

10
11

about or was that not?
MR. TAKAHASHI:

No,

I think Mr. Hokama was asking

12

about the Personnel Assistant II, which is an

13

existing position.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

All right.

Those were

15

mainly the questions that I had and, you know,

16

the" gasoline was a concern to me because with

17

the recent escalation of prices,

18

going to have to ask all of our departments --

19

and particularly because you spend so much time

20

on the road,

21

thing to look at again -- take a second look

22

before we do our final pass because if things

23

continue on the way that they are, we're going

24

to be in trouble.

25

MR. AKANA:

I think we're

I think might be a good,

Thank you very much.

you know,

And if I may

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090
Fax: (808) 524-2596

155
BF 4/13/06
1

respond briefly to that because, you know,

2

whole alternate energy thing is going to be

3

it's been huge for years, but sometimes the

4

technology, you've got to assess, and sometimes

5

it's better to let other people be the guinea

6

pigs for that technology.
So for us in our situation,

7

the

rst of

8

all, we have that police package vehicle.

9

know,

You

the hybrid vehicle issue, we've been

10

researching for our unmarked vehicle world, but

11

you have some other possible issues with that as

12

far as the high maintenance costs two or three

13

years down the road,

14

get the big bang for that buck on that one.

15

Maybe we've got to let some of these great

16

scientists at the motor companies give us a few

17

more years.

18

so you wonder if you really

And then also biodiesel, if you research

19

it -- from what I've been told from mechanic

20

type of people,

21

of the gasketing (sic)

22

rubberized environments and engines and stuff,

23

and so it's a great thing, but like anything

24

else there's going to have to be some

25

improvements along the way before a law

there's sometimes dete

oration

and some of the
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enforcement environment aggressively pursues

2

alternate fuel for their police vehicles.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And just as, you know, in

4

kind of -- to add my two cents to what you're

5

saying.

6

over five years old.

7

in comparison to any other car I've ever had,

8

I've had less maintenance and less problems with

9

those vehicles than any car that I have ever

I've had two hybrid vehicles, one is
They're both Hondas.

10

owned, so just -- that's my own personal

11

experience.

12

having.

13

batteries.

14

MR. AKANA:

But

I don't know what other people are

And Honda actually replaced both of the

And we'll note that wisdom from you, and

15

I don't think our officers drive as prudently as

16

you do.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well, my one car gets

18

60 miles a gallon and the other one about 45, so

19

I'm happy.

20
21

CHAIR KANE:

k you.

Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
And before I recognize you Ms. Anderson,

22

if I may,

just a follow-up to Mr. Ginoza's

23

movement of the safety officer out of Police and

24

into the Risk Management Division, if you can

25

help us understand the direct correlation
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because we have different numbers being

2

represented as far as the dollar amounts,

3

anyway, that's something that we'll have staff

4

follow up with you to get some clarification on

5

that trans

8

9

I don't have any questions

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

in this section, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Carroll, any questions?

10
11

r.

Ms. Anderson, you have the floor.

6
7

so

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

My questions were on

12

recruitment and Mr. Molina seemed to have

13

covered all of that already.
I would like to just say one thing, that

14
15

I'm really pleased that the department has kept

16

their standards so high, and even though it is

17

difficult times sometimes to fill positions, I

18

commend them for that.

19

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tavares?

20
21

Thank you, Mr. Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes,

thank you.

The question I had was about the

22
23

gasoline, and you said 30 percent is what the

24

figure used to calculate out your projected

25

usage.

Mr. Ginoza, maybe you should answer, was
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the 30 percent used County-wide in all the

2

departments?

3

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

electrical?

6

MR. GINOZA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

MR. GINOZA:

9

And the 15 percent for

Yes.
Okay.

And I'd just like to clarify one point.

It's based on the 2006 appropriation, but to the

10

extent that we felt that 2006 appropriation was

11

a little too low, we did adjust the

12

appropriation before applying the percentage.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

really good plan.

15

Okay.

That's probably a

Just because we've heard a couple

16

comments today about biodiesel, I just want to

17

reiterate that there is a lot of research going

18

on in the area of biodiesel and a lot of times

19

if you re just tal

20

mechanic,

they'll say that somet

21

with it.

And I don't want it to be a continued

22

rumor, but if people would really check out what

23

it is before they make some of those comments,

24

but the -- there's a lot of information on

25

research on -

g off the cuff with a
ng is wrong

especially on biodiesel.
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older cars have a problem because of the rubber

2

gaskets and things Ii

3

newer cars are okay.

4

getting the companies to warranty their

5

their warranty in effect because they're going

6

to use biodiesel.
And as

7

that, but suppose

y the

The problem has been
- keep

r as I can remember, there are

8

two companies now that are allowing the warranty

9

to apply if you're going to use biodiesel, but I

10

don't know that much more about it.

11

is research out there that probably as a County

12

we should be checking into before we make any

13

big decisions about jumping into biodiesel or

14

hybrid or anything,

15
16

MR. AKANA:

CHAIR KANE:

18

own de

19

care

And thank you.

Your wisdom is

And Member Tavares, your Chair is in his
se on his comments earlier, I was very
to say t

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

t,

just like you --

Yeah.

-- we need to be care

before we go

in.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

so thank you.

appreciated.

17

22

But there

Right.

We're going to make sure that

information is updated and analyzed before we
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make that decision.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

Thank you.
Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla,

any questions in this

area?

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

No questions.

Members,

let's move out of the

7

administration program and into the

8

investigative services program.

9

Mr. Hokama and we'll move through the group.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you,

Chairman.

Under investigation, do you have any

11

12

current vacancies, Chief,

13

division?

14

MR. AKANA:

Yes, we do.

in this specific

We're running about

15

70 percent in Juvenile section,

16

Investigative Di

17

Narcotics Di

18

the exact numbers.

19

you

20

we have three patrol of

21

Juvenile down.

22

including one in gambling.

23

I'll start with

ow,

sion and,

sion.

the Criminal

of course,

the Vice

I would -- I can't give you
I don't have them on me but,

five or six detectives down.

I think

cer positions in

Probably five or six Narcs down,

And that's the philosophy of trying to

24

create parody throughout the organization in our

25

percentages, yeah.

If you had the front line
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110 percent invigorated, fresh and no vacancies,

2

then we would bleed up.

3

philosophically, you always think front line

4

first.

5

from the 24/7/365 environment.

6

service the emergency first.

7

vacancies.

8
9

CHAIR KANE:

Our guys do a great job but we all come

So yeah, we have

Mr. Hokama, across the board with
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

13

We have to

And we're going to follow up in writing,

10

12

But you know,

Thank you.

-- the program so we have an

understanding of where we're at,
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

staff.

Chief, overall for the

14

department, is it still the department's

15

preference to utilize off-duty officers for

16

traffic control requirements on County or State

17

roads?

18

MR. AKANA:

You know,

I think the preference cepends

19

on the safety of the environment and the

20

particular job.

21

head what State laws have applicability to that

22

question.

23

I don't know off the top of my

We always consider it a service to our

24

public, our community.

25

construction company or a certain environment in

If a certain
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the community wants police officers present and

2

it is within our policy and procedure, then we

3

service in an off-duty capacity, and we recently

4

invigorated our pay scale for our people to do

5

that.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

The main reason I ask is, of

7

course, with our current environment of

8

economics -- you know, we understand our

9

officers need to take care of their needs, their

10

family requirements and so at times it makes

11

sense, but I'm trying to just relate that to

12

then your premium time request as well as the

13

fatigue of the officers and the morale of your

14

officers, and then that regards and relates to

15

your ability to recruit in the way I view it, so

16

that's why I'm asking because I'm just curious.
And if that is still a preference of the

17

18

department, maybe it's easier to address it

19

department-wide, Chairman.

20

division that most of the off-duty officers come

21

from,

22

I'm just trying to relate whether or not it

23

makes a difference in the division's ability to

24

hit their performance measurements.

25

MR.

AKANA:

Is there a specific

is it patrol, is it investigation?

Well, I would

- first of all,
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philosophically, off-duty assignments are a

2

benefit.

3

many off-duty assignments you can work per week

4

addressing that very issue prior -- long before

5

the 3-12 because police agencies have always had

6

vacancies in different variances over the

7

centuries or over the years, but no --

8

9

We have general order procedure on how

Generally younger officers take those
off-duties.

It is a voluntary program.

It's a

10

sign up thing.

11

environment people, but in many instances,

12

officers and sergeants and supervisors from

13

other divisions, bureaus and components take

14

those off-duty assignments.

15

preferences on the type and nature of off-duty,

16

the individual officers.

Some officers have

17

preferences

you know, orientations

18

in their scheduling and whatnot,

19

if that answers.

20

So generally, it's patrol

th certain{

People have

so I don't

I don't really connect the recruitment

21

retention with -- actually, it's a recruiting

22

tool to have that benefit.

23

ow

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I notice in your Vice Section

24

your request has been reduced -- oh, excuse me.

25

You have a bigger request than the current
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year -- quite a big difference, and I'm looking

2

at 14-14, Chief.

3

MR. AKANA:

Thank you.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So maybe Mr. Takahashi can assist

Just under the vice section, if I read our

5

you.

6

numbers right, we allocated $11,000 this

7

Is that a correct number, Mr. Ginoza, because it

8

doesn't follow suit from '05 where they expended

9

113,000 plus or minus, then we go down to this

ar.

10

11,000 and then we go back up to this 116, so it

11

kind of sticks out for me.

12

if you can explain -- explain this for us?

13
14
15

MR. TAKAHASHI:

So I'm just asking

So you want me to explain the

increase for vice?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Well,

I'm just trying to

16

understand why,

17

from over $100,000 budget and then we drop to

18

$11,000.

19

job there's no cr

20

in this County.

21

MR. TAKAHASHI:

you know, in between years we go

Either that or you did such a bang-up
nal vice act

No, no, no.

Okay.

Ye

ties going on

, for the

22

Vice Section, we did increase about $100,000 and

23

the increase is attributed -- the most

24

significant increase is attributed to

25

confidential funds.

We added 50,000
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specifically for the Vice Division for Fiscal

2

2007.

3

existing 120,000 that we have budgeted for that

4

purpose.

5

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

So what we did is we added 50,000 to the

Okay.

And in the same section

6

all of a sudden under your telephone, you went

7

from $500 to $35,000.

8
9

10

MR. TAKAHASHI:

Okay.

The 35,000 is for services

regarding a wire tap operation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I think it's great you

11

guys are able to expl

12

because for me, it really stands out, and I hope

13

you can appreciate our questions for

14

clarification.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

15
16
17

n to us the variances

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
And before I recognize you, Ms. Johnson,

18

just to continue in that vein so we can wrap it

19

up in that area, the $10,000 from zero and the

20

other services under services on the same page.

21

Any brief explanation, Mr. Takahashi?

22

services on 14-14, zero to $10,000.

23

MR. TAKAHASHI:

6129

I think the 10,000 is due to the

24

crime lab disposal expenses that we anticipate

25

for Fiscal 2007.

Previously, we had grant
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2
3

4

funding to cover those expenses.
CHAIR KANE:

So you would be able to correlate that

with the grant revenue that's disappeared?
MR. TAKAHASHI:

No, what happened was that grant

5

expired last year, so we no longer had that

6

grant monies for that purpose.

7

CHAIR KANE:

10

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson?

8

9

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, and t

s would be back

on 14-1 under investigative services equipment.
Again, there was a decrease of 15 -- you

11

Is that due to maybe a

12

know, almost 16 percent.

13

large piece of equipment that you purchased --

14

or you know, because usually with equipment,

15

you've been pretty consistent except, I guess,

16

in '05 you were way down, but in '04, I just

17

wondered what the

18

33,000.

19

MR. TAKAHASHI:

fferential might be for that

That equipment is probably due to the

20

lack of vehicles for Fiscal 2007.

21

any unmarked vehicles budgeted for the coming

22

year because of the scenario that we talked

23

about earlier.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Right.

ght.

We don't have

And one of

the things -- and I don't know if it would be
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underneath this section or something else, but

2

recently I had an opportunity to get a

3

presentation of video that can be remotely

4

monitored, let's say, right on the surface of

5

your computer.

6

The cameras aren't very expensive, but the

7

program is amazing because you can monitor it

8

from anywhere.

It's basically camera driven.

And because you have a shortfall of

9

10

officers, I was speaking with Captain Hirata and

11

I asked him if he would be interested in seeing

12

a demonstration of this, because I was

13

fascinated by it,

14

your Investigative Services Program that you

15

might be interested in to do either video

16

surveillance or, you know, where we have high

17

crime in the same repetitive areas, wo

18

be something that would be included in terms of

19

equipment or possible purchase in t

20

would it be in another area if you were so

21

inclined?

22

MR. AKANA:

and would this be an area in

d that

s area, or

We could -- we could -- we could

23

appropriate that in a lot of areas as far as

24

that, but the Investigative Services -- in the

25

area of covert operations and/or any type of
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technical support surveillance, et al., that

2

would be the environment to have the assigned

3

experts maintain, understand and use the

4

equipment appropriately.
And of course, if we ever went into an

5
6

environment of surveillance of hot spots in our

7

community, we'd want community input sometimes,

8

depending on the situation because, you know,

9

this great country, that's a little sticky with

10

some people when it comes to video surveillance,

11

unfortunately.

12

in public places, frankly.

13

cops.

14

for other individuals and their political

15

orientations.

16

You know, I mean the reality of
Not for us, not for

We'll do what we got to do but, you know,

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well, I -- you know,

17

specifically I've been really interested because

18

of our parks

19

and that costs us so much money, but where we

20

have repetitive crimes taking place in our

21

parks -- so anyway, I just wanted to find out if

22

this would be an area where we

23

looking at something, because I will try and

24

have the demonstration with Captain Hirata and

25

try and bring to the Council some potential

cause we get so much vandalism,

ght possibly be
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costs -- or to you to see if it might be of

2

interest.

3

you could see the display and you could check it

4

from a computer anywhere, whether it was in your

5

home or anywhere.

6

MR. AKANA:

I was really impressed, though, when

Yeah,

thank you so much for your input,

7

and we are certainly open to exploring t

8

like that.

9

that out on the Pali,

ngs

Honolulu Police Department is doing
yeah, and we have some

10

very good -- we have a part time specialist with

11

our special response team that is charged with a

12

variety of those types of techniques and

13

technologies.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

15
16

Great.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Another place to provide

17

that information may be the Police Commission,

18

Ms. Johnson.
Ms. Anderson,

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

you have t

Thank you, Chair.

Just moving down the line

21
22

CHAIR KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

floor.

rei 14-15.

Yes.
Is there a reason that

24

item 63-5, your miscellaneous supplies have gone

25

up 15,000?
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CHAIR KANE:

2

MR. AKANA:

3

4

Juvenile Section.
You know, I'd have to -- I'd have to ask

with specificity.
MR. TAKAHASHI:

Okay.

Greg, can you answer that?
We're asking $15,000 for a

5

summer youth camp program that we want to

6

continue.

7

that grant funding expired.

Previously, we had grant funding and

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

MR. TAKAHASHI:

10
11

No.

And you can't get it again?

It was a three-year grant, I

believe.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Good.

Thank you.

12

And then your cellular phone cost has gone up

13

$12,000 in one year.

14

well?

15

MR. TAKAHASHI:

Could you explain that as

Yeah, we lost that grant as well.

16

had grant funding for,

17

eight cellular phones and we lost that funding

18

as well.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We

I think, eight phones

And so how many phones does

$12,000 buy you?

21

MR. TAKAHASHI:

22

MR. AKANA:

Roughly about 13 with service.

Just FYI, we have at least

- we have

23

about 150 to 155 cell phones in our

24

organization, and any law enforcement

25

organization that wants to move into the future,
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I would probably think that cell phones will be

2

issued common equipment for all sworn

3

officers -- all police officers and some

4

civilian environments, and that's going to be

5

one of our moves.

6

We are going to try and secure some of

7

that money with Homeland Defense but it didn't

8

fit within the parameters so -- because any time

9

you can have the more redundancy or different

10

paths of communication you can take in crisis,

11

the better off you are.

12

phone in our environment.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So we're very pro cell

So I'm wondering if it would

14

be difficult for you folks to give us a

15

breakdown of what's been funded in the past by

16

grant money that you no longer have and what --

17

maybe new grant money you have now,

18

get an idea of how much money we were bringing

19

in from the outside that we're now having to

20

look to payout of our budget.

21

MR. AKANA:

Yes, ma'am.

so we just

Councilmember Anderson,

22

actually,

I think we're at about 2.8 mil wi

23

our grants, and it fluctuates and deviates a

24

little bit, but we will be more than happy to

25

give you a breakdown of where we were at with
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some of the grant funding and some of the few

2

grants that we have lost.
And as you know, in this -- the

3
4

post-Katrina stuff and some of the initiatives

5

by the current federal environment, you know,

6

even the cops things, we've been a little bit

7

hurt by some of these initiatives, but you know

8

what?

9

our grant funding from my

Our people are super at creativity with
- from our

10

perspective, so we'll give you some of them

11

breakdowns.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That would be great because

13

that would allow us to kind of understand what

14

we need to step up to that is never going to get

15

covered by grant money any more, because we

16

don't want to drop services.

17

MR. AKANA:

Yes, ma'am, thank you.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

And it's funny you should ask that

20

question because right before that,

21

Ms. Anderson, that's why we asked because we've

22

got multiple responses to losing grant, now

23

General Fund requests,

24

that question posed to the department so they

25

can help us understand that trend.

so we're going to have
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1

2

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

No.

Thank you, Ms. Tavares, questions in

this area?

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

10

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Pontanilla?
No.

Mr. Molina?

Okay.

No.

Thank you.

Mr. Hokama?

11

12

No.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, thank you.

14-8, Chief, special response team.

13

I

14

see you're asking for a sniper rifle with scope

15

and suppressor.

16

special -- special arms rifle?

17

MR. AKANA:

You know,

Is that the going price for a

I wouldn't know that with

18

specificity.

Assistant Chief Yabuta, th2t's his

19

bureau.

20

correct number to sign off on.

21

very expensive

22

but it actually just reinvigorating all of our

23

weaponry and we've had other people stay -

24

trained and it's primary and it supports snipers

25

in our special response team.

I would assume that they gave me
I know they're

it's very expensive weaponry,
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

Chief, you need to

Chief, I think there is a microphone

right

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

CHAIR KANE:

Please come forward.

-- next to you, Chief.

If you can

6

identify yourself for the record, first.

7

you.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

CHAIR KANE:

No, no.

10

MR. YABUTA:

Thank you.

11

Not like karaoke, huh?

Assistant Chief Gary Yabuta

of Investigative Services.
I just wanted to comment on the sniper

12
13

Thank

fIe.

The rifles that we currently have are

14

the Remington H-70 sniper rifles and they're

15

approximately -- I would say in the area of

16

twenty years old.

17

Yes, it seems costly but we want to make sure

18

that the rifle we have is extremely, extremely

19

accurate.

20

We're asking for one rifle.

We researched this particular rifle.

We

21

feel it's the most rifle -- the best rifle for

22

our capabilities.

23

out of the catalogue, we looked at the -- we

24

have -- on the market and based on the research,

25

we feel that this rifle is the best one for our

Again, we just

dn't pick it
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department.

2

looking at price.

3

would be fundamental for the purpose of the unit

4

and it will be versatile and, again, we want to

5

make sure that our people that use this rifle

6

have the best equipment possible.

7

It's not an elaborate rifle by

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

Again, it's something that

That's understood.

This is all

8

weather, all day, all night capability with your

9

scope?

10

MR. YABUTA:

Absolutely.

As far as night capability,

11

I would say that because of the quality of the

12

scope, we have the best capabilities that you

13

have under normal conditions.

14

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

And again, Chief, I don't have a

15

problem supporting these kinds of things.

16

cannot have our department under armed and

17

equipped than the bad guys out on the streets.

18

You know, we seen what happened to, I t

19

LAPD and the stress and difficulties their men

20

had when t

21

guys had a lot more advanced equipment than

22

them, and I can't see us placing our officers in

23

that kind of situation regarding their life and

24

safety.

25

y were outgunned.

The carbines, again,

I

nk,

I mean the bad

that is an
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expansion so what is currently your -- you're

2

moving all to 30 -- 30-caliber equipment then?

3

MR. YABUTA:

No, sir.

The carbine is -- I think

4

we're asking for is a fully automatic assault

5

type rifles, and the reason being is that we are

6

currently -- I would say the majority of our

7

current arsenal is semi-automatic.

8

the people out there -- and if you read the

9

papers the other day, Indonesia just wanted to

We know that

10

purchase 800 Mac-5s.

11

expect them to have fully automatic weapons, at

12

the very least.

13

supe

We need to have equal or

or

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

MR. YABUTA:

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

Our adversary, we can

Fire power.

-- fire power than the adversary.
Definitely, Chief.

I can

understand that.
Currently, we do not have canine

18
19

we -

20

within the department, right, Chief?

21

MR. YABUTA:

do

we have canine capabilities currently

We have narcotics detection canine

22

ability, too.

23

And of course, we do not have attack or other

24

dog capabilities.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We just retired a dog recently.

But t

s explosive detection

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524 2596

177
BF 4/13/06
1

canine, it would be only -

2

specified for explosive detection and would it

3

be able to work with narcotics or other types of

4

canine requirements?

5

MR. YABUTA:

No,

sir.

the training is

We found through studies and

6

from studying other departments that you can't

7

cross-train -- well, we shouldn't cross-train a

8

canine.

9

purpose whether it be bomb detection, whether it

10

be live missing persons, whether it be cadavers.

11

Each canine should have a specific purpose and

12

narcotics is a different realm.

13

dog that's a jac

14

Each canine should have a specific

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We can't have a

of-alI-trades.

So just follow with me,

15

gentlemen, please.

16

assistant us on Lanai with a missing person,

17

those dogs that they brought were specifically

18

trained to find people then, not necessarily

19

narcotics or explosives?

20

MR. YABUTA:

You know,

When we asked HPD to

I'm not familiar with the

21

Lanai case, but usually we ask the U.S. Marine

22

Corp. who have dogs that are specifically

23

trained for missing persons and cadavers.

24

They're -- and those dogs performed beautifully

25

in 9/11, but no, again, whatever dogs were used
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2

on Lanai were not narcotics dogs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

With this expansion -- the

3

dog is assigned to a specific officer and it's

4

budgeted in

5

can

6

would be, please, Chief -- Mr -- Chief Yabuta,

7

or Mr. Takahashi?

8
9

also?

MR. YABUTA:

r the upkeep and care of the
I was trying to find where that

Yeah, that particular canine would fall

under the special response team.

It will fall

10

under the direction of a Police Officer III, who

11

we already have on staff.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

officer?

14

MR. YABUTA:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And the dog will stay with that

That is the overall plan.
Okay.

Is there a special

16

allowance that you folks have budgeted for the

17

care and training up -- you know, upgrade

18

training of the canine in your request,

19

vete

20

budgeted in

narian requirements, are those things

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

MR. TAKAHASHI:

r this request, please?

Mr. Takahashi?
Yes, it is.

It is budgeted under the

23

Vice Division, though.

We have $5,000

24

additional that we're requesting for the canine

25

program, and it's under -- subobject 6221.
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CHAIR KANE:

What page?

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm sorry, again.

Is it 14-14, Mr. Takahashi?

Thank you.
And the reason I ask that is

5

because, you know, further up on that page, we

6

have animal care, we've got zero.

7

zeroed it out, or you folks are recommending

8

zeroing out that animal care account,

9

just was wondering how it would take care of the

10

You know, we

6003, so I

animal.

11

Okay.

I'm done.

12

Chief Yabuta.

13

regarding the questions.

Thank you very much,

I appreciate your comments
Thank you.

14

MR. YABUTA:

Thank you.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Members, any additional questions in the

16

area of investigative services?

17
18

Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I just had one question and

19

it's apropos of the replacement of

20

rifles or whatever the equipment is.

21

have equipment that is very old and in some

22

cases almost approach

23

you do with that equipment once you decommission

24

it?

25

MR. AKANA:

ether it's
When you

g antique stage, what do

Is it destroyed?
Yeah, some of our old arsenal is
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destroyed, and actually some of it we keep -- we

2

just -- we keep it stored in our firearms

3

arsenal,

4

actually.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Because I was curious

5

because some of these items, because they are so

6

old and I know some of these
My husband, he used to,

7

for years,

8

collect firearms,

and so some of the pieces that

9

he had were really old, and I mean I suppose if

10

you wanted to,

11

money on eBay to help,

12

the costs, but I guess that wouldn't be too

13

prudent for the police to be doing that.

14

MR. AKANA:

Well,

you could make quite a bit of
you know,

offset some of

actually we're moving towards

15

you know,

16

like the Honolulu Police Department.

17

working on that for a year now because yeah,

18

our inventories that we need to get out of

19

there.

20

towards an Internet auction scenario,

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

We've been
for

Well, that's really good to

21

know because, you know,

I'm not sure.

22

you know,

23

know,

24

particularly older rifles,

25

the companies actually going out of business

I just,

assumed that mostly you destroy,

you

the equipment, but when you have
and now with some of
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On American Rifle Man, they were showing

1

2

all of these guns that I was shocked at the

3

prices that they're getting for some of these

4

weapons,

5

them just for collection, if nothing else.

6

Thank you.

7

MR. AKANA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

11

and so

and people just buy

Thank you.
Any final questions in this area?
Yes, Ms. Anderson followed by

9

10

you know,

Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well,

I can't see where else

12

to ask this question so I'm going to ask it now.

13

If it's not appropriate, let me know.
How are you guys doing with the stun gun

14
15

program?

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

MR. AKANA:

Tasers.
Tasers, whatever.

You know, let's see, it's the greatest

19

tool in law enforcement since the portable

20

radio.

21

enforcement since common sense.

22

greatest tool in law enforcement since

23

handcuffs.

24

enforcement since a law enforcement -- a police

25

officer with the right type of -- whose mind is

It's the greatest tool in law
It's the

It's the greatest tool in law
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It's been absolutely

1

his primary weapon.

2

it's been absolutely a success thus far.

3

Officer injuries are down.

4

a six-month assessment but we need more numbers,

5

but here is one of the key things about the

6

Taser:

7

without a messy scrap.

8

Unbelievable.

We're not -- we had

Voluntary compliance to the officer

It's been great.

And we are

9

100 percent.

- all of our front line is

10

Taser armed now.

11

armed now.

12

has his own Taser.

13

policy on oversight.

You know that every Taser

14

has a computer chip.

Every Taser deployment is

15

a use of force issue that's routed to Internal

16

Affairs immediately.

17

account

In other words, every patrol officer
And we have strict, strict

We have strong

ility in the program.
You know,

18

All of our front line is Taser

you can

ect, of course,

19

challenges,

right, because any time the

20

government has these weapons,

21

but no,

22

tool,

23

agencies are being hesitant just because of

24

fearful mandates by certain environment

25

politically.

I tell you somethi

oh, my God, yeah,
It's a great

and it's a tragedy that more -- that
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'm happy to see it's such a

2

success and you've had no problems.

3

news.

4

MR. AKANA:

5

few -

6

didn't go the way we wanted them to.

7

I believe, two or three lives, suicidal people.

8

We had an unfortunate one where our officer

9

whacked with the Taser, but unfortunately the

Oh, no, we've -

gentleman

11

got him.

13

we've had -

we've had a

you know, we had a few discharges that

10

12

That's good

lIed himself before t

We saved,

Taser probe

So oh, no, it's -- it's working.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you very much for

that.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Pontanilla?

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

My question is in regards to the

16

I know we're going to hear

17

take-home program.

18

t

19

vehicle that is being budgeted ri

20

Sho

21

do you guys have a back-up plan as far as the

22

number of vehicles that is going to be required

23

for this department?

s later on, but in '07,

d t

24

MR. AKANA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

ta

there is only one
t now.

-home program don't go through,

Are we going -

is that okay, Chair?

We can -- we can -
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1

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Since we were talking

about '07.
with operations.

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

We don't see anything for

5

, 07.

6

something to back up this particular division.

7

MR. AKANA:

I just want to make sure that we have

Our back up

I can answer it swiftly.

8

plan is to say,

"Whoa, time out."

9

vehicles back in because

We need those

You know, let me give you a quick

10
11

overview of the

- let's see, the birthing of

12

this idea.

13

were talking story about a va

14

including police retention and recruitment and

15

some of the issues in law enforcement, public

16

safety and the constant critique about the lack

17

of presence in certain

18

patrol officers, not enough presence, yada,

19

yada,

Chief Phillips and Mayor Arakawa
ety of things,

ronments, not enough

yada.
So the vision now comes and he goes,

20
21

"Hey, you know what?

22

jump quickly ahead of the game because you can't

23

get the bodies as quickly as you can get the

24

what,

25

story is now,

the cars?"

How do you -- how can you

So the story comes now -- the

"Why don't we flood our beautiful
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1

county and let every front line officer

2

patrol car?"

3

over.

4

These people going here, there, everywhere.

5

Patrol cars allover the place.

Several dynamics.

Guy coming home.

a

~ave

Presence.

All

Guy coming to work.

And we already, actually, have very good

6

Our patrol officers, irregardless of

7

presence.

8

what anybody wants to say, are the hardest

9

working sector one guys, I mean case for case,

10

place by place.

You guys drive around and I

11

don't know how many of you pass patrol cars, so

12

that's how that evolved.
If this doesn't fly for whatever

13
14

reasons, we respect it but we say,

15

Give us those 23 unmarked we asked for.

16

those" -- I mean the 23 marked, the 25 marked,

17

the 33 unmarked, the 13 SUVs, the five pickup

18

trucks.

19

let's sit down, talk story, start t

20

and get going, because you can remove all our

21

equipment but don't let our kids not have them

22

cars.

23

And if we can't work

"Time out.

th t

Give us

t, then
camp fire

And that's my comment there.
And it's about 2.3 mil totality less the

24

4.5 mil vision but we also have -- we're

25

realistic, right?

You have to be.

You know,
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Logistically you have what?

1

don't know.

2

going to have to increase Radio Shop, more

3

mobiles, more apparatus in the vehicles.

4

are we going to need?

5

more kids in that motor pool.

6

need a night shift motor pool coordinator.

7

Because we do basic maintenance, right?

What

We're going to need a few
We're going to

We're going to have a very strict and

8

9

We're

rigid policy.

The culture of an officer just

10

driving home changes, right, because why?

11

better act.

12

smoke a cigarette, turn on Hawaiian music and

13

keep driving.

14

exhausting.

15

overtime.

He's in a marked car.

He's got to act.
What does that do?

He can't

Now that's
Increase the

So there's all kind of dynamics with

16

Disc

ine, like

17

this strict take-home policy.

18

anybody else has in life, but we'd be -- it

19

would be a huge, huge -

20
21
22
23

He

actually, it's a really

fty vision, albeit costly, yeah?

But then all

visions are costly, either in blood or in money_
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
the vision is really,

24

MR. AKANA;

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, I agree with you,
really good.

Yeah.
Probably the other problem
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1

2

would be the replacement cycles.
MR. AKANA:

Yeah, we did discuss that, Councilman

3

Pontanilla.

4

know, you could -- first of all, again, going

5

back, does the philosophy -- is the idea -- does

6

the idea have validity?

7

you do with anything, right?

8

idea, gang?

9

you -- how do you -- how do you bring this

10

You're absolutely right.

And you

That's the first thing
Is this a good

And then the second idea is how do

vision to fruition?
Well, probably the prudent thing would

11

12

be to -- is to sequence it in through sectors

13

and districts, right?

14

the prudent thing, because we're also working on

15

reinvigorating the cars -- the way our cars

16

look.

17

Kaneohe Marine Corp Air Base, I mean we need to

18

sharpen those cars up

19

our community, so that's going to cook, too.

20

That probably would be

In about 20 years, looking like MPs from

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

r these young

ds in

Thank you for your

21

wonderful comments in regards to take home

22

vehicles.

23

MR. AKANA:

Mahalo.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Chair.

Ms. Anderson?
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I feel forced to say this.

2

And with all due respects to Chief Phillips and

3

to the Mayor on this take-home car thing, last

4

year I was fortunate to have a former police

5

officer from your department working on my

6

staff.

7

across the nation to find ways that we could

8

build initiatives or incentives into the

9

department that would help with the recruitment

10
11

He spent a lot of time doing research

of more officers.
It was about a seven or eight-page

12

letter with lots of ideas and research,

13

statistics nationwide.

14

the Mayor.

15

It was sent to the Police Commission.

16

That letter was sent to

It was sent to the Chief of Police.

The Police Commission re

ewed that

17

letter extensively and the research attached to

18

it, and they were the ones that came up

19

I'm sure in

20

scussion

th Chief Phill

and
s-

th the idea of the take-home vehicle because

21

this is an added incentive to recruit officers.

22

If they don't have to buy a vehicle to get to

23

and from work and a vehicle is provided -- you

24

know, we're constrained by certain State

25

restrictions on being able to raise salaries,
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1

but we certainly can, within the counties, add

2

incentives that will help us recruit more

3

officers and retain them.

4

And I just want to put that in because I

5

want to give credit where credit is due, and one

6

of your former officers put a lot of time into

7

that research.

8

sent me a very nice letter thanking us for the

9

research that was done on that issue.

And the Police Commission was --

And so I

10

just want to get that on the record, that the

11

Police Commission,

12

getting this idea promoted.

13

other -- very many other incentives like, you

14

know, housing allowance, all kinds of things

15

that we can do as a County to make it more

16

advantageous for people to come and make a

17

career in the Police Department.
And I t

18

I think, was very involved in
And there were very

nk this is a great idea

19

because, like you said, there's going to be

20

attached to it more expense, but just to

21

increase the presence of our officers in all of

22

the communities, and if they're willing to do

23

this,

you know, it almost makes them 24/7, you

24

know.

If someone -- if someone sees a police

25

car in somebody's driveway and they've got a
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1

problem, you can bet they're going to go

2

there.
So I just wanted to put that on the

3
4

record because -

5

probably say the same thing if he was here.

6

MR. AKANA:

Okay.

and I'm sure the Chief would

Very good.

And this is the story

7

Chief Phillips told me in the evolution of it.

8

Marc Hodges -- let's say his name.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
MR. AKANA:

Yes.

Because he's an excellent former officer

11

and he created the genesis of the report war

or

12

and that's why we're the only county police

13

department that has the major motor vehicle

14

forms,

15

application was in conjunction with Mary -- the

16

Police Department's IT initiative is going to be

17

huge.

nor motor vehicle forms, and his

And actually, we paid great attention to

18
19

Marc's ideas, albeit now for us,

20

didn't

21

idea of take-home vehicles was not anything new

22

in the context of that -- in the context of the

23

idea, you know.

ow that that was one of

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

MR. AKANA:

I guess, I
s i

as.

The

Right.

But, you know, it only takes a few people
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1

to push the idea through to the visionary

2

stages,

3

former Of

4

with us,

5

so --

so mahalo.

We recognize Officer --

cer Marc Hodges who is now reapplying
and absolutely he should be recognized,

But nonetheless, you know,

6

I don't want

7

to turn this into -- you know,

there's a saying,

8

the greatest leaders are those who -- are those

9

who give ideas to somebody else and they think

10

the other person thought it was their idea to

11

begin with.

12

great sign of leadership.

13

"It sure was your idea, buddy.
Okay.

14

That's the greatest -- that's a

So I guess,

15

all day long with that,

16

mahalo.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

MR. AKANA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

"It was my idea."
Good for you."

you know, we can go

you know what I mean,

so

Thank you, Chief.

1 right.

Before we go any further on that area

ecifically speaking,

the request was for --

21

the take-home program was going to be in the

22

Uniformed Patrol Services Program, okay?

23

and the comments by the Deputy regarding the

24

prudency of how we approach that, we will get to

25

that point; however,

So

at this point I'd like us
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1

to continue walking through -- are there any

2

further questions in the Investigative Services

3

area?
If not, we will now get into Uniformed

4

5

Patrol Services, we will go through what we have

6

in our Details.

7

that, we will look at a recess.

8

come back and see if we're ready to have at

9

least an initial discussion of the take-home

10

And once we have exhausted
And then we'll

program.
We may not have enough information in

11

12

front of us so we may,

13

session, Members, when we have more information

14

and we can be better prepared to have that

15

discussion, and so that will be forthcoming as

16

far as Details.
But for now,

17

again,

schedule a night

let's continue our march

18

through t

19

looks like it ends up around 4 36.

20

now start with Ms. Johnson for questions.

21
22
23
24
25

Details which start on 4-19 and it

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
questions
CHAIR KANE:

And I will

I don't really have any

ght now.

Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson, in the area of Uniformed
Patrol Services Program, A, Band C Accounts?
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2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

I guess I'm going to

skip right to 14-28.

3

You have six public safety aides, and I

4

always thought that that meant crossing guards,

5

but I looked down under the traffic section and

6

I see you have crossing guards down there six

7

31 guards at ten hours a week, so what is a

8

public safety aide?

9

MR. AKANA:

A public safety aide is a full-time

10

worker that supports the sworn officers by doing

11

a lot of clerical work in the booking

12

environment of the cell blocks.

13

process prisoners, they may -- which includes

14

which includes paperwork, which includes photo

15

booking.

16

supplies.

17

questions when walk in -- when people walk into

18

some of the substations.

19

sometimes make runs for certain issues

20

supplies or pick-ups or

21

but it's kind of -

22

sworn officer in clerical related environment

23

job tasks would be kind of the overview.

24
25

They may

They -- you know, they help with
They help with some front line

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

They kind of -- they
r

ings of that nature,

it's great support for the

Yeah, now, I remember this
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1

MR. AKANA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

4

Yeah.
-- we talked about the EP

counts.
MR. AKANA:

And then, of course, a school crossing

5

guard, more geared toward, you know, a

6

part-timer who just, you know, enjoys working a

7

little bit part-time and helping our keikis get

8

across the many, many numerous elementary

9

schools and -- throughout our County.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I appreciate this -- these

11

are all Kihei positions because that will mean

12

the actual officers will have more time on the

13

road and public presence.
And so while I'm on this, Chief, when

14
15

can -- the people at -- in the Kihei Community

16

Association, they feel that it's very important

17

that we get some officers on bikes to patrol the

18

beach parks, and,

19

problem.

20

that's helping out a lot but they're only there

21

two

22

during the day,

you know, we know it's a

We've got a citizen patrol right now

ghts a week, and the problems are often
too.

And so can you give us any idea when we

23
24

might be able to expect something like that?

25

know we

0

y have one community officer.
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1

supposed to have,

I think,

2

have to build up to that again, but is that ever

3

a possibility

4

MR. AKANA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

MR. AKANA:

three and I know we

Oh--

You know,

-- to have a bike patrol?

I mean all these things are

7

ever a possibility

8

always a possibility.

9

imprudent of me to say,

absolutely.

They're

It would be unf

r or

"We're going to start a

10

bike patrol this time or this date."

11

actually had many -- several assays of -- like

12

our patrol sergeant, Acting Lieutenant Commander

13

Anzai has led assays on bicycle patrols

14

intermittently throughout the year,

15

We've

actually.

But as far as a permanent bike patrol

16

scenario for Kihei, we'd have to stabilize.

17

We'd have to stabilize dealing with those 8,000

18

arrests a month and the 10,000 calls to 911, and

19

you'd have to stabilize front line services.

20

And you know,

21

recruiting, attack it like crazy, because all

22

these answers are -

23

to that answer -- to that question.

24
25

really,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

that's why you attack the

there are so many dynamics

So I mean just on a

ballpark, can you -- can you tell us how far you
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2
3

are

om full -- from all positions being

lIed?
MR. AKANA:

Well, let's see now.

We're at about

4

42ish to 44ish vacancies.

We have about 35ish

5

offers out in various stages.

6

would be when will we be -- when will we be

7

full?

8

Christ is coming back," because we'll never --

9

and I'm not -

And then I would reply,

But my answer

"Tell me when

you know, we'll never be full all

10

the time.

There's a little bit of

11

get under 5 percent consistently through the

12

year where you have maybe 10 or 12 or 15

13

vacancies, that is true realistic.

uid.

Go

Because I would be -- I would be giving

14
15

you a false sense of optimism to say full and --

16

you know,

17

happen, that the political environment does in a

18

State level -- t

19

awesome.

20

tell you that right now.

21

Mayors, though.

22

take care of them firemen.

23

care of them cops.

24

them.

25

though, plenty wah a when it comes to the wages

some day I hope to God that that does

s County level

s been

You guys have been awesome to us.

I

And so have the

Let's get real.

You've got to

You've got to take

You got to take care of

But you know what?

I tell you something,
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2

for police officers.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Plenty waha.
You know, if you -

you have

3

40 vacancies right now and hopefully you're

4

going to fill 35 of them?

5

MR. AKANA:

You know what?

That would be super.

We

6

have 42ish vacancies out, 35 offers out in

7

various stages, which means some have just been

8

offered, some are in the psych stage, some are

9

in the medical assessment stage, some are

10

waiting.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

MR. AKANA:

Yeah.

Yeah, so now, but we have a fast track

13

coming.

14

that in the next couple months, so we're going

15

to try and keep pushing, pushing, pushing and

16

blitzkrei

17

you, 30, 35 of our upper echelon can retire in

18

the next two or three years.

19

Acting Lieutenant Becraft is mov

ng (sic) t

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

g on

s thing, because I tell

Yeah.

Wow.

It is crazy.

And that v s what I was

20

going to bring up, because it seems to me like

21

we were -- had 40 vacancies last year anu the

22

year before, too.

23

MR. AKANA:

Yeah.

Actually, I can tell you, for me,

24

when I came in -- when I was appointed in May of

25

2000, there were about 48 to 50ish vacancies.
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We took those down to 17 in 2003, but there was

2

a lot of dynamics that happened.

3

actually a positive for law enforcement in

4

recruiting because what happened after those few

5

weeks of 9/11?

6

those kids were looking for something that would

7

give them permanency.

Wow, those tourist related jobs,

So we went -- you know, and also for two

8
9

9/11 was

and a half years, we ran overlapping recruit

10

classes that was never done before, but boy, we

11

got snagged in 2004 for just a variety of

12

reasons.

13

They weren't taking that test and whatever.

14

we will always take responsibility partially for

15

that because we're the professionals that need

16

those good kids.

17

of the best recruiters is the cop, and those

18

numbers also show it in Acting Lieutenant

19

Becraft's numbers when we do our --

20

They weren't coming through that door.

And as a matter of fact,

And

one

We did 442 surveys came back to us

21

voluntarily, and one of the persons -- I think

22

about 20 percent of those 400 surveys said

23

another officer said, "Hey, this is not a bad

24

career, you know.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

It's actually a blast."
Okay.

Thank you.

In your
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2
3

opinion.
MR. AKANA:

Oh, no, no, it is a total blast, believe

me.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tavares?

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

No.

Mr. Pontanilla?
This is for uniform?

We are in Uniformed Services.
Yeah.

You know those

10

speed monitors that you put on the side of the

11

road?

12

MR. AKANA:

13
14

CHAIR KANE:
please?

16

MR. KIKUCHI:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

MR. KIKUCHI:

20

Oh, I'd have to acquiesce to Assistant

Chief Syd

15

19

How many of those do we have?

kuchi for that exact numbers.

Chief, if you can identify yourself,
Thank you.
Syd-You're on.

Go ahead.

Syd Kikuchi.

It's on.

I'm an Assistant Chief

r the Uniformed Services.
If my memory serves me correctly, we

21

have two; one that's directly assigned to our

22

Traffic Division and I believe we have another

23

in a different district that we utilize always.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
the speed monitors?

Would you know the cost of
The reason I'm asking all
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this is that whenever you put up the speed

2

monitors, you know, people slow down, and, you

3

know, I've seen that on Papa Avenue quite often.

4

And, you know, you've done good things out

5

there.

6

MR. KIKUCHI:

We actually have the speed monitors out

7

every week at some different location because

8

there are so many requests for it, so it's out

9

always at some location.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, if we could get some

11

numbers on the cost, maybe increase those

12

numbers.

13

MR. AKANA:

We would be more than happy to, and

14

actually, I mean, it's a no-brainer.

15

of them out there, the better for us.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yes.

17

MR. AKANA:

You're right.

Yeah.

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

19

MR. AKANA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

CHAIR KANE:

The more

Thank you.

Yeah, we ve got to get more.
Thank you, Chair.

Yeah, Mr. Taguma -

Officer Taguma is

22

doing a good job in Kihei on Piilani Highway, by

23

the way.

24

MR. AKANA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Officer Taguma does a great job.
Yeah.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

201
BF 4/13/06
1

MR. AKANA:

Go get 'em, Keith.

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Member Molina, you have a floor.
Thank you, Chairman.

Under Central Maui Patrol, the meal

4

5

allowance, can you folks explain the fluctuation

6

in -- I guess in '05, there is 50,955

7

appropriated, and then it dropped to 25,000, and

8

now this year, it's back up to 51,000?

9

MR. AKANA:

I'm going to let Greg ponder that.

I'll

The general answer is if

10

give a general answer.

11

this is in relationship to the meal allowances

12

for our officers, then it's connected to a

13

premium pay issue so -- and of course I don't

14

know why that fluctuation is there, but there is

15

always an expectation, more premium pay, more

16

overtime, more meal allowances because the meal

17

allowances when you go into the double shifting

18

so -- and if I'm not mistaken, we're at &bout

19

1.8 mil t

20

I just don't know the fluctuation on that.

21

Greg's going to have to reach deep for me on

22

this one.

23

MR. TAKAHASHI:

past seven months of Fiscal '06, so

Okay.

Actually, it's not a

24

fluctuation.

You're comparing the Fiscal 2006

25

budget, yeah, of 20,000, I think?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

MR. TAKAHASHI:

Yeah, 25,000.

25,000, yeah.

The prior year was

3

50,000, and before that was about 38, 39,000,

4

and this has been a trend.

5

the collective bargaining contract did change

6

back in -- I think it was 2004, and basically

7

any time an officer works on a scheduled day

8

off, they get three meals.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
MR. TAKAHASHI:

You know, basically

Okay.

Which is $8, 3.50 and 3.25, something

11

like that.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

All right.

Thank you.

13

And on the subject of food,

14

know, you mentioned -- Chief, you mentioned

15

earlier about the community support.

16

we had more support from the community in terms

17

of the restaurants?

18

discounted meals or free meals to t

19

officers?

20

MR. AKANA:

I guess, you

Do -- have

I know they offered
beat

Have there been any more

Oh, you know,

I think this community

21

supports police officers very well and, you

22

know, you -- I mean glass half full, glass half

23

empty, yeah?

24

matter what, so --

25

I'm a glass half full guy no

Well, first of all, we're not

- you
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know, we have a strict policy about them free

2

meals so we're not -- you know, we have

3

general

you know, it can be gratuitous, yeah,

4

and the

I mean organization and integrity of

5

organization is more important than stuff like

6

that for us, but I can't gauge that answer as

7

far as free meals.
As far as community support in general,

8
9

I tell you something, our officers should really

10

reflect on the appreciation of this body and the

11

people of this County have for them.

12

to respond to the few lolos.

13

the great people give our officers plenty aloha.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

The majority of

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

15

16

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

17

Members?

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Further questions in this area?

I had a question.

Mr. Hokama?
Chief,

for Lanai it's tough, but

21

what would be the staffing for of

22

sergeant ratio, in general?

23

Our job is

MR. AKANA:

In general,

cer to

I believe five to one-ish.

24

One supervisor to five patrol officers

25

generally, maybe six to one, but that's the -- I
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

204
BF 4/13/06
1

think about the recognized span of control in

2

the patrol environments.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And if Chief Kikuchi feels

4

to think about this -- the response, that's

5

fine.

6

additional Police Officer II or a second

7

Sergeant?

8

some of the family requirements that the

9

Lieutenant, the Commanding Officer and the

For Lanai, what is more important,

an

And again, I just state that knowing

10

Sergeant has regarding their family requirements

11

on Maui.

12

off, the Sergeant's on Maui,

13

PO-2s.

14

to my colleagues,

15

serves the district better operationally as well

16

as from a supervisory -- a management

17

perspective?"

18

MR. KIKUCHI:

There's times when the Commander's
and we have all our

Does it make better sense for me to say
"I think a second sergeant

You folks have a comment,

Yes, you know,

19

it would be i

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

MR. KIKUCHI:

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

MR. KIKUCHI:

aI,

if we co

ease?

d have both,

of course.

Of course.

Of course.
I agree.

You know,

the -- to have

- our normal

24

or District Commander Lieutenant, as you know,

25

he works during the day, Monday through Friday,
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and the Sergeant normally works the night shi

2

He covers that night-time area.

3

tough call to -- actually to select one or the

4

other.

5

service on Lanai comparatively -- when you

6

compare it to District I, our Wailuku, Kihei,

7

Lahaina area is relatively lighter, much

8

lighter, so I --

Of course, you know,

At this present time,

9

And that is a

the calls for

actually we wanted

10

that extra position for the Police Officer II to

11

assist us with covering extra -- extra shift,

12

but also to address the growing drug problem.

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

MR. AKANA:

Okay.

You know, sir, if you reverse -- if you

15

reverse the perspective, a patrol officeL on

16

Lanai would say one more patrol officer.

17

sergeant on Lanai would say one more sergeant,

18

so I mean --

The

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

managers.

21

the department.

22

overall perspective and requirements a lot

23

better than what is just in the district.

24

course, I got my own biases because it's my

25

home.

Yeah,

You know,

I thought ask the senior
you're the top echelon of

You know your department's
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2
3

MR. AKANA:

supervisor on that island, obviously, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

4

5

It would be great to have an additional

CHAIR KANE:

Further questions in this area?
Members, the Chair intends to take a

7

recess and then come back and then finish up in

8

two areas:

9

services program, and then the police grant

10
11

rst, the technical and support

revenue area as well.
And before we call a recess, the Chair

12

will ask Members for your consideration to

13

request from the department to provide an

14

estimate of the funds needed for a regular

15

vehicle replacement program.

16

at a combination, take into your comments -- and

17

it's not just because of your comments, but this

18

is something that has been pondered wi

19

Chair and the staff is to provide for an

20

implementation of a pilot project on the

21

take-home vehicle program and incorporate also

22

your regular, and do a combo of the two from the

23

prudent approach of -- so the body as well as

24

the department can understand the potential

25

impacts of a County-wide program by starting off

And if we can look
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with a pilot.
Now,

2

that's just a recommendation,

3

Members, to ask for your approval and having the

4

department prepare that so that we can come back

5

and have a specific discussion in this area in

6

light of the fact that this budget proposal

7

lacks a vehicle replacement program.

8

this will provide us an opportunity to discuss

9

three options as starting points and then look

So I think

10

at anything in between as we go through the

11

discussion.

12
13

Any objections to that request going
forward, Members?

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS

15

CHAIR KANE:

16
17

recess,

Okay.

Ms. Tavares, before we go to

I know you have comments.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

No, not necessarily a comment

18

but I wanted to ask the Chief -- Deputy Chief

19

here, would it be feasible

20

answer is going to be yes,

21

money -- to look at the Kihei concern that

22

Ms. Anderson brought up regarding bicycle

23

tours -- wrong subject.

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

and I'm sure your
it just depends on

Patrol?
Bicycle patrol because you
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did have it in Lahaina at one time -- I don't

2

know if you still have it in Lahaina -- but on

3

and of

4

between, like, 5:00 p.m. and/or 6:00 p.m. and

5

the time that the parks are supposed to close,

6

like at 10:00 or 11:00; would that be a

7

possibility?

8
9

MR. AKANA:

duty basis for just certain hours

Oh, that's -- I mean that's always a

possibility.

You know,

I mean -- you know,

I

10

would

- I would subject myself to say Assistant

11

Chief Kikuchi, that's his team of people, and

12

he's going to sit down and talk story with his

13

people, talk story with some community leaders

14

and assess if the bike patrol theory would be

15

better than, like, an ATV theory

16

environment because Kihei is different from

17

Lahaina.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

MR. AKANA:

that

Right.

Lahaina bike patrol, you're tal

ng about

20

one square mile -- three-quarter square

21

600 yards up mauka, makai, boom, left, go.

22

mean these guys had that down.

23

have bikes right now in Lahaina because of the

24

situation.

25

for a little while.

Ie
I

No, we don't

Officer Migita has been out of that
But Kihei, you know, might
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have more functionality with different types of

2

transportation, not necessarily bicycles,

3

because Kihei is a long city.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

MR. AKANA:

Right.

A town, you know.

So the officers might

6

be able to give us some input, but frankly at

7

this time, you know, you're talking about any

8

special ops -- any type of special ops goes back

9

to the overtime issue, goes back to the off-duty

10

thing of exhaustion and all this stuff and, you

11

know -- and you know, it is a tiresome

12

conversation, yeah, this

13

people.

14

the programs, throw everybody in a blue and

15

white car but awe, cannot do that, right?

16

all would scream.

17

Everybody wants community police officers back

18

in their community to service them in their

19

you know, in all of their little issues.

- about our frent line

You know, sometimes you wonder kill all

They

These guys would scream.

20

So you know what?

We would be more than

21

willing to explore those avenues.

22

have a great young leader down there in

23

right now with Acting Captain Ramos, a bunch of

24

good sergeants, some great coppers and an

25

assistant chief that would be more than happy to

You know, you
~ihei
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sit down with that environment.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

MR. KIKUCHI:

5

Thank you.

Thank you.
I'm sorry.

Can I add to that just

briefly, sir?

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MR. KIKUCHI:

Chief, go ahead.
We do have a meeting scheduled next

8

week with the community association to talk

9

about that very topic, but also once again,

just

10

as a reminder, the bicycle patrol program is a

11

voluntary program.

12

physical standards, training standards and such.

13

And we have done one or two operations down in

14

that area with bicycles and it was very, very

15

effective, but once again,

16

areas.

They do have to meet

it's for specific

The community is very, very

17

fferent

18

from the -- Lahaina, geographically, so all of

19

those things come into play.

20

frankly,

21

center, we have no storage space at all, so to

22

put -- to store the bicycles would be --

23

actually be no room at all for it.

And also, quite

at our present location in the shopping

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

MR. AKANA:

Take home.

Good idea.
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CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members?

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman?

Yes, Ms. Tavares.

Okay.

That's fine.

Thank you.

Mr. Hokama?
Chairman, so my understanding

7

that we basically had no objection to was you'll

8

be requesting information, and upon receiving

9

that information will bring back the vehicle --

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Replacement.
replacement program?

That is -- that is correct.
May I ask for your consideration

14

that if in the written requests for the chiefs

15

to respond to, if you could also have them put a

16

comment regarding motorized bikes, and whether

17

or not that is something we want to revisit

18

does it have a place now in 2007 Budget for us

19

to consider whether or not we want to expand

20

certain types of modes of transportation

21

capabilities for the department?

22

say modes, I'm talking about motor bikes, like

23

HPD.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

j

And so when I

So Mr. Hokama, before -- the

request that I asked of you folks had to do with
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the vehicle replacement.

2

discussion of bicycles and the bicycle patrol,

3

and your comment sounds like there's a

4

connected to the two different issues,

5

you help me understand what your request is?

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Then we got into a

it's
so can

Because I want to see if that is

7

a reasonable option of what type of vehicle we

8

might want to provide certain components of the

9

department, whether they be in uniform or

10

traf

c,

is that something that we want to look

11

at?

12

that we provide them with maybe a tandem team

13

with two bikes, and they go out and do the road

14

patrols instead of having a sedan or unmarked

15

vehicle,

16

ability to weave in and out of traffic may be an

17

advantage that we might want to offer the

18

department.

Instead of a regular four-tired vehicle,

they're out there on MPD bikes.

And again, Chairman,

19

you know,

And an

I

20

understand there's pros and cons regarding that

21

specific issue,

22

looking to investing millions, then why don't we

23

look at all of the options?

24

for your consideration.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

too.

If we're going to start

So I just ask you

Thank you.

We'll have that incorporated into
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the memo to the department for consideration.
And finally before we take the recess,

2
3

Members, Chief, understand the time constraints

4

that we have.

5

no later than the middle of next week, so that

6

provides your department, unfortunately, with

7

the task of providing us with recommendations

8

within days, and so we apologize but we want to

9

do the best we can to assist you folks in the

10

We'd like to have this discussion

program.

11

MR. AKANA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

We will do our best.

Okay, Members.

Thank you, Chief.

The

13

time now is 3:20.

14

we will reconvene then and pick up -- we will

15

pick up at Technical and Support Service

16

Program.

Okay.

17

RECESS:

3:20 p.m.

18

RECONVENE:

3:37 p.m.

19
20

R KANE:

(Gavel.)

reconvened.

We will recess until 3:35 and

We are in recess.

Okay.

(Gavel.)

Members, we're

Thank you for

at afternoon break.

We will pick up where we left off,

21
22

Members, on -- beginning on page 14-37 of your

23

Details.

24

Services Program.

25

and C Account in this area.

We're in Technical and Support
Members, we have your A, B
We will take you to
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the end of the binder section, 14-37 to 14-48.

2

I will start at this point from Member

3

Tavares.

4

and we can yield if you don't.

5

can move.

6
7

Do you have any questions in this area

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

CHAIR KANE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Could we get a status on its

whereabouts and what needs to be done more?
MR. AKANA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

MR. AKANA:

15

I had a question about

Please proceed.

11

14

Yes, ma' am.

Yes.

I see Mary's here.

If I may, Chairman, acquiesce and

allow Mary Wagner to the lectern?
CHAIR KANE:

Yes, def

itely.

Ms. Wagner, is it more

16

convenient to be at the podium?

17

that area and then we can pose those questions

18

to you.

19

You can use

Ms. Tavares?

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Ms. Wagner, if you can please step up to

22

the podium with your materials and if you can

23

identify yourself for the record, please?

24
25

we

the IT project.

8

10

Yes,

We'll move -

MS. WAGNER:

Hi.

Mary Wagner.

Good afternoon,

everyone.

I'm

I'm the IT project manager for the
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Police Department.
The IT project -- where we are

Okay.

2
3

currently is we've implemented most of our

4

hardware.

5

room,

6

new Windows platform servers.

7

within our facilities,

8

CAT 6E wiring.

9

wireless access points in each of the district

We've renovated our computer server

replaced all of our legacy systems with
We did the wiring

completely redid it with

We've installed 80211.g hot spot

10

facilities.

We have ten of those within the

11

Wailuku facility and two at each of the other

12

districts, one internal, one external.
We are at the point that we're just now

13
14

waiting for the software to be ready for

15

deployment for the CAD and RMS systems, but what

16

we've done so far is really been getting all the

17

infrastructure, hardware -- really buil

18

platform and getting it ready for software, so

19

that s

ere we are.

20

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tavares?

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

ng the

We've also --

Yes.

So when you get the

22

software, then you're up and operational once

23

the software is installed and the training and

24

stuff has to occur before it can be fully

25

operational?
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MS. WAGNER:

Correct.

Once the software is installed

2

and it's ready to go, it's been tested,

3

functional acceptance has taken place,

4

training begins.

5

go live and cut over, but training takes place

6

before you go live.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR KANE:

then

And then you have your actual

Thank you for that update.

Thank you.
Additional questions for Ms. Wagner,

9

10

Mr. Molina?

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

Yes,

thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good afternoon, Ms. Wagner.

Could I get

13

more information about the Applicant Live Scan

14

Fingerprinting Unit and how this will assist

15

with the police surveillance and enhancing

16

public safety, and has this type of equipment

17

been used in other neighbor island police

18

departments as well?

19

MS. WAGNER:

Well, let me explain what it is,

first

20

of all.

The Applicant Live Scan Units would

21

allow us to process applicants for firearms for

22

permits to aquire,

23

those processes which are necessary,

24

requirements to have fingerprinting done on

25

those.

firearm registration,

all of

FBI

It also is used for people who are
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applying for police positions, so police

2

applicants.
We would then have all of these

3
4

applicant work stations installed one at each

5

facility and allow us to process those.
I should also explain that the State

6
7

AG's Office, through the Hawaii Criminal Justice

8

Data Center, is implementing Criminal Live Scan

9

Units in each of our district facilities.

We

10

have to keep those separate.

They operate

11

different.

12

arrest or booking procedures -- will be done in

13

Criminal Live Scan Units and the applicants

14

would be for non-criminal matters, so that we

15

then would be completely inkless, so we would

16

just be all digital processing of fingerprints.

So the criminal -- like from any

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

More questions for Ms. Wagner, Members,

19

specific to IT?

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yes.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Who is installing the

23

equipment and what kind of equipment is this,

24

again?

25

MS. WAGNER:

It's been long.
The equipment itself related to the
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project has been primarily by our vendor, and

2

that is NEC Solutions America out of Sacramento,

3

Rancho Cordova, California.

4

number of subcontractors that have workeo with

5

them.

6

Henkels and McCoy, and they're looking to have,

7

like, Harmer do some of the wiring for the

8

mobile equipment in the vehicles, so there have

9

been other subs but the prime has been NEC

10

For instance, the wiring was done by

Solutions.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

15
16
17

Thank you.

Thank you.
Further questions in this area, Members?

13
14

They've had a

Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is Northrop Grumman one of your

subcontractors?
MS. WAGNER:

No.

What they are is the vendor of our
Initially, it was

18

legacy CAD RMS system.

19

PRC Litton, and they were bought out and now

20

they're Northrop Grumman, but that's our legacy

21

system that's still running now.

22
23
24
25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

You're in Phase II of the

IT program?
MS. WAGNER:

What we are in currently is Phase I.

We

broke the project down in Phase I and Phase II;
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Phase I being everything that was connected with

2

running the CAD and RMS web services,

3

management.

Phase II for us was the mobile

4

deployment.

We are in

5

up by fiscal years and funding, we are in the

6

fourth year of funding for the project.

7
8

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

jail

if you're breaking it

Have you had any cost

overruns in the implementation of the phasing?
MS. WAGNER:

Actually, we haven't.

What we've had

10

is -- the funding that was allocated each fiscal

11

year was used to -- to secure the initial

12

contract with NEC Solutions.

13

that, we've had additional amendments to the

14

contract and we just completed at the end of

15

last year Amendment Number 3 to the NEC

16

contract.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

MS. WAGNER:

Subsequent to

Okay.

And they've all been within the budgeted

19

amounts.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

This R&M service contracts amount

21

of 272,000 is for things outside of what the

22

vendor is supposed to provide the department?

23

MS. WAGNER:

I don't

I'm not looking at that

24

number but R&M,

25

agreements usually have to do with any other

repair and maintenance,

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofe: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

220
BF 4/13/06
1

support.

2

legacy system,

3

system until we're able to retire it.

4

that funding has been used for consulting

5

services.

6

prime contract with NEC.

7

built into our contract.

8
9

For instance, we have -- for the
that is being used to fund that
Some of

But it's outside of the contract, the

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

The maintenance is

Well, either for you or

Ms. Wagner, and I can speak about it in the

10

right time, but the need to move to a different

11

communication, I guess the 800 megahertz, would

12

you be involved in that transition?

13

MS. WAGNER:

No, that's the voice network and

14

voice -- my system is considered more the

15

digital data network.

16
17
18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We're not moving to digitized --

total digitized communication?
MS. WAGNER:

Well, they still would be separate so

19

that we can protect each one and make sure there

20

is redundancy for communications, but voice

21

networking and data networking are still

22

separate operations.

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Any more questions for Ms. Wagner?
Mr. Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah.

Thank you, Chairman.

Ms. Wagner, I forgot to ask you, you

2
3

know,

4

computers, are these computers tied into the

5

finger -- is it the fingerprinting unit

6

equipment or are these just replacement

7

computers upgrades over what you already have?

8
9

MS. WAGNER:

regarding the additional request for the

Those are for just replacement and

expansion.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

Thank you.

Further questions, Members,

for

Ms. Wagner on IT?
Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.

13
14

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

This question I have is, when do we

15
16

implement the computer units in the vehicles

17

themselves?

18

MS. WAGNER:

What we are looking to do is begin,

19

like, a pilot program later this summer.

20

just this month, had several vendors on site to

21

look at mounting hardware for the vehicles.

22

are trying to figure out what the total solution

23

will be, what different pieces will be needed,

24

but that, we hope, to have underway some time

25

this year in the latter part of the summer
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2

months.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

3

4

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Members?

5

6

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson?
Thank you, Mary.

I know you

7

and you know your job really well, and I really

8

appreciate that.
One of the things I think -- this was

9

ev~n

10

from a past budget session, and maybe

this

11

session, we were, I guess, informed that because

12

of space constraints, some of the areas are

13

getting kind of crowded, you know, that -- with

14

your equipment specifically.
I remember an issue, and I think it was

15
16

having to do with heat build-up or whatever.

17

Is -- was that ever an issue?

18

in here you have some equipment that would, I

19

guess, help dissipate heat from the computers.

20

I don't know.

21

hot air re

22

MS. WAGNER:

Because I notice

I'm just reading.

It saY8 the

ow system and accessories.

I know that in the main computer room,

23

of course, there are some temperature

24

constraints.

25

in a very cool environment, and that may be

You have to operate that equipment
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something that Captain Hudson was going to

2

address later, but the equipment in that room, I

3

believe, was in need of an update.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah.

And are you running

5

into any space problems with, of course, adding

6

equipment or some of the newer technology

7

actually fitting in the areas where you need to

8

grow your department?

9

MS. WAGNER:

Not at this time.

The newer equipment

10

has a smaller footprint so it's more compact in

11

size, so hopefully once the new system is fully

12

implemented, that means new software programs.

13

And once we can fully retire the old legacy

14

system, it would make more room and space for us

15

in our computer room.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Oh, that's really gratifying

17

because I'm really glad to hear that, you know,

18

it's actually taking up less space than more.

19

MS. WAGNER:

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22
23

It is.
That's wonderful.

Thank you.

Members, finishing up with Ms. Wagner?
Thank you very much.

Appreciate your

presence here this afternoon.

24

MS. WAGNER:

Thank you.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Members, further questions in this area?
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We're in support services as well as with

2

technical.
Mr. Hokama?

3

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chief, I know you made opening

5

comments regarding the voice communications and

6

I believe you said Captain Amaral is the one

7

that's been assigned the task for the

8

department.

9

details from you or the Captain, please,

Can we get a little bit more

10

regarding where we are and what's the financial

11

impact to the department?

12

MR. AKANA:

Absolutely.

And I would like to

13

acquiesce to Captain Amaral and his expertise,

14

if I may, Chair.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Captain, if you can please identify

16
17
18

Thank you.

yourself for the record?
MR. AMARAL:

Good afternoon.

Jeff Amaral, Captain

19

with Maui Police Chief's Of

20

assigned to the radio project known as the

21

800 re-banding situation that's going on.

22

ce currently

Basically where we're at right now as

23

far as the voice communication and what

24

Ms. Wagner alluded to was correct, that we have

25

a data network that's on her side of the
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

225
BF 4/13/06
1

computer end of it and the voice communications,

2

which is on our side of it.
Currently, you know, our system is

3
4

getting to the point where it's getting a little

5

bit aged.

6

years of use on the 800 side, which is an analog

7

system as we speak currently.

8

that was designed and purchased back in the

9

later '80s.

We probably have about another five

It was equipment

Currently, right now we're working a

10
11

project in which, because of some interference

12

issues with primarily cellular telephone

13

companies and being head by Sprint Nextel

14

because of the interference issues, we are going

15

through an FCC-mandated re-banding project which

16

is going to require us to move frequencies of

17

all of our repeater systems throughout Maui

18

County, which consists of four islands where we

19

have these sites, including the Island of

20

Hawaii.

21

Once that
Currently, we're in negotiations right

22

now for some planning monies because this --

23

this is going to be a multi-million dol12r

24

project which will be funded by Sprint Nextel,

25

so we're in the phase right now of negotiating
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our planning funds at which time we'll start

2

once that is approved by the transition

3

administrator and Nextel, we'll be starting our

4

planning meetings and what it's going to take to

5

actually change out some of the components of

6

our system, which have been identified as being

7

all portables and mobile radios, along with

8

things at each of our sites that's going to have

9

to be either retuned or replaced.

So as far as

10

that goes right now, that is the big push on the

11

800 voice side.

12

We also have been doing some upgrades in

13

other pieces of equipment, primarily some of our

14

concern has been our microwave system, which

15

it's kind of a back office operation when you

16

think about it.

17

our voice back to our 911 center.

18

system -- certain components are aging to the

19

point where the manufacturer is either not

20

producing it any more or we cannot get parts or

21

the technical staff that can support that is

22

dying off.

23

It's something that transports
That

So, with some Homeland Defense funds

24

that we have gotten, we're starting to change

25

certain legs of that microwave system but we
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still have quite a bit more to go and would like

2

to even enhance that system to make it a little

3

bit more robust.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Captain, so let me just state

5

this and let me know if I've got it correct.

6

This Sprint effort that you're working with fer

7

our Police Department, that is because of

8

changes at the Federal level and now it's

9

rippled down to where it impacts our County and

10
11

your department?
MR. AMARAL:

The mandates, Councilmember Hokama, is

12

from the Federal level.

13

started this whole process came from the local

14

levels throughout the country, and they broke it

15

down into four separate phases over a couple of

16

years.

17

The complaints that

The first phase for public safety has

18

just begun.

The reason Maui County is in

19

Phase I and not in the last phase is ea

20

when I was involved with the project the first

21

round, we identified strategic areas that

22

Nextel, at that point in time before the merger,

23

was causing specific geographic pockets of dead

24

space for our public safety responders.

25

because of that, we did file quite a few
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complaints and even had some Congressional

2

intervention there, and that's why we're in

3

Phase I as we speak currently.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So we will stay with

5

800 megahertz or -- at one time I thought you

6

mentioned we might have to move off of the

7

800 megahertz cycle and we're going to be

8

assigned a different

9

MR. AMARAL:

Okay.

different level.

Right now the way it's set up,

10

the 800 megahertz is interwoven with some of the

11

cellular carriers and that's why the process.

12

With this re-banding process that's taking

13

place, they're going to separate us and put

14

cellular where they belong and put public safety

15

where they belong.
The next initiative coming up following

16
17

this, I envision, will probably move to P-25

18

digital, which is a nationwide standard which

19

will really enhance interoperability between the

20

Feds, State and County level first responder

21

people.

22

Whether we stay in 800, there is going

23

to be a big push that I envision coming from the

24

State level to move to the 700 megahertz band,

25

which has an allocation for public safety.
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Of c : ( 808 ) 524 - 2090 Fax: ( 808) 524 - 2596

I

229
BF 4/13/06
1

know that there's some discussions taking place

2

right now with some -- a possible grant funding

3

in possibly starting from the Big Island --

4

since they don't have any 800 type units,

5

they're still on the very legacy VHF or UHF type

6

systems.

7

gets rolling, we're going to see some of the

8

trickle effect come into Maui County because the

9

State is including Maui as part of their pilot

And I think that once that initiative

10

plan primarily to look at some 700 megahertz

11

coverage in Wailuku and Kihei, Central area, and

12

I envision that that plan will explode all the

13

way until it reaches the Island of Kauai as the

14

years progress.

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is it a good understanding on our

16

part that whatever changes or adjustments will

17

be made to the current 800 megahertz or

18

potential to move to seven, that either the

19

private sector or the federal government will

20

pay for that, or is it going to come back once

21

more onto our tax base?

22

MR. AMARAL:

I think it's going to probably require a

23

combination of both as this evolves.

One of the

24

good things through the re-banding project is

25

the radios that we are getting -- and we're very
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lucky that our radios are being declared

2

non-retunable and need to be totally replaced.

3

Those radios will have the capability for both

4

seven and 800 megahertz, so depending on where

5

we fall as we move our initiatives forward, we

6

should be able to use that equipment.

7

course, everything out at the sites would

8

probably have to be replaced.

Of

If we had to change all of our equipment

9

10

today, if we had to do a complete microwave

11

backbone at one time, the whole thing, we're

12

probably looking at about $30 million as far as

13

a price tag.

14

seeds with some of our Congressional delegates

15

that, you know,

16

County will be faced with in a number of years

17

and definitely looking -- starting already to

18

look for federal dollars to help, you know,

19

wherever we can.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We have already been planting

this is something that Maui

Okay.

That's good to know.

21

we have currently still blind areas of voice

22

communication for the department?

23

MR. AMARAL:

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Do

Yes.
Can you -- is it all right for

you to share where those blind spots are?
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MR. AMARAL:

You know, you're going to find blind

2

spots in various places throughout the entire

3

county.

4

of the worst spots is going to be some of the

5

area out past Kahakuloa, some of the area on the

6

road to Hana.

7

we don't have another island that we can put a

8

piece of equipment facing back and so forth,

9

those are going to be some challenging areas

10

unless satellite communications become cheap

11

enough that we can move into that area.

12

Let me just concentrate on maybe some

You know, in those areas, it's --

so

But there's going to be some areas out

13

as Wailea expands out into Makena or the

14

Hawaiian Homes area that will need enhancement

15

of another site out there, which will probably

16

range in the area of about $750,000 to do.

17

These sites are not expensive -- not cheap to

18

build, but for the most part,

19

initiative

20

awaiting approval to do some enhancement in the

21

Manele Bay area that would enhance the

22

communications down there.

23

part, we have fared very well from the initial

24

installation.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I have an

ght now through Homeland Defense

Okay.

But for the most

So for the upcoming year,
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it's my understanding what I can see in the

2

budget proposal, your specific program or

3

communications, police -- is the Radio

4

under you, too, Captain?

5

MR. AMARAL:

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

S~op

Yes.
Okay.

You have a good sized

7

increase requested under your service contracts.

8

Can you just share with us what is driving that,

9

please, from 200,000 to 310?

10

14-44.

11

MR. AMARAL:

That's on page

Yes, we're coming up -- this system is
It's very complex.

Our Radio Shop

12

very large.

13

alone is not capable of handling all of the

14

necessary repairs and tuning and so forth.

15

request for extra funding is to make sure that

16

we have the funds available to carry out our

17

contract with our local EF Johnson certified

18

provider to make sure that these sites are

19

checked on a quarterly basis, that we have

20

24/7 emergency response to our dispatch center

21

and repeater sites.

22

This

And this is not something that just the

23

provider can do, we co-respond along with our

24

Radio Shop because a lot of times it takes two,

25

three people in order to solve a problem because
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it could be something that is starting up on the

2

mountaintop here related to something that is in

3

dispatch and so forth,

4

that you call one person out and it gets fixed,

5

so because of the complexity, we require the

6

help of a certified EF Johnson repair shop on

7

our island.

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

so it's not something

Thank you for that.

And my last question, Captain, and thank

9

10

you very much for your responses, is the Mobile

11

Command Center that we have procured -- my

12

understanding is it's already been procured;

13

that is geared to take care -- no matter what

14

communication band we end up with,

15

Command Center is -- would need to be

16

retrofitted from what we currently have under

17

specs?

18

I guess,

19

any comments, please?

20

MR. AMARAL:

the Mobile

I'm just trying to understand before we,
receive the equipment -- do you have

A couple different scenarios going on.

21

Currently, we're working on procuring the last

22

equipment, which will allow us to inter -- to

23

have interoperable communications with the

24

various other -- whether it be private or public

25

responders in our community, and we hope to have
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that on the test bed by this summer.
As far as the Mobile Command Center, the

2

3

Mobile Command Center will be equipped with --

4

or will be potentially equipped with a lot of

5

technical capability, however, that is not cheap

6

capability.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

MR. AMARAL:

9

Understood.

And the idea is to obtain the Command

Center with as much capability as possible.

I

10

envision that we will end up, possibly due to

11

costs naturally, having to backfill in some of

12

the technology advancement as we grow.

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

When do you expect that

14

the Mobile Center to arrive within the

15

department?

16

MR. AMARAL:

I would defer that to Assistant Chief

17

Kikuchi.

18

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

MR. KIKUCHI:

Chief, please.

I believe it is still in the bid
or actually opens up on

20

process and it closes

21

the 18th of this month, so next week.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

23
24

Okay.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Any further questions in this area for
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2

Capital Amaral, Members?
Hearing none, Captain, thank you very

3

much for your information that you provided to

4

the Committee.

5

Members, any further questions in this

6

area, Technical Services, Support Services

7

Programs?

8

9

Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I don't know if this

10

would be the appropriate division or not because

11

the Department of Transportation at the State

12

level was speaking about central traffic

13

control, and it's a system, I guess, where kind

14

of what they have on television on Oahu where

15

they monitor what's going on but also they do

16

signal control.

17

recommendation at one of the community meetings

18

that this might be on the State transportation

19

improvement program where we could actually

20

when we have difficulties, when there is an

21

accident, when there's any kind of a back-up,

22

that they would be doing traffic control.

23

Now,

And there had been a

I don't know if your traffic

24

section has ever interacted or even if that

25

would be something that -- within the
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information technology segment, if that would

2

even be something that would be within the

3

purview of your department, but have you ever

4

visited with the DOT or communicated with them

5

about that technology?

6

MR. AKANA:

Well, with specificity, yeah, we do

7

communicate with DOT and our traffic commanders

8

actually have quarterly meetings -- I believe

9

they're quarterly -- where they have int€raction

10

with the State environment and traffic concerns

11

statewide and the four County police agencies

12

send their traffic commanders.

13

The technology of traffic monitoring and

14

having, like, a command center room and stuff,

15

don't know what kind of discussion has

16

transpired, but there is lot of discussion

17

amongst the four County agencies and the State

18

regarding different,

19

scenarios and things of that nature.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I

you know, highway incident

Yeah.

And the only reason

21

I'm asking is because if in this particular

22

section, if -- and again,

23

are the most problematic and maybe doing again a

24

pilot of some sort where we could actually do

25

signal control, because when -- you know, when

I look at areas that
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the traffic starts to back up, even if you just

2

have total control, but I don't know if that's

3

within your purview or that's something more

4

that a DOT person would deal with, and I guess

5

it depends on where the equipment is located

6

but --

7

MR. AKANA:

We'll take your -- thank you.

We'll take

8

your question and talk story in executive staff

9

about it.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I really would appreciate

11

that because that was one of the suggestions

12

that the State people had made and they said

13

perhaps if we could come up with some kind of

14

funding start, it might get some stimulation

15

going at the State level to also look at

16

matching funds for that kind of technology.

17

MR. AKANA:

Yes, ma'am.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Thank you.

Further questions in this area, Members?

20

Final chance for this area before we move into

21

the grant revenue portion.

22

Hearing none, Chief, I'll provide you

23

your opportunity to make comments in this area

24

of -- excuse me -- the grant revenue portion of

25

your proposed budget.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

Chair?

Yes, Ms. Anderson.
Before we go into that,

could I ask one quick question?

5

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

Sure.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Go ahead.
Chief, it's my understanding

7

that you folks are looking at another incentive

8

for recruitment that's --

9

MR. AKANA:

Yes, ma'am.

And you know what?

I

10

apologize.

11

you were discussing some of the initiatives by

12

Hodges and some of his great ideas, Acting

13

Lieutenant Becraft has worked on an initiative

14

for a bonus package, similar to military front

15

line hiring, and he could give specificity of

16

those quickly if the Chairman is yielding to

17

that.

18
19

I lost my train of thought, but when

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
help

I think that would be very

1.

20

CHAIR KANE:

No, that's fine.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Not just for us but for

22

everybody watching, we need, you know, all the

23

applicants we can get.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Acting Lieutenant Becraft, if you can
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2
3

please identify yourself for the record?
Jamie Becraft, Acting Lieutenant,

MR. BECRAFT:

Community Relations.
Yeah, we have expanded in that area for

4
5

recruitment purposes with incentive programs and

6

we have two phases of it.

7

recruitment directly to candidates and it starts

8

with a signing bonus of $2,000 payable upon --

9

after the first month of work, they'd get $2,000

One is for actual

10

up front.

Upon graduation, they would get an

11

additional $500.

12

reimbursement for costs, up to $2500 of moving

13

costs inclusive of those who may be flying from

14

off island for interviews and things like that.

15

They would -- it would cover all of that.

On top of that, upon

And on top -- the last thing would be is

16
17

that one of our last phases for recruitment is

18

that we need to take a physical.

19

is generally around the area of $500, so

20

little bit less, I believe, so we put in an

21

incentive in that that upon, you know, being

22

hired, that we would reimburse that up to $500

23

for the -- for that.

24

that

25

also

That physical
- a

So it's up to $5,500 for

for the recruit themselves.

And we're
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1

2

that can -- we can see that come true within

3

another month or so, but it should definitely be

4

in play before the 66th recruit class comes into

5

play and we are presently at the 65th.
We've also implemented -- and it's with

6
7

SHOPO right now and we're waiting for final

8

signing of everything, but a $250 signing bonus

9

to officers or employees that Maui County

the

10

Police Department employees that find civil

11

recruits to try and invigorate our people to go

12

ahead and find some

13

recruitment efforts.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

that.

16

fabulous.

17

help us in our

Thank you very much for

That's excellent.

I just think that's

And, you know, Mr. Chair, I think the

18

popular opinion has always been that SHOPO sets

19

the -- with the State, sets the salaries for

20

officers Statewide, but some time ago there was

21

an amendment to the State statute that allows

22

for these types of incentives to happen.

23

that was the focus of Marc Hodges' research in

24

his letter, so that we're not tied to just what

25

the salary is, we can, you know, provide
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incentives to bring our recruits on board beyond

2

what SHOPO and the State agree to.
And so this take-home vehicle program

3
4

and this, you know, bonus hiring incentive,

5

these are just ways that makes it easier for us

6

to, you know,

7

because, you know, it may not sound like a lot

8

but if you're a young officer and you know that

9

you're going to get an extra five grand within a

10

couple -- you know, two, three months -- I don't

11

know how long the training is.

12
13
14

MR. BECRAFT:

recruit and retain officers,

It would be within the first month.

It

would be payable in the first month.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I mean that's a huge help

15

for a young officer and his family just starting

16

out, as well as a car because then they don't

17

need two cars when they

18

thank you very much for going forward with that

19

and making it happen.

20

help us in the long run grow our Police

21

Department, so I appreciate the time to go over

22

that.

23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

rst start out.

So

I think it will really

Thank you.
Any further questions for Acting

Lieutenant Becraft?
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Chief, any additional comments?

1
2

MR. AKANA:

Well, as always, we don't want to

3

unrecognize people.

4

right there for us in this process.

5

MR. BECRAFT:

They were

The DPS was

the DPS was

yeah, they helped me a lot

6

with everything.

They came up with this and

7

it's through DPS and our savings and the program

8

that they showed us, and then they were very

9

instrumental in helping write it up.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you so much.

Any questions, Members?

Hearing none, with that,

12
13

Great.

thank you very

much.

14

MR. BECRAFT:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Thank you for your time.
Okay.

16

Members, we're going to move into

17

grant revenue.

18

The intent is to fi

19

Members,

20

front of your brain, we'll go ahead and proceed.

21
22
23

The Chair is aware of the time.
sh up in this area,

so just keeping that in your -

in the

Chief, why don't you provide us with
some highlights in the area of grant revenue?
MR. AKANA:

Yeah.

In the area of grant revenue,

24

again I think we're about 2.8 million in grant

25

revenue.

The traditional and typical law
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enforcement related types of grants related to

2

different type of traffic initiatives,

3

technology initiatives and, of course, the

4

various narcotics related grants and some, of

5

course, education/prevention related, and that's

6

in a nutshell.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Members, we'll open it up.

Any questions in the grant revenue area

8

9

Okay.

I'll keep it there.

for Chief or his resources?

10

I'll give you folks a moment.

11

Yes, Mr. Molina.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yes, thank you, Chairman.

Just under covert operations program, I

13
14

noticed a drop.

15

grant,

16

about $14,000 difference.

17

MR. AKANA:

I guess,

$14,000.

Is that because we lost the
for that program?

There is

Oh, I'd have to research that

18

and get back

19

that might be a decrease in a narcotics related

20

grant.

21

th you.

Off the top of my head

Do you know, Greg?

MR. TAKAHASHI:

No, actually I think we just put

22

15,000 as an estimate.

This year, we didn't get

23

any funds for that purpose, so we put $1,000 for

24

next year so we can avoid going to Council for

25

that purpose.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And on the domestic

2

cannabis eradication, I notice about 20 percent

3

increase in terms of operations and this is

4

stepping up, I guess, more aggressively trying

5

to mitigate cannabis issues, I guess.

6

MR. AKANA:

The Statewide Narcotics Task Force and

7

the domestic cannabis eradication inter-county

8

State-assisted program always, always trying our

9

best to deal with that.

And, you know, there's
what

10

a bumper sticker on a vehicle that says

11

does it says?

12

is now a problem."

13

thought we could not control marijuana

14

eradication have now convinced us that we've

15

done a good job with marijuana eradication and

16

are now making bumper stickers.

17

MR. YABUTA:

18

MR. AKANA:

19

MR. YABUTA:

"Thanks to the eradication.

Ice

So the very people that

ChiefI mean that's my -I'd just like to go ahead and comment.

20

That's to keep up with the sky-rocketing costs

21

of helicopter services and fuel costs that's

22

affecting us all.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

And if I could add something and,
Chairman, if it goes a little bit out of the
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scope, please, you know, stop me.

2

a movement for,

3

as well in the community.

4

ties or anything?

5

department's position is on that, but --

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

10
11

12

There's been

I guess, medical marijuana use
Does this have any

I don't know what the

Chief?
-- I just wanted to --

If it ties into the program, great, and

if it doesn't tie in, then we'd like to know
that as well, but we'll keep it to that.
MR. AKANA:

Yes, sir, it doesn't tie into the

program.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Yeah, thank you.
Thank you.

15

That's a good question, so

16

we understand the effort of the 10,000

17

signatures that, I think, is out there so

18

anyway, I saw that at one of the stores.
Ms. Johnson?

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I just wanted to find out

21

because, you know, do you have more grants or

22

less grants than you used to have,

23

MR. AKANA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

MR. AKANA:

just overall?

Same.
Same?

Same amount of grants, yes, ma'am.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

2

MR. AKANA:

About the same.

One grant, it's a State grant, it's a

3

community grant where our narcotics environment

4

went after for positions, yeah, criminalist,

5

tech -- a technical position for tech equipment

6

and -- let's see, one more position?

7

MR. YABUTA:

8

MR. AKANA:

9

10

Crime Intel position.
That would be an additional, last fiscal

though.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Now, because it seems to me

11

just, you know, not having the other, I guess

12

past budgets the way things were displayed, it

13

seems to me that some of the grant amounts are

14

relatively small, but they require still the

15

same amount of tracking.

16

one officer or more do just the grants review or

17

are each one of you sharing the responsibilities

18

for tracking grants?

19

MR. AKANA:

Are you still having

Actually, different command elements are

20

responsible for their grant tracking, but the

21

overall sifting is done by Greg Takahashi and

22

his crew.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So -- and he would be,

24

like, the person that would file the reports for

25

follow-up or if there's any grant requirements,
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2

he would be the compliance person?
MR. AKANA:

Actually that normally -- depending on

3

the grant, sometimes those responsibilities fall

4

on the commander of, say, narcotics or the

5

traffic lieutenant in certain areas, would that

6

be correct, Greg?

7

MR. TAKAHASHI:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

Yes.
And I know some of the

departments have hinted for a long while that

10

they want somebody either, like, either a point

11

person or a secretary to actually manage their

12

grants because it really does get cumbersome.

13

But I just kind of wondered what your thoughts

14

were if some of the monies seemed to be

15

dwindling, which we're kind of hearing, and the

16

Prosecutor's Office and other areas where the

17

federal -- particularly the federal grants and

18

some of the pass-through monies from the State

19

is disappearing, I just wondered if this was a

20

trend.

21

MR. AKANA:

Yeah, I -- I think it's

I think the

22

grant -- the grant environment is in correlation

23

to your effort to seek it, so we'll continue to

24

press that to the best of our ability.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

But you have not
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sought, other than Greg, you know, doing that?

2

MR. AKANA:

Greg?

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

4

full-time,

5

you?

6

MR. TAKAHASHI:

7

I guess, person or somebody to assist

For Fiscal 2007, we have a grant

manager position that we're asking for --

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

MR. TAKAHASHI:

10

You have not sought a

Okay.

-- in our Vice Division.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

That's what I was thinking

11

whether it was you or another one,

12

have a grants manager to kind of oversee

13

MR. TAKAHASHI:

14

you know,

15

fiscal reporting for our grants.

16

so you do

We're asking for the position but,
as the fiscal reporting, no, we do the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And you want to make sure

17

that you're in compliance and monitoring all of

18

the requirements

19

MR. TAKAHASHI:

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

21

Yes.
-- for each one of these

grants?

22

MR. TAKAHASHI:

They're all subject to audit.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, and that is a lot of

24

work, and sometimes I notice, like,

25

amounts are like $1,000.

some of the
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MR. TAKAHASHI:

Well, the ones that we show $1,000,

2

those are the proposals that we show we will be

3

receiving for Fiscal 2007 so we just

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

MR. TAKAHASHI:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9
10
11
12
13

So it's not like you

have to report

6

8

Okay.

No.
-- on that, it's just like a

line item that you get?
MR. TAKAHASHI:

The $1,000 is just a provision in the

special revenue account.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And that comes from

your seizures and stuff like that or no?
MR. TAKAHASHI:

No, it's just

we use $1,000 as

14

just an estimates.

15

us -- in the event we do get funding for Fiscal

16

2007, we don't have to come back to Council

17

to --

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

MR. TAKAHASHI:

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

What it does is it allows

I see what you're saying.

- get approval.
I understand what you're

21

saying, and because I did not track it also,

22

because we're looking at revenues, you know,

23

the grant area -- I don't know, Mr. Chair, if

24

this is appropriate but one of the questions,

25

course, we always have is that the initiative at
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Of c : ( 808 ) 524 - 20 90
Fax: ( 808 ) 524 - 2596

in

of

250
BF 4/13/06
1

the State where some of the money from fines

2

could come back here to the County, has that

3

ever gained any kind of momentum or is it just

4

simply something that we'll never get?

5

MR. AKANA:

We'd have to research that in the State

6

environment, how much momentum that's gained or

7

not gained.

8
9

I'm not quite sure on that.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But there is no

no money

that you know of that would be coming back that

10

could be utilized in support of any of your

11

grant programs or any of your -From our own enforcement efforts?

12

MR. AKANA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

14

MR. AKANA:

Sometimes, sometimes that

No, ma'am.

15

maintains the integrity of an organization, but

16

no, ma'am, not yet.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18
19

Okay.

I really thank you.

Thanks, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And Ms. Johnson, the question

20

regarding the grants manager is the EP request

21

on 14-11 in the Vice Section.

22
23
24
25

Thank you.

Any additional questions in the grants
area, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

I notice there's a number of grants
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involving youth, drugs,

you know, things like

2

that.

3

Enlace Hispano program for MEO.

4

to us this afternoon, basically her

5

concentration was ESL students in the various

6

high schools.

Earlier we had a woman that represent the
When she spoke

Have the department partnered with any

7

8

non-profit organization, like MEO, who goes to,

9

you know, high schools with ESL students to, I

10

guess, bring awareness regarding substance

11

abuse?

12

MR. AKANA:

You know, our school resource officers,

13

our juvenile counselors, many, many a patrol

14

officer, some community police officers, a few

15

that's left, our narcotics officers have.

16

we

I probably would have to get a whole slew

17

of

a whole list of things in relationship to

18

those kinds of partnerships.

19

with speci

20

but we do a lot of

21

requests for speaking engagements and drug

22

awareness in all kinds of different schools.

23

Our community relations key people, also.

24
25

city.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Boy,

Not that program

rst time I've heard of it,
a lot of education and

Just involving the

department?
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MR. AKANA:

Just involving the department.

But of

2

course, the ultimate community policing program

3

is the police officer that is a coach of a

4

football team or soccer team or Little League

5

time or aikido team or karate team, and we have

6

many, many men and women in that blue uniform

7

that do true hands-on community policing that

8

doesn't cost a cent, except love and aloha and

9

effort for those kids.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

So there is a

11

possibility if an organization approached the

12

department?

13

MR. AKANA:

Well, you know what?

Absolutely.

We

have bridging with the

14

could, you know, have

15

school resource officers and the high schools.

16

Our school resource officers are super.

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
And just for your information,

19
20

Mr. Pontanilla, the ESL is the English as a

21

second language, yeah?

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

Exactly.

Yeah.

Thank you.

Okay.

Mr. Molina?

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.
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Chief, you know,

the issue of speeding

2

is always something that's at the forefront of

3

the community.

4

programs, speed enforcement program is a $29,000

5

reduction.

6

will have and also if you can differentiate for

7

me -- there's another program you have here,

8

Maui Safe Community Program Speed Control.

9

you tell me what the difference is between

10

MR. AKANA:

I notice in one of your

Can you tell us what impact that

Can

You know, I don't want to -- I'm going to

11

generalize so if we can respond to you either in

12

writing or telephone call the body or if

13

Assistant Chief Kikuchi knows a quick response,

14

I'm not -- we'll get back to you.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

MR. AKANA:

17

That's fine.

But those are traffic-related grants so

Lieutenant Tanoue can give you the skinny.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Molina, if you need assistance,

20

staff will provide you with the means to get

21

that question posed and responded to in writing.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you, sir.

So if you can please, make sure you

24

touch base with them just to be clear on the

25

question, unless you're willing to give them a
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofe: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

254
BF 4/13/06
1

specific framework of the question that you'd

2

like.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

4

with your staff.

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

7

CHAIR KANE:

Great.
Thank you.

Thank you very much.
Ms. Anderson?

8

9

Yeah, I'll go ahead and work

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

I see that you have so many grants here.

10
11

The grant on 14-53, Community Oriented Policing

12

Services Methamphetamine Program, it's being

13

reduced by, like, $31,000.

14

explain that?

15

MR. AKANA:

Does anybody want to

From my understanding, that was a grant

16

related to the Kahekili Terrace initiative.

17

reduction must be because of the grant was

18

exhausted this fiscal year.

19

clarity?

20

MR. TAKAHASHI:

Can you give

I think that was a one-year grant

21

that we got.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

MR. TAKAHASHI:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

The

For a specific area?

Yeah.
You know, this is probably

going to be a really hard question, and maybe
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it's not, maybe you guys keep track of this, but

2

I think it would be real interesting to know

3

what the fight against ice is costing us.

4

know, over and above what you guys would

5

normally have been, you know, expending for drug

6

intervention or whatever, you know.

7

there any way you can qualify, you know, what

8

the increase in cost to the community is to

9

fight this epidemic?

10

MR. AKANA:

You

I mean is

Oh, boy, that's -- I tell you

11

Councilmember Anderson, can we try and bear down

12

on numbers in relationship to our responsibility

13

as far as manpower, cost, overtime, as far as

14

equipment and those kinds of numbers?

15

we could give you some of that data but

16
17
18
19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I think

I mean I don't want to take

up a lot of your time.
MR. AKANA:

Well, yeah, I mean preferably, you know,

that would be a post-budget request.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

MR. AKANA:

Yeah.

But, you know, but in the bigger scheme

22

of things, that's a question that you've got to

23

get five philosophers together on,

24

bigger scheme of society.

25

enforcement, we can -- we can try and batten

I mean in the

In our scheme as law
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down some numbers.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3
4
5

Just to get an idea

because -MR. AKANA:

Sure.

You stay in touch with us and

we'll get that for you.

6

COVNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Would you like to do that in the context

8

of this meeting or is that something your office

9

will follow up on?

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, he's saying that, you

11

know, he doesn't think he can get it together

12

between now and the end of budget and -- I mean

13

that's a lot of -- I mean you're going to have

14

to take a little bit here and a little bit there

15

and try to figure that out.

16

keep track of it internally.

17

MR. AKANA:

I don't know if you

Well, you know, every -- domestic

18

violence calls, disturbance calls, harassment

19

calls, reckless driving calls, road rage calls,

20

calls of burglary, calls of theft, calls of

21

criminal property damage, calls of rage,

22

assault --

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

MR. AKANA:

25

So how do we

So
I mean, you know, in

other words, we'd be burdening a couple guys
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getting those numbers --

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

MR. AKANA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

-- in correlation to the reality in life.
Right.

And it doesn't

5

really have any bearing on our budget today; it

6

was just a question I think that's important for

7

us to get a handle on, how much this is costing

8

us generally.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Members, any final questions in this

10
11

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

area of grants?
If you do have any further questions,

12
13

please feel free to inform staff of your -- of

14

your question and we'll get that forwarded.

15

Chief, thank you very much.

16
17

We really

appreciate your presence this afternoon.
MR. AKANA:

And I apologize for being a little too

18

humorous earlier on, anyway -- and mahalo to the

19

people that hung

20

of the gang up there in the tiers, and then of

21

course those three handsome guys behind me.

22

CHAIR KANE:

th us also, all of the

all

And thanks to the Assistant Chiefs.

23

Appreciate all your resource personnel, all your

24

captains and all the various people in the

25

department.

Thank you very much.
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MR. AKANA:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, sir.
Yes, Members, we have reached the end of

3

the week for your Committee work.

The Chair

4

will give you a few pieces of information.
We will still be working towards the

5
6

Department of Housing and Human Concerns come

7

Monday morning at nine o'clock, and we will try

8

to get through with Housing and Human Concerns.

9

And we have between either the Fire Department

10

or Public Works or Water Supply, so that we will

11

make our attempt to figure it out, but we're

12

going to start off with the Housing and Human

13

Concerns and possibly the County Clerk and then

14

we'll work our way towards Fire and then wrap up

15

with Public Works and Water for operations.
Second note, Members,

16

I will be letting

17

you know that Monday night the Chair intends to

18

request -- or make a recommendation to you to

19

enter into executive session spe

20

water issue,

21

something that we will be entertaining to you

22

folks,

23

so we'll -- I'll be asking for that request

24

Monday afternoon prior to calling for our dinner

25

recess and then going right into Monday evening

fic to the

the $7 million request,

so that is

and it will be your decision in the end,
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at about 6:30ish, Members.

The Chair -- the

2

Chair sees us going evening sessions starting

3

from Monday right through the week, okay,

4

Members?

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

That's fine.

So if you can, please make sure your

7

schedules are clear, and if you can't, please

8

let the Committee staff know as soon as you are

9

aware of what you cannot do to attend the

10

meetings so we will make sure the quorum is set

11

so we can continue the Committee's work.
Finally, Members, the Chair wanted to,

12
13

of course, wish you a safe weekend for all of

14

you out there, Good Friday for all of you and

15

have a good weekend.

16

take some of your work home with you that you

17

think is going to be important so that we can

18

keep going Monday morning and be fresh.
With that Members, any announcements

19
20

Get your rest as well as

l

Mr. Hokama?

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just one question, Chairman.

Yes.
As we prepare for the discussion

24

in the upcoming week regarding the vehicle

25

consideration for Police. Department, if
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Corporation Counsel can also, with the take-home

2

option, be prepared to comment regarding any

3

extended liability exposure.

4
5

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

If you can take note from Deputy

Corporation Counsel, I'd appreciate that.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Any other announcements before we

8

9
10

Okay.

adjourn for the weekend, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

CHAIR KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

Hearing none, Happy Easter, everybody.

Absolutely.

15

Ms. Anderson.

16

Okay.

17

Chair, Happy Passover to our

Jewish friends.
CHAIR KANE:

ADJOURN:

DAM)

DEFER pending further discussion.

11

13

(excused:

Thank you very much,

We are adjourned.

(Gavel. )

4:29 p.m.

18
19 .
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